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P R O C E E D I N G 

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Welcome, everyone.

I'd like to open the hearing in Docket DW 13-041, w hich is

Lakes Region Water Company's Petition for Emergency  Rates.

Lakes Region is a regulated public utility serving over

1,600 customers.  It filed, on February 4th, 2013, a

Petition for Emergency Rates, seeking an increase

sufficient to allow it to make estimated tax paymen ts

incurred in 2012, and tax liabilities going forward .  And,

said that, if the rates weren't approved, "its fina ncial

condition will deteriorate and its ability to conti nue to

provide service to the public will be impaired."

We issued an order of notice on

February 15th calling for a hearing this morning.  And, we

have received notice from the Office of Consumer Ad vocate

of its intention to participate.  We also know that  the

Staff of the Commission stated it needed informatio n

developed before the hearing.  And, as I understand  it,

that's been going on between the date of the order of

notice and today.  At least I hope so.  That's what  was

called for in the order of notice.  And, the order also

requested to be notified of any petitions to interv ene no

later than March 1st.  I'm not aware of any other

intervenors, though there may be some late interven ors
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today we'll hear about.  And, publication of the or der of

notice was required.  And, as I understand it, we h ave an

affidavit of publication received.  Well, I don't s ee it

in the record of things in the file.  Do you have i t,

Sandy?

MS. DENO:  We have it, but we just don't

have the hard copy.  We have it electronically.  

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Okay.  That it was

published not on the date that the order called for , but

was published on a Sunday, rather than the date, th e

Friday asked for, as I understand it.  Is that corr ect?

MR. RICHARDSON:  That is correct.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  So, with

all of those preliminaries out of the way, let's ta ke

appearances, and then talk about the order of proce edings

this morning.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Thank you.  Good

morning, Chair.  Justin Richardson, of Upton & Hatf ield,

here on behalf of Lakes Region Water Company.  With  me at

counsel table I have Mr. St. Cyr; President of Lake s

Region Water, Tom Mason; John or "Jake" Dawson, as he goes

by, who is the Company's manager.  I also have behi nd me

Mr. Norm Roberge, who OCA has requested be availabl e for

questioning today.  He's the Company's accountant.  And,
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also, just for informational purposes for the Commi ssion,

Mr. Timothy Fontaine, who the Company has just yest erday

requested in 10-141 be approved as the financial ma nager

that the Commission provided for in that order.  Be cause

this hearing is not noticed under 10-141, we won't be

asking for a ruling on that today.  But I thought I  would

alert the Commissioners that he was here.

Also in the room is the Company's owner,

Barbara Mason, who's in the last row, and as well a s Tom

Mason's sister, who is a member of the Board of Dir ectors.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.

MR. PATCH:  Good morning.  Doug Patch,

of the law firm of Orr & Reno, for the Property Own ers

Association at Suissevale, Inc.  We were aware of t he

filing, Mr. Richardson sent us a copy of the filing , we

didn't find out about this hearing until yesterday,  when

Staff notified us and Consumer Advocate.  And, we h ave not

filed a petition to intervene.  Based on what we've  seen

so far, we don't think that we have the need to fil e that.

We're here to monitor today.

We understand there's been some

discovery exchanged.  We haven't, you know, we were n't

privy to that.  So, at some point, we would like to

receive copies.  But, anyway, you know, I'm not ask ing to
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intervene, I'm just saying we're here to monitor.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  As to

discovery, I guess, I don't know if you discussed t hat

with other parties, and whether they're agreeable t o that

or not.  

(Atty. Richardson handing documents to 

Atty. Patch.) 

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Looks like a big

stack of something just got passed over.  Okay.

Ms. Hollenberg.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Good morning.  Rorie

Hollenberg, Stephen Eckberg, and Donna McFarland, h ere for

the Office of Consumer Advocate.

MS. BROWN:  Good morning, Commissioners.

Marcia Brown, on behalf of Staff.  And, with me tod ay is

Mark Naylor, Jayson Laflamme, and Robyn Descoteau.  Thank

you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Good morning.  Do we

have any other procedural matters to take up before  we

begin with presentation of evidence?  Mr. Richardso n.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Thank you, madam

Chairman.  The only issue is the publication of the  order

of notice.  Unfortunately, in the -- during the dis covery

period, the Company was obviously focused on those
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responses.  And, unfortunately, the deadline, when it was

submitted to the Manchester Union  Leader  for publication

couldn't be met by the 22nd.  What I did advise the

Company to do was to make additional publications t hey

could, and so they posted or published the notice o n the

Manchester Union  Leader's  website, so that would run as an

advertisement, in addition to the publication that

occurred on Sunday in the newspaper that's in the

affidavit of publication that was mailed out or mai led to

the Commission on Monday.

You know, the Company certainly doesn't

have objections to late intervention, if there is a  party

that didn't receive notice.  And, I just wanted to note

that for the record, that the Company had gone out and

provided that additional notice by the Web publicat ion.

It was also published on the Company's website on t he

22nd.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.  I

appreciate that.  Anything further on this?

Ms. Hollenberg.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Actually nothing

further on the affidavit issue.  We consulted with the

Company before the filing.  And, we were aware that  it was

going to be a couple of days late and did not oppos e that.  
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I do have another procedural issue that

I wanted to mention, though, if this is an appropri ate

time?

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Please go ahead.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Thank you.  I think

that it would be very helpful at the beginning of t his

hearing for the Commission to clarify what we're do ing

today, and that is specifically that the Company ha s

presented its request in a form that is akin to a

temporary rate request.  And, they are seeking appr oval of

the emergency rates, with a reconciliation of those  rates

once permanent rates are determined in a 2013 rate case.

And, for me, it would be a very different approach today,

if this were a "temporary" emergency rate hearing, as

opposed to a merits hearing on emergency rates.  I think I

would have -- I may have less -- I may have less

questions, if I knew that the rate was reconcilable .  My

issue with that is that the statute that allows the

Commission to reconcile rates speaks to the typical

distribution rate case, where you have temporary ra tes and

permanent rates.  Those statutes, I believe it's --  I

can't think of the citation off the top of my head right

now.  But -- so, they're usually used in conjunctio n in a

base rate case.  And, I guess I'm not confident, it  would
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be helpful to have a sense of whether or not the

Commission thinks that these rates would be reconci lable.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.  And,

your argument that it would make a difference in ho w the

case goes forward today?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Well, typically,

temporary rate hearings are ones that are expedited ,

they're usually -- I think the statute actually spe aks to

having a less of an intensive investigation of the basis

for the rate.  So, it seems to me that it would be a

lesser threshold standard for approval.  And, it wo uld

just be -- and, I think that the Company's position  is

that that is an appropriate way to proceed today.  I hope,

you know, Mr. Richardson can correct me if I'm wron g, but

I do think it's a pretty important issue that shoul d be

resolved at the outset.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Why

don't we go around and then come back to Mr. Richar dson.

Ms. Brown, do you have a comment on that?  

MS. BROWN:  I'll start from the top.  To

the extent that Suissevale changes their monitoring  status

to intervention status, Staff will not oppose that,

because the Property Owners at Suissevale have been  a past
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participant in proceedings regarding Lakes Region.

Staff does not object to the hearing

going forward today, even though the affidavit of - - the

publication occurred a couple of days late, because  of the

emergency nature of this proceeding.

With respect to the issue that OCA has

raised, Staff understands that this proceeding was noticed

for "emergency rates", under 378:9, not as a tempor ary

rate proceeding in conjunction with a permanent rat e

proceeding.  Staff understands the Company's

reconciliation request to pertain to the property t ax

amount -- or, not the "property tax", the income ta x

liability that it will incur.  Because it's Staff's

understanding that that exact amount is not known a t this

time, but that the Company will reconcile its $100, 000 and

some odd change request for payment for its taxes, it will

true that up later when the exact amount is known.  So, as

far as reconciliation, Staff was not -- or, yes,

reconciliation, Staff was not seeing this proceedin g as

being a temporary/permanent rate reconciliation typ e of a

proceeding.  It was emergency rates, but that the t ax

payment needed to be reconciled.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.  Mr.

Richardson.
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MR. RICHARDSON:  Thank you.  The Company

set forth in its position -- its petition, excuse m e, the

basis for proceeding.  And, what we'd like to do is  have

the Commission approve an emergency rate request, a s set

forth in our petition, that will allow the Company to

avoid losses going forward, in other words, to stab ilize

the situation.  2012 has come and gone, and the Com pany

will be filing its tax return shortly.  But what we 're

really concerned about, from an emergency standpoin t, is

the ongoing liability for 2013.  We believe, and I

apologize I don't have the citation for you, but, i f you

look at the case of Appeal of Milford Water Works, which

stems from a Commission decision in the 1980s, I be lieve

in the mid '80s, and the Supreme Court said that th e

authority to approve something includes the authori ty to

impose conditions.

That's also the holding from the 2010

Pennichuck Water Works case, in which the Court recognized

in that case, under a statutory provision, the auth ority

to impose reasonable conditions.  The Company is wi lling

to stipulate to that, that authority.  And, what we 'd like

to do is to have the reconciliation, either as part  of

this proceeding or as part of the Company's permane nt rate

case, or both, as the Commission determines, reconc iled to
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the actual tax liability that the Company will incu r.

And, that means that it could be the 173,000 that M r. St.

Cyr has set forth and explained he believes is nece ssary

to recover in rates, or it could be zero.

The Company doesn't really have an

interest in the outcome, as long as the correct amo unt is

reached.  Because, if it's determined that our tax

liability is zero for 2012, then we're not incurrin g any

financial losses at all.  But we believe that the a ctual

tax liability is going to be about $100,219.  And, so,

that's what Mr. St. Cyr has explained the Company n eeds to

recover through its rates.  Because that revenue is

taxable, you have to, unfortunately, obtain more in  rates

in order to pay the tax.

So, we think that the Commission has the

authority to, as part of its authority to approve

emergency rates, to order that they be reconciled o r

adjusted to what the actual tax liability is, in th is

proceeding or a rate proceeding.  And, we're willin g to

stipulate to that.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.  I guess

we can take a few questions.  We're going to get in to all

the evidence and the factual statements you just ma de in a

moment.  But, Commissioner Scott.
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CMSR. SCOTT:  Back to the Office of

Consumer Advocate.  I was curious, I understand you r

reading of the "reconciliation" language.  When I r ead

378:9, the "emergency" language, it specifically sa ys we

can "only authorize the public utility to temporari ly

alter".  So, would you not see -- be able to read t hat as

a temporary rate?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  I can try -- I don't

have the statute in front of me right now.  Let me just--

(Atty. Brown handing document to Atty. 

Hollenberg.) 

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Oh, thank you.  I

apologize.  I guess the temporariness, though, is

different than the reconciliation.  You know, the f act

that it would be set temporarily doesn't necessaril y

equate to reconciling backward.  And, that's my que stion.

And, I don't necessarily have a preference one way or the

other.  It was just something that I thought would be

helpful to understand.  And, frankly, you know, eac h

person seems to have a little bit of a different sp in on

it.  So, I'm glad that I have an opportunity to hea r

everybody's comments.

CMSR. SCOTT:  Thank you.  

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Does that answer your
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question?  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Commissioner

Harrington.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Yes.  In the filing

the Company made, just so we're clear, Mr. Richards on, it

appears what you're saying right now is that you're

requesting emergency rates in the amount of the act ual tax

liability, and it says that was taxable, so it has to be

-- go up to adjust for that.  But that's what you'r e

looking for, to cover the 2000 -- whatever the 2012  taxes

are, you're looking for some emergency rates to do that.  

And, in your filing, on Page 3, in

Section 7, it says "in order to allow the Company t o pay

federal and state income taxes incurred in 2012, pl us

interest, and on a going-forward basis subject to

reconciliation in its next permanent rate case."  W hat

exactly is it you expect to be reconciled in the ne xt

permanent rate case?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Thank you, Commissioner

Harrington.  The reason for that discrepancy, and I 'm glad

that you picked up on it, is that what Mr. St. Cyr has put

and presented for schedules to be approved by the

Commission will only address the Company's going-fo rward

tax liability.  2012 has come and gone, the taxes w eren't
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paid.  So, they're going to accrue, you know, the

liability is on the Company's books, and it's accru ing

interest.  We think that will need to be addressed as part

of the permanent rate case.  And, I didn't want to,  by not

mentioning in this proceeding, you know, let go of that or

cause the Commission to believe that we weren't see king

that.  However, from an emergency standpoint, what I think

is appropriate to do is to prevent further losses f rom

causing the Company's financial position from

deteriorating.  

So, Mr. St. Cyr's schedules will cover

the Company's tax liability the moment this Commiss ion

approves it, will reconcile to actual.  At some poi nt,

either in this proceeding or in the rate -- or a pe rmanent

rate case, where I think it would probably make mor e sense

to do that, we will ask for or try to address "how do we

deal with 2012, now that it's already happened and it

hasn't been paid?"

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  And, I think you've

confused me more, I'm sorry.  I'm still -- what tax  years,

I mean, it says here you're looking to "adjust its rates

on an emergency basis...in order to pay the taxes i ncurred

in 2012, plus interest."  Now, you're saying, those  are

already on the books, and you're not -- what is it you're
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requesting the emergency rate increase to deal with ?

MR. RICHARDSON:  The Company's present

tax liability that it's incurring today, based on i ts

income in 2012, that's expected to continue in the future.

So, we're asking you to do that.  We don't have the

benefit of the Company's actual 2012 tax return, on ly the

estimate of what the liability is.  And, we're aski ng the

Commission to essentially allow the Company to incr ease

its rates, so that it can pay estimated taxes.  Rig ht now

its rates, from the last rate case, do not include any

state or federal income taxes.  The Company's incur ring

liability for those taxes based on its 2012 financi als,

and we need to address that.  We need to stop this from

getting worse.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Okay.  So, let me

just see if I've got this correct then.  You've acq uired a

tax liability from earnings in 2012.  And, now that

liability is coming due, you have to start making p ayments

on this.  And, you don't have the income flow to do  it.

So, you want rates adjusted so you can start to mak e

payments on that.  Now, if the total amount of paym ents

due on your 2012, let's just make up a number, were  $100,

in your estimation, you want to set emergency rates  based

on that $100 that needs to be paid out over some ti meframe
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in 2013.  And, then, if it turns out the actual is 96 or

it's 104, that's what would get reconciled in the n ext

permanent rate case.  Do I have that correct?

MR. RICHARDSON:  That is correct.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Thank you.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Except one -- you're

talking about 2013, not 2012.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  I was talking about

the 2012 tax liability.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Which I -- oh, I'm

sorry.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  No, let me just, the

2012 tax liability, which they're going to pay in 2 013.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  It's my understanding,

from what the Company just said, that they're basic ally

letting go of the 2012 tax liability at this time, until

the next rate case, and that they're looking only t o

recover 2013 going forward.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Yes.  Let's ask

Mr. Richardson, because I heard two completely

contradictory statements from you.  One was, "2012 has

come and gone, it's not the issue.  We're only talk ing

about the future."  And, then, you said, "and then,  when

we figure out what 2012 is, we'll deal with that in
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another proceeding."  And, yet, your answers to

Mr. Harrington seemed to be -- say "we're talking t oday

about 2012 liability."  So, if you can clarify that  at the

outset, and then we'll move to evidence.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Absolutely.  So, the

Company has incurred tax liability that's unpaid, b ased on

2012.  Based on what we estimate those, what we est imate

the tax liability to be is $100,219, that the Compa ny

should have paid in 2012 that was not included in r ates.

That's the basis for Mr. St. Cyr's prefiled testimo ny.

That's what the Company should have in rates.  Now,  we're

asking the Commission to approve that on an emergen cy

basis going forward.

Now, we still have to deal with what

happened in 2012 with it being unpaid.  But I'm not  sure

that, once we've -- the purpose of an emergency rat e

proceeding is to stabilize the situation, to preven t the

Company's financial situation from deteriorating.  We're

not trying to get money without adequate discovery,

without, you know, appropriate reconciliation to wh at the

actual tax liability is.  

So, what I am suggesting is is that, as

part of our request today, we're alerting the Commi ssion

to the fact that 2012 has not been paid.  But the s pecific
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relief we're asking for in this proceeding is to gi ve us

revenue sufficient to pay the Company's tax liabili ty that

it's incurring today.  We'll deal with 2012, either  as

part of this proceeding, when it's concluded, or pa rt of

the permanent rate case to be filed based on the 20 12 test

year.  Once you've got the annual reports, once you 've got

the actual returns, we'll then be in front of the

Commission, either as part of this case or as part of the

next rate case, to say "we need to recover the liab ility

that was unfunded coming out of the Company's last rate

case."  Because, if we don't, that tax liability is

actually going to continue to cause the Company's p ayables

to be high.  The Company is going to have to balanc e, "do

we pay vendors or do we pay the IRS?"  And, you kno w, it's

in a very precarious situation because of that.  

But the purpose of this proceeding

today, as Mr. St. Cyr has shown in his schedules, i s to

get the Company's tax liability paid going forward.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  I'm sorry, I am

completely lost by that explanation.  So, I think, rather

than -- let's put you on the stand and let's get st arted,

because I think all the description of what is or i sn't

happening is only preliminary to actual sworn evide nce.

So, let's -- 
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CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Can I just ask one

follow-up question?  I'll make it pretty quick.  If  you

were -- let's just say some rate relief was granted .  And,

here's $10 in ratepayer money to cover what your em ergency

is.  Who are you going to give the $10 to?  What pa yment

are you going to make?

MR. RICHARDSON:  The Company would use

the money to pay the IRS, to make estimated tax pay ments

on what it's incurring today.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  So, you would make it

on 2013 estimated taxes, not to cover your 2012 tax

liability that you've already incurred?

MR. RICHARDSON:  The tax accountants

may, you know, kind of move it backwards.  But what  we're

trying to do is prevent the tax liability from incr easing.

We want to stabilize it.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  This isn't working.

I'm sorry.  You're just going to have to get people  up

there.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Let's have testimony

on the stand please.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Thank you.  If I may,

as procedural matter, I had intended to show -- to bring

the Company's operations and ownership witnesses,
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Mr. Mason and Mr. Dawson, on first to adopt their

testimony, followed by Mr. St. Cyr to address the r ate and

tax issues.  Staff has requested that they all test ify at

the same time.  The Company doesn't have a strong f eeling

either way.  We're just trying to do this as orderl y as

possible.  So, we'll proceed as the Commission pref ers.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Ms. Brown.

MS. BROWN:  I have kind of an objection

for going forward with the hearing at this point, s eparate

from how the panel is set up out on the witness box .

Staff had conducted discovery on the belief that th e

crisis was payment of the 2012 taxes.  If the crisi s is

payment of the 2013 taxes, our discovery would have  been

different.  So, I'm just registering that Staff is

somewhat handicapped now that we know that the cris is is

now the 2013 payment of taxes, rather than 2012.  I  just

note that.  We'll do our best in the cross-examinat ion of

the witnesses.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  I'd like to go

forward.  The Petition itself asks for "recovery of

estimated federal and state income taxes incurred i n 2012,

and that it expects to incur going forward."  So, I  think

the Petition stated both areas.  I still am a littl e

baffled by the explanation of what's Mr. Richardson 's
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description.  But I think we ought to just start re ally

hearing evidence and understanding what the tax sit uation

is, what the cash flow situation is, and what, if

anything, the Commission should do.

So, why don't we begin.  And, I think,

if it's all right with everyone, that we put everyo ne on

as a panel from the Company, that's fine with us.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  I actually, just to

give my position, I think it's helpful to us asking

questions, because it enables us to direct the ques tions

to the panel, and whomever is best suited to answer  it, as

opposed to trying to figure out which questions are  more

appropriate for which witness.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Thank

you.  So, why don't you seat your three witnesses.

(Whereupon Thomas A. Mason,          

John W. Dawson, and Stephen P. St. Cyr 

were duly sworn by the Court Reporter.) 

THOMAS A. MASON, SWORN 

JOHN W. DAWSON, SWORN 

STEPHEN P. ST. CYR, SWORN 

 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. RICHARDSON: 

Q. Good morning.  Please state your names and busine ss
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addresses for the record.

A. (Dawson) John W. Dawson.  "Business address" you said,

Justin?

Q. Yes.

A. (Dawson) The business address is Lakes Region Wat er

Company, 420 Governor Wentworth Highway,

Moultonborough, New Hampshire 03254.

A. (Mason) Thomas Mason, Lakes Region Water, 420 Gov ernor

Wentworth Highway, Moultonborough, 03254.

A. (St. Cyr) And, Stephen P. St. Cyr, 17 Sky Oaks Dr ive,

Bidderford, Maine.  

Q. And, please state your positions in this proceedi ng?

A. (Dawson) I'm John Dawson.  I'm the Manager or

Supervisor of Lakes Region Water Company.  

A. (Mason) Thomas Mason, President, Lakes Region Wat er.  

A. (St. Cyr) And, Steve St. Cyr.  I'm the Company's

consultant for rate and tax matters.

Q. Thank you.  And, just to cut to the chase, you've  all

prepared testimony in this case.  I'm going to show  you

those documents.  I'd like you to adopt them as you r

testimony in this proceeding.

MR. RICHARDSON:  For the benefit of

anyone here, I have copies of all of these document s.  I

can provide them.
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CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.  While

you're distributing anything.  Anyone need one?  Sh ow of

hands if you need anything?  Looks like people have  them.

Let me just note for the record, I meant to before,  that

we are proceeding under the emergency rate statute,  which

is RSA 378:9, rather than the temporary rate statut e,

378:27.

(Atty. Richardson and Atty. Hollenberg 

distributing documents.)  

MR. RICHARDSON:  So, for clarity in the

record, what I'd like to do, and I've previously gi ven

some of the parties an exhibit list, what I'll do i s

premark Mr. Mason's testimony as "LRW Exhibit 1",

Mr. Dawson as "Exhibit 2", Mr. St. Cyr as "3".

BY MR. RICHARDSON: 

Q. And, do the witnesses have those documents in fro nt of

them?

A. (Mason) Yes, we do.

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

A. (Dawson) Yes.

Q. And, do those testimonies, are they true and accu rate

to the best of your knowledge and belief?

A. (Dawson) Yes.

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.
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A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. Okay.  And, do you adopt those as your testimony in

this case?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

A. (Dawson) Yes.

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. Now, Mr. Mason, I understand that your testimony

includes a list of payables, and I understand that has

been updated.  And, I guess what I'd like to do is -- 

MR. RICHARDSON:  Let me do this.  Before

we get into that, let me give you your data request

responses, which I'll mark as "Staff" -- or "LRW Ex hibit

4" and "LRW Exhibit 5".

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  And, while you're

distributing those, we will mark the three testimon ies for

identification, Thomas Mason "Number 1"; John Dawso n

"Number 2"; and Stephen St. Cyr "Number 3".

(The documents, as described, were 

herewith marked as Exhibit 1, Exhibit 2, 

and Exhibit 3, respectively, for 

identification.) 

(Atty. Richardson and Atty. Hollenberg 

distributing documents.) 

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  And, Mr. Richardson,
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you're asking that the large packet, response to St aff

data requests, be marked for identification as "Exh ibit

4"?

MR. RICHARDSON:  That is correct.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  And, the smaller

stack, response to OCA data requests, be marked as

"Exhibit 5"?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Also correct.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Is there any

objection from anyone on any of these markings?

MS. BROWN:  None from Staff.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  No thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  So,

we'll mark those for identification as described.

(The documents, as described, were 

herewith marked as Exhibit 4 and  

Exhibit 5, respectively, for 

identification.) 

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Excuse me.  I just

wanted to raise, and I apologize for not mentioning  this

to counsel, I do believe there are some personal So cial

Security numbers in the responses to Staff's data

requests.  That may need to be kept under wraps unt il they

can be properly redacted.
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CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  If that's the case,

we certainly would want to have those redacted and not

make public.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  And, specifically, it's

is Staff 1-1 and Staff 1-2.  I apologize, I should have

mentioned this before.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  These are because

they're part of the tax returns?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Yes, ma'am.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  So, I

appreciate you thinking about that.  We should -- I  think

it's fine right now, we don't need to read those in to the

record.  There is no way they will be used this mor ning.

We should substitute the pages before we're done wi th

redacted pages that block out the Social Security n umbers.

And, we can do that later in the day or in the next  couple

of days.  Thank you for thinking that, Ms. Hollenbe rg.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Thank you.  

BY MR. RICHARDSON: 

Q. I'd like to ask the witnesses if you adopt those

responses as true and accurate to the best of your

knowledge and belief?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

A. (Mason) Yes.  
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A. (Dawson) Yes.

Q. Finally, one last issue, and I'll direct this to

Mr. Mason, because I believe your testimony include d a

list of payables as of December 2012.  And, I'd lik e to

show you what I'll mark as "LRW Exhibit 6", which I 'll

represent to you is a February 27th, 2013 update.

(Atty. Richardson and Atty. Hollenberg 

distributing documents.)  

BY MR. RICHARDSON: 

Q. Mr. Mason, is that list, which we've marked for

identification as "LRW Exhibit 6", is that true and

accurate to the best of your knowledge and belief?

A. (Mason) Yes.  Yes, it is.

MR. RICHARDSON:  At this point, I

believe it would be appropriate to make the witness es

available for cross-examination or questions from t he

Commission, as you see fit.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Before

we go to questioning, let me just ask.  Exhibit 6 l ooks

like an accounts payable statement dated February 2 7,

2013.  And, I don't know if this has been shared wi th

other participants prior to this morning or if they 're

seeing it for the first time right now?

MR. RICHARDSON:  I know we discussed
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sharing it with them.  I can't recall.  I know I se nt it

out yesterday.  I can't recall if there's been anot her

iteration that's been distributed.  The only way th is

differs, I believe, from what's in evidence is is t hat it

contains a column on the left-hand side, which show s the

payables as of "3/9/12", which was a response to th e

information provided to the Commission in the 10-14 1 case.

And, then, the next column over, that's labeled "2/ 27/13",

just shows the current status.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  And, in response to

your question, we did receive it yesterday.  It was  late

in the day, but we did receive it.

MS. BROWN:  Staff has a question,

because we didn't see this until this morning, beca use it

came in after hours last night.  But we had an e-ma il that

contains two attachments, one was 11 pages, one was  2.

Which one have you marked for "Exhibit 6"?

MR. RICHARDSON:  There's a summary

sheet, that is the first two pages, that provides a n

overview, and that is the shorter of the documents.   And,

then, the remainder is the detailed breakdown, and that's

the remaining pages.  So, this is both of those com bined

into a single exhibit.
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And, the point of offering this is

really only for informational purposes.  This doesn 't, I

think, materially change anything that's in the tes timony.

It's just to give the most recent information for t he

Commission.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.  And,

this was prepared by who?

MR. RICHARDSON:  You'd have to ask the

Company that.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  I'm

asking the Company.  Who prepared this?

WITNESS ST. CYR:  It was prepared by the

Company's accountant, Norm Roberge.  

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Okay.

WITNESS ST. CYR:  From the Company's

books and records.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.  All

right.  Then, we'll mark this for identification as

Exhibit 6.  

(The document, as described, was 

herewith marked as Exhibit 6 for 

identification.) 

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  And, obviously, if

there are questions about the numbers or why things  are
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appearing the way they do, that would be something that

Mr. Roberge, who's here, could answer today.  So, a lthough

I assume that, although Mr. Roberge prepared the do cument,

am I correct that the Company witnesses are familia r with

the information contained in it and can speak to it ?  

WITNESS MASON:  Yes.  We actually print

one of these every other day.  It's part of our com puter

system, and it updates every other day for us.  And , we

look at it every other day.  So, it's a standard do cument

for us.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Good.  Thank you.

All right.  Then, why don't we begin with questioni ng.

Ms. Hollenberg.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Thank you.  Good

morning, gentlemen.

WITNESS ST. CYR:  Good morning.

WITNESS DAWSON:  Good morning.

WITNESS MASON:  Good morning.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  I can say at the outset

that I don't believe I have any questions for Mr. D awson.

So, I believe most of my questions will be directed  to

Mr. Mason and Mr. St. Cyr.  And, if I could just di rect

them to you both, and have you choose which is the best

person to respond, that would be helpful.  Thank yo u.
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CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. I guess initially, though, I will start with you,

Mr. Mason.  The request for emergency rates, we got

into this a little bit at the beginning of the hear ing.

You state in the Petition that it's for the purpose  of

paying "estimated federal and state income taxes

incurred in 2012", is that correct.

A. (Mason) Yes, it is.

Q. As well as the taxes that the Company "expects to  incur

going forward"?

A. (Mason) Correct.

Q. So, the Company is seeking an annual -- something  akin

to an annual revenue increase, is that correct, at this

time?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. Thank you.  And, this is an 18 percent increase i n the

rates, the current rates, is that correct?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. Thank you.  The Company expects at this time to f ile a

rate case in 2013.  Could you tell me the status of

that expected filing please.

A. (Mason) We plan on, as soon as we get our books c losed,

or not "books closed", but the annual report in, th en
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we'll evaluate.  We anticipate right now, or we are

99.9 percent sure that we'll be coming forward with

another rate case, because of things like Mount Rob erts

and the capital improvements that we have done in t he

last two years.

Q. Do you have a sense of the timing of the filing o f the

rate case?

A. (Mason) I would say sometime in the spring.  I'm hoping

May.

Q. Okay.  Thank you.  Going back to the request for the

emergency rates and the discussion this morning abo ut

the reconciliation of those rates, Mr. St. Cyr, cou ld

you please describe what the Company's expectations  are

of that reconciliation?

A. (St. Cyr) The Company expects, when it files its actual

tax return, that there will be a difference between

what is reported in -- reported on the tax return

versus what we have submitted.  And, the Company is

prepared to reconcile those two amounts.

Q. So, is it correct that the Company is proposing t oday

to use a 2012 amount as a proxy for the taxes, the tax

expense?  And, then, once you have the actual 2012 --

the estimated 2012.  And, once you have the estimat ed

2013, you'll reconcile?  I guess I don't know the - -
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I'm sorry, this is a confusing question.  Let me tr y

and rephrase it.  You're asking for the Commission to

approve an amount that is equal to the estimated 20 12

taxes, correct?

A. (St. Cyr) The Company is asking the Commission to

approve an amount based on 2012, that will be

incorporated in rates on a permanent basis, that wi ll

allow it to pay taxes going forward.

Q. And, is it the 2012 estimated amount that you wan t the

amount set at, the tax expense set at?

A. (St. Cyr) I think, from a practical standpoint, w hat

will actually take place, is the Company will file its

2012 tax return, with an amount that indicates what  the

tax liability will be.  At that point, the Company

doesn't anticipate having the cash to pay that

liability.  So, it would expect to either file with  the

return or file shortly after that a form that would

allow it to pay its 2012 tax obligation on an

installment basis.  And, then, --

Q. Excuse me.  I'll actually let you continue.  Go a head,

I'm sorry.

A. (St. Cyr) And, then, assuming that the -- or, as the

Company has proposed, with the incorporation of its

emergency in -- emergency rates in place, it then
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begins to collect the money from customers, based o n

that emergency rate increase.  Well, those monies w ould

be used in part to pay the 2012 tax and, in part, t o

begin to set aside estimated taxes for 2013.

Q. Mr. St. Cyr, what -- I guess my question was a li ttle

different.  I appreciate the information.  You're

asking the Commission to approve an amount, based o n

what?  What is that amount?

A. (St. Cyr) The amount is based on what it expects to

incur in 2012.  That amount is grossed up for the

revenue associated with that, in order to pay not o nly

the tax, but then the increase in the revenue.

Q. So, you are -- you have estimated your 2013 tax

liability, and that is the basis for the amount you 're

asking for approval?

A. (St. Cyr) We have not estimated our 2012 tax liab ility

-- 2013 tax liability.  We're using what we expect our

2012 tax liability to be as the basis for an adjust ment

in rates.

Q. Which will then be used to pay 2013 taxes?  

A. (St. Cyr) It would be -- it would be used to pay a

combination of the outstanding liability from 2012,  and

estimated payments for 2013.

Q. And the -- okay.  Thank you.  And the reconciliat ion of
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that amount, could you explain that to me.  So, you 'll

have -- you'll have an amount in your rates going

forward that's equal to what you're expecting your 2012

tax liability to be.  And, then, what will be

reconciled?

A. (St. Cyr) To the extent that the actual tax liabi lity

is different than the tax liability that we're -- w e

have submitted as part of this proceeding, the Comp any

is prepared to adjust that up or down.

Q. And, when you talk about actual tax liability, ar e you

referring to 2012, 2013 or something else?

A. (St. Cyr) I'm referring to 2012.

Q. Okay.  Would you agree that that would almost put  the

Company in a position it would have been had those tax

expenses been -- oh, strike that.  Sorry.  You have

both, Mr. Mason and Mr. St. Cyr, you both participa ted

in rate cases at the Commission before, correct?  

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  That's correct.

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. And, typically, would you agree that the Commissi on

typically processes rate cases within a 12-month

period?  Typically?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  Typically, that's true.

Q. With some exceptions.  So, would you both agree t hat it
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could be a number of months before you would, under  the

Company's proposal to do the reconciliation, that y ou

would be -- it could be up to 12 months that that w ould

occur?  Is that what your proposal is?

A. (St. Cyr) I don't know as we made a specific prop osal.

But I would anticipate that, as soon as the tax ret urn

is completed, that it would be filed with the

Commission.  And, that the Company would, you know,

make that reconciliation -- make that difference kn own

and have a proposal for reconciliation upon, you kn ow,

its filing of the tax return with the Commission.

Q. Okay.  That's helpful to know.  Because I do beli eve or

it was my impression that the Company was seeking t o

have the reconciliation done in conjunction with it s

next rate case.  And, if that's not filed until the

spring, and it may not be processed for a number of

months, it could be some time before that

reconciliation would occur.  And, that's not what

you're proposing, is that correct?

A. (St. Cyr) Well, I think the Company has said that  it's

prepared to reconcile it, whether it's in this

proceeding or a rate case.  It would -- it's prepar ed

to do it either way, whichever really works.

Q. Okay.  That's a new statement of the Company, tho ugh,

     {DW 13-041} [RE: Emergency Rates] {03-06-13/Da y 1}

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24



    39
             [WITNESS PANEL:  Mason|Dawson|St. Cyr]

and I'll just let the record speak for itself.  Tha nk

you.  Who estimated the -- who did the estimation o f

the income tax liability for 2012?

A. (St. Cyr) Mr. Roberge did the actual calculation,  and I

reviewed it and agreed with it.

Q. Thank you.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Excuse me for one

moment.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. If I could just take you both back a little bit t o the

Company's last rate case.  And, I think the people in

this room generally know what occurred in that rate

case, but if we could just kind of cover that, and you

talk about it in your testimony.  We did just concl ude

a rate case last year, which was DW 10-141, correct ?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. And, in that case, the Company received a 21.5 pe rcent

increase in its revenues, is that correct?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. And, that was based on a 2009 test year?

A. (St. Cyr) An adjusted 2009 test year, yes.

Q. And, it include a step adjustment for certain cap ital

expenditures?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.
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Q. And, after that approval in July of 2012, the Com pany

received -- also received approval to recover

recoupment of the difference between temporary and

permanent rates, correct?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. And, they also received -- and that was in an amo unt of

approximately $52,000, subject to check?

A. (St. Cyr) 53,616, subject to check.

Q. Thank you.  Thank you.  And, that was to be colle cted

over 12 months, correct?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes, that's correct.

Q. And, the Company also received approval to recove r

approximately $152,000 of rate case expenses, corre ct?

A. (St. Cyr) That is also correct.

Q. As well as approximately $81,000 in a deferred as set to

be activated, I guess, for lack of a better word, i n

the next rate case, is that correct?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  That is correct.

Q. Thank you.  The Company asked for recovery of tax

expense -- income tax expense in that last case, di d it

not?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes, we did.

Q. And, the Commission -- that request was opposed b y the

Staff and the OCA, correct?
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A. (St. Cyr) Yes, that's correct.

Q. And, the Commission ultimately decided that it wo uld

not include in the calculation of the Company's rev enue

requirement an allowance for income tax expense, is

that correct?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Madam Chair, if I may

just ask the OCA a question?  I don't recall that t he OCA

opposed the request.  Am I incorrect or --

MS. HOLLENBERG:  My recollection is that

we filed testimony, you'll have to excuse me, becau se I

came in late to that case.  But my recollection is that

OCA also filed testimony that opposed the inclusion  in the

calculation of the revenue requirement of income ta x

expenses.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Okay.  Thank you.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. So, the hearing in the permanent rate case was in  the

Spring of 2012, right?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. And, it was at that time or just before that time  that

the Company filed an amended 2010 Annual Report,

correct?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.
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Q. And, that annual report made some adjustments to 2010.

And, could you describe those adjustments please.

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  The adjustments were primarily fo r the

reclassification of what was initially pension, hea lth,

and interest expense to return on capital.

Q. And, the Company explains in its filing that it m ade

those adjustments to the annual report on account o f

testimony filed by Staff in October of 2011, correc t?

A. (St. Cyr) Well, the Company made the adjustments

because the -- what it had originally described as

"pension", "health care", and "interest expense" we re

no longer valid expenses.  And, as a result, it cha nged

the way in which it accounted for those transaction s.

Q. So, the Company chose to reclassify those expense s and

recast them in the annual report, and they also cho se

to reclassify those expenses in several tax -- seve ral

prior tax returns, correct?

A. (St. Cyr) I don't think "chose" is the right word .  But

what was initially presented by the Company as an

expense was later determined not to be a valid expe nse.

When the Company accepted Staff and OCA's position that

such transactions weren't appropriate expenses, it

didn't -- in its view, it didn't have a choice.  It

wasn't something it decided to do or not to do.  It  was
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obligated to reclassify those transactions.

Q. Thank you.  Actually, you do -- the Company does use

the word "obligated" to adjust its earnings and rev ise

its tax returns for prior years in its filing.  And ,

Mr. Mason, you actually, in your testimony, on Page  9,

you state "I personally asked the Company's account ant

and others to evaluate whether the Company could

lawfully avoid amending its tax returns or avoid it s

2012 federal or state income tax liability.

Unfortunately, once the Company accepted Staff's

recommendation to reclassify", and it says

"persuasive", I'm not sure if that's correct, "and

other expenses as income, and its shareholder loans  as

equity, it had no other legal alternative but to am end

its prior returns, which resulted in its net operat ing

losses" carry-forwards, which isn't there, "and oth er

deductions being exhausted in 2011."  Did I read th at

correctly?

A. (Mason) That's correct.  Yes.

Q. Who did you consult with to determine your obliga tion

to adjust your earnings and revise your tax returns ?

A. (Mason) I talked to Steve and Norm, both.  Those are

the two people that, you know, my people that do th ose

types of things.
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Q. Okay.  And, what other legal alternatives did the

Company consider?

A. (Mason) None.

Q. Okay.  So, did the Company ask for the money back  from

the shareholders?

A. (Mason) No.

Q. Did the Company consider booking the expense as b elow

the line?

A. (Mason) No.

Q. Mr. St. Cyr, do you agree that, if they had booke d the

expense below the line, that would have reduced the

Company's earnings?

A. (St. Cyr) I guess, just to pick up on what Mr. Ma son

said, I do believe there was some discussion in-hou se

about whether to treat the transaction above the li ne

versus below the line.  And, the determination was made

that, if it wasn't a valid expense, then it didn't seem

appropriate to put it either above or below did lin e.

Q. So, you did -- you both are familiar with a Depar tment

of Corrections fine in a criminal case involving th e

Company, correct?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. And, do you recall that that fine was not include d for
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the purposes of setting rates in DW 10-141, is that

correct?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. And, do you recall that the Company treated that as an

expense below the line?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  I do recall that.

Q. Thank you.  Do you know what the monthly fine pay ment

was for that fine?

A. (Mason) Roughly $3,000.

Q. And, is it correct that the Company, excuse me,

finished paying the fine in October of 2012?

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. Did the Company consult with the IRS about its

obligation to amend its tax returns?

A. (St. Cyr) No, it did not.

Q. Has the Company consulted with the IRS since it's

amended its tax returns about making payments on th e

2012 tax?

A. (St. Cyr) It has not.  At this point, the return hasn't

been filed and the obligation is unaware to the IRS .

Q. Okay.  Thank you.  Could the Company -- strike th at.

Did the Company perform any analysis, at the time t hat

it made the changes to its tax returns, about the

consequences of doing that?  I guess, a formal
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analysis?  Anything that you documented?

A. (St. Cyr) I guess I'm not really sure, by the ter m

"analysis".  The Company was aware, at the time in

which it was amending both the annual reports and t he

tax returns, that the result of that would increase

income.

Q. I guess I was wondering if the Company at that ti me

also analyzed other impacts that the change would h ave,

in terms of its expected capital investment in the next

year or anything -- did the Company consider anythi ng,

in terms of how and when it was going to do this

amendment?

A. (St. Cyr) I don't specifically remember.  As we m ade

the adjustments to the PUC annual report and the ta x

return, we were certainly aware of the impact of th at,

both on the balance sheet and the income statement,  and

its impact on the Company's financial position in

general.

Q. Uh-huh.  Okay.  Thank you.  You did mention, I be lieve

one of the witnesses mentioned that it had -- that the

Company had consulted with the Staff about the

amendment to the 2010 Annual Report.  Could you tal k

about that please.

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  I think the consultation was prim arily
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around the need to file individual amended annual

reports versus filing one amended report that inclu ded

the cumulation of the adjustments over the years.

Q. Uh-huh.

A. (St. Cyr) And, after consultation with the Audit Staff,

it was determined that one -- the filing of one ame nded

annual report, the 2010 Annual Report, would be

appropriate.

Q. So, who did you consult with of the Commission St aff

please?

A. (St. Cyr) That was Mr. Roberge talking with Mr. H odgdon

from the Audit Staff.  

Q. Thank you.  Yes.

A. (St. Cyr) The PUC Audit Staff.

Q. Thank you.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  One moment please.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. Who amended the tax returns?

A. (St. Cyr) Mr. Roberge would have done the actual

amending of the tax return.

Q. Thank you.  Can you explain the amendments to the  2008

and 2009 tax returns, relate to the pension and

healthcare expense issue that came up in the rate c ase.

The 2007 amendment relates to recasting or
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recategorizing certain debt to equity.  Can you exp lain

why that was done?

A. (St. Cyr) These were amounts that the Masons had

provided to the Company to fund probably mostly cap ital

improvements, but some operations.  They would have

been reflected on the books initially as a liabilit y.

There would have been interest accrued on that

liability.  And, at some point, those obligations w ere

converted to additional paid-in capital.  So, the

amendments would have been related to the

reclassification of the liability to additional pai d-in

capital.

Q. And, that -- and, just for my understanding, that  debt,

do you recall what rate that debt earned, in terms of a

return?

A. (St. Cyr) I believe the rate was the cost of equi ty.  I

want to say 9.75 percent.

Q. So, there wasn't a change in terms of the return that

they would have earned by recategorizing, is that

correct?  Either way, they earned 9.75, right?  Or 9.

-- the ROE?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  I think that's true, yes.

Q. But it did have an impact of increasing, by conve rting

from debt to equity, and reversing the interest
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expense, you increase income, correct?

A. (St. Cyr) By reversing the interest expense, you would

increase income, yes.

Q. And, in reversing -- and, in increasing income, t he

Company used up a portion of its net operating loss

carry-forwards, which were the basis for Staff's an d

the OCA's recommendation about tax expense in the l ast

rate case, is that correct?

A. (St. Cyr) That, and the pension and health.  It w asn't

just the interest, it was really the three expenses .

Q. And, by making these changes for these associated

expenses, the Company used up its -- or, the positi on

of the Company is that it used up its net operating

loss carry-forwards and its Section 179 deductions

during the 2011 tax year, is that correct?

A. (St. Cyr) Well, each year it would have used a po rtion

of whatever was available during that year.  And, t hen,

to the extent that there was additional net operati ng

losses or Section 179 deductions, that would have b een

carried to the next year and then used in that year .

Q. Uh-huh.

A. (St. Cyr) And, it was all used up in 2011.

Q. Okay.  Thank you.  That's a much better way of

explaining what I just said.  The Company has incur red
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interest expense on the 2012 tax liability?  You ex pect

that?

A. (St. Cyr) We do expect that.  I don't know as we have

recorded that just yet.  But we do expect that the

non-payment of the tax would incur both penalties a nd

interest.

Q. And, do you know what the rate, I mean, what are we

looking at, in terms of the amount of interest and

penalties?  What's that?

A. (St. Cyr) I don't know what that would be offhand , no.

Q. Okay.  Thank you.  I asked you earlier if you had

contacted the IRS about to seek advice, and you had

said "no".  And, I wondered, I'm asking now just to

close out the question, if you sought any advice ab out

the amendments to the returns or your tax liability

with the New Hampshire Department of Revenue

Administration?

A. (St. Cyr) We did not.

Q. Thank you.  Mr. Mason, if I could have you turn t o

Page 7 of your testimony please.

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. At Lines 10 to 13, if you could just -- you state

there, "On December 12th, 2011, the Company filed

testimony and schedules that sought an allowance fo r
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federal and state income taxes that the Company

expected to incur in 2012."  Did I read that correc tly?

A. (Mason) Yes, you did.

Q. And, then, you state "The issue was an important one as

the Company estimated at that time that it would in cur

$68,000 in tax liability based on its book income."   Is

that correct?

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. And, the Company at that time, in December 2011, had

yet to amend its tax returns for 2007 to 2009, is t hat

correct?

A. (Mason) I believe so, yes.

Q. So, at that point, the Company estimated it would  owe

68,000 in tax liability, but also at that point the

Company had over $200,000 of federal carry -- net

operating loss carry-forwards, correct?

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. And, it also had over 200,000 in state net operat ing

loss carry-forwards, is that correct?

A. (Mason) Actually, on both those numbers, I don't know

the exact number.  I should probably rephrase that.

Q. I believe it's in -- I just have to find it in my  notes

here.

A. (Mason) That might be a better question for Steve .  Do
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you know the answer to that, Steve?

Q. Okay.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  If I could approach the

witness?

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Please.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  It's a collaborative

effort this morning, isn't it?  That's so nice.  

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. Mr. Mason, if I could just have you look, this is

testimony that was filed by Mr. Laflamme in the las t

rate case, 10-141.  

MS. HOLLENBERG:  And, Justin, do you

want to take a look at it?  Sorry.

WITNESS MASON:  Sure.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. So, on Page 10 of that testimony, --

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. -- I believe it states the amount of net loss

carry-forward.  So, it says "In its response, the

Company stated that its federal net operating loss

carry-forward was $228,981, and its state net opera ting

loss carry-forward was 200,069" -- I'm going to say

that -- 

A. (Mason) 269,000.  
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Q. "$269,600", is that correct?

A. (Mason) Yes.  That's what it says.  I don't know that

that's correct, though.  

Q. So, would you --

A. (St. Cyr) Just in terms of, I'm looking at the 20 09

Federal Income Tax, and it specifically states on t he

tax return the available NOL carry-forward from pri or

years is $228,981, just as Mr. Laflamme indicated i n

his testimony.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Madam Chair?  I'm happy

to give as much leeway as possible to all the parti es who

want to ask questions.  But I would ask that, if th e

parties know they're going to use exhibits on cross , that

they make a copy available to me, because I missed what's

happened.  I don't know how I could use it on redir ect.

I'm going to have to find the document to look at i t.  I

think, you know, I'm happy to proceed, and I want t o get

to the merits of the issue.  But, you know, at some  point,

if the cross is going to go through documents, I th ink

it's fair to ask that the documents be -- that copi es be

made available.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  It is a fair

request.  And, it looks like maybe some copying is

underway.
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MS. HOLLENBERG:  Yes.  We're going to

make a copy.  I apologize.  I did take for granted,  I

thought that the new procedure at the Commission wa s, so

long as it's filed in the proceeding, but I forgot that

this is a separate proceeding.  So, I did not bring

copies.  And, it looks like the Staff does have som e

additional copies.  So, if I need to ask a question  about

it, I can redo that question, if that's helpful?

MR. RICHARDSON:  No.  No, that's fine.

But, if someone has the document, does Staff have a  copy

of it?

MS. BROWN:  Staff has a copy of the

entire document, but I thought what was only releva nt were

the -- what is the amount of the carry-forwards, wh ich

were both identified in Mr. Laflamme's testimony, a nd also

in the tax returns, I thought Mr. St. Cyr had cited , which

is already marked as Exhibit 4.  Is that correct, M r. St.

Cyr?

WITNESS ST. CYR:  Yes.  In fact, the

2009 tax returns are provided in response to Staff 1-1.

And, the amounts cited in the testimony are on thos e tax

returns.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  So, Ms. Hollenberg,

just so I understand, because I didn't follow all t he
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numbers.  The number in the Exhibit 4, are you seek ing to

bring out an additional number that's somehow diffe rent

from that, from the 2009 carry-forward?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  No.  I actually was

just looking for an agreement that there was over $ 200,000

of net operating loss carry-forwards for both state  and

federal purposes, as of December 2009.  That was re ally

the only question I had.  And, I was attempting to

inartfully draw that out from the witness.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  So, it sounds like

both the Company's witness and the Staff testimony from

the prior case both confirmed for you that it was o ver

$200,000.  It may be that we don't need a lot more on that

document.  You weren't challenging either of those

numbers, you were just trying to show a kind of bal lpark

of where they were, over $200,000?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Yes, ma'am.  Yes.  And,

I apologize, it's December 2011 that these net oper ating

loss carry-forwards existed.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.

WITNESS ST. CYR:  Actually, those

existed at December 31, 2009.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. Okay.  And, what was the status at December 2011,
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before the tax returns were amended?

A. (St. Cyr) The 2011 tax return was not amended.  T he

last tax return to be amended was 2009.

Q. I understand that.  But would that not be based u pon

the amended returns?  I'm trying to get a look at w hat

2000 -- so, you hadn't filed 2011 taxes as of the d ay

that you amended your 2007, 2008, 2009?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. Okay.

A. (St. Cyr) And, just to answer the earlier part of  that

question, is there would not have been any net

operating losses available, or what was available f or

2011 was utilized during 2011.  So, at the end of 2 011,

there is now nothing more available for future year s.

Q. What was available -- what was, in December of 20 11,

what was the last tax return that was available?

A. (St. Cyr) That would have been December 2010.  At

December 31, 2011, the Company would not have filed  its

2011 return until some number of months later.  So,  at

that time, the only -- the most recent tax return w ould

have been the 2010 return.

Q. Actually, in the filing, the Company states that it

filed its 2010 in May of 2012.  So, now, I'm very

confused.
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CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  And, let's be really

clear.  When we talk about filing returns, we have the

initial returns and we have amended returns.  And, so,

there may be some confusion over which filings we'r e

talking about.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  If I could just have a

minute please?  Thank you.

MR. RICHARDSON:  If I may state my

understanding, I believe the 2010 return did not ne ed to

be amended, because it wasn't filed until after 201 1.

And, yes, Mr. Roberge is nodding his head.  So, wha t

Mr. St. Cyr had said about the 2010 return being av ailable

at that time, it was actually filed shortly after

December 2011.  So, the 2009 was the last return to  be

amended.  The 2010 was simply filed late.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Let me ask this.  If

this is going to be an ongoing issue, where it make s a

difference when things were filed, and I don't know  if it

is, but, if that's important, I'd like during a bre ak for

somebody to develop just a chart of dates, of initi al

filing, amended filing, for those that were amended , and

then subsequent ones that were filed.  This is the kind of

thing that doesn't do well on cross-examination.  A nd,

yet, it may be fairly straightforward, it's just a matter
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of sitting quietly and making a chart.  We're about  to go

to a break anyway.  So, maybe somebody can pull tha t

together before we resume.

MR. RICHARDSON:  We can do that.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.  Would

this be a time to take a break or are you close to being

concluded?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  This is a good time to

take a break.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Okay.  Then, why

don't we do it.  It's almost 10:30.  We will resume  at

10:45.

(Recess taken at 10:29 a.m. and the 

hearing resumed at 10:54 a.m.) 

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  We're

back after a break.  And, Ms. Hollenberg, your ques tioning

the witnesses, yes?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Yes.  Thank you.

MR. RICHARDSON:  If I may, before we

begin?  

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Please.

MR. RICHARDSON:  I had the Company

prepare the list of returns, when they were filed, when

they were amended.  I've provided that to all the p arties.
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I suggest we offer it at this point, just to make s ure I

do it before we forget.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Sure.  That was very

quick work.  I appreciate that.

MR. RICHARDSON:  I'll represent that

this is taken off of the returns that are marked in

response to Staff 1 and 2 that are in LRW Exhibit 4 .

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.

MR. RICHARDSON:  And, I'll provide that

to the Commission now, unless there's an objection.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  So, we'll mark that

for identification as "Exhibit 7".

(The document, as described, was 

herewith marked as Exhibit 7 for 

identification.) 

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  So, this is a

handwritten listing of Lakes Region Water Company's  tax

filings 2007 through '11, the original filing date,  and

the amendment filing date, for those that had amend ments

filed.  And, this was prepared by Mr. Richardson, w ith

input from the tax returns that are in the Exhibit 4?

MR. RICHARDSON:  That's correct, except

Mr. Roberge prepared it.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.
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MR. RICHARDSON:  It would have taken

considerably longer if I had attempted to do it.  O ne

other just house cleaning -- housekeeping matter.  I

neglected to introduce the Company's 2011 Annual Re port,

which I thought might be helpful for just completin g the

record.  I was going to do that as "Exhibit 7".  I have it

here.  I don't know if any -- I mean, I don't plan to use

it, I don't know if any of the parties need it.  Bu t I

thought it might help the Commission, if it needed that

information, to make it part of the record.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  And, that was filed

with the Commission when?

MR. RICHARDSON:  That would have been

about the same time as the 2011 tax return, I belie ve May

23rd.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Of 2012?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Sorry.  2000 -- 2012,

May 23rd, 2012.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Any response from

OCA or the Staff?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  I don't have any

objection to it being marked as an exhibit.

MS. BROWN:  Staff has no objection.  I

don't think we're going to be using it though.
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MS. HOLLENBERG:  I don't either.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  You think you will

not be using it, but no objection?

MS. BROWN:  Correct.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  I guess

I just wonder, putting it in the record, no one's o pposed

to it, but towards what end?  Why don't we see if t here's

issues that arise that really need reference to it.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Okay.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.

Ms. Hollenberg.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Thank you.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. Let's try this again.  One quick question before going

back to you on the questions I had right before we

broke.  Either for Mr. Mason or for Mr. St. Cyr.  W hat

was the basis of your conclusion that the Company w as

obligated to amend its tax returns?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  The basis was that the Company no

longer had a valid expense that it used for both bo ok

and tax purposes.  And, because it no longer had a

valid expense, it was then obligated to amend both the,

you know, internal financial statements, the PUC an nual

reports, and the tax returns.
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Q. And, what is your basis for understanding that th ey

were obligated?  Do you have -- is there a law?  Is

there a rule?  Is there a policy?  Is there somethi ng

that you looked to to make that recommendation?

A. (St. Cyr) I guess I can't specifically point to a  law,

per se.  The common practice is that, if an error is

discovered subsequent to the filing of a tax return ,

then, you know, you're required to amend the tax

return.  You know, we can argue whether this was an

error or not, and I guess I think of it in terms of

more of a reclassification.  But, in our view, it w as

material, and we no longer had a valid expense, and  we

really had no choice but to amend the tax returns.

Q. Okay.  Thank you.  Okay.  The Commission now has before

it what's been marked as "Lakes Region Water Exhibi t

7".  Do you have that in front of you?  It's the

timeline, for lack of a better description, of the

filings of the different tax returns?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes, I do.

Q. And, I was asking you before we left, before we b roke,

I was talking to you about a specific period of tim e,

which is December 2011.  We are in the midst of the

rate case at that point in time.  At that point in

time, Staff has -- Staff and the OCA have filed
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testimony saying that the Company has over $200,000  in

state net operating loss carry-forward and over

$200,000 in federal net operating loss carry-forwar d,

is that collect?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. As of December 2011, the last filed tax return is  the

2009 tax return, is that correct?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. That is before the 2007, 2008, and 2009 tax retur ns

have been amended, is that correct?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. Around this time, in December, the Company filed a

response -- responsive testimony in the rate case t o

the Staff and the OCA's position about income tax

expense, is that correct?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. And, in that -- and, at that time, in December of  2011,

based on the 2009 tax return, the Company had enoug h

net operating loss carry-forward to cover its taxes

going forward in the next year, is that correct?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. So, it was -- so, at that point in time, even tho ugh

the Company estimated a certain amount of tax liabi lity

for 2010, the net operating loss carry-forwards wou ld
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cover that at that time?

A. (St. Cyr) I think that's true, yes.

Q. In the responsive testimony in 10-141 that the Co mpany

filed in December of 2011, the Company expected at that

time that they would owe income taxes, estimated th at

it would owe approximately $68,000 in income tax, i s

that correct?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  That's correct.

Q. The 2010 tax return was filed after the amendment s to

2007, 2008, and 2009, correct?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  And, one moment please.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Take your time.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. You -- the Company provided, in response to disco very,

copies of its 2007, 2008, and 2009 amended tax retu rns,

correct?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. As well as providing copies of the original 2010 and

2011 tax returns, correct?

A. (St. Cyr) Correct.

Q. And, those were -- that has been marked as "Lakes

Region Water Exhibit 4" in this docket?
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A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. I want to ask you about, you made a statement in your

testimony about how, for the 2010 return, you had

incorporated the changes made in the amendments for

2007, 2008, and 2009.  Do you recall that?  I can

direct you to your testimony, too.

A. (St. Cyr) I recall that.

Q. One moment please.  So, I was referring to your

testimony at Page 4, Lines 8 to 9.  I apologize.  I 'll

be right with you.  And, if you could please turn, I'd

like to actually look at two different pages, I'd l ike

to look at Page 88, which is in LRW Exhibit 4, the

Company's response to Staff 1-1, and it's Schedule L

for the -- for the amended 2009 tax return.  And, o nce

you get there, let me know and I'll give you anothe r

page to look at.  

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Excuse me, that was

Page 88?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Yes.  Exhibit 4,

Page 88.

BY THE WITNESS: 

A. (St. Cyr) I have Page 88 in front of me.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. Okay.  And, then, if you could go to Staff 1-2, a nd

     {DW 13-041} [RE: Emergency Rates] {03-06-13/Da y 1}

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24



    66
             [WITNESS PANEL:  Mason|Dawson|St. Cyr]

look at Page 6, which is Schedule L for the 2010 re turn

please.  If I could have you look on both of those

pages at Line Number 18, which is "other current

liabilities".

A. (St. Cyr) I'm having trouble finding the second p age.

If you just could help me?

Q. Sure.  It's response to Staff 1-2.

A. (St. Cyr) 1-2.

Q. And, it's Page 6.  And, it's Page 6, which is the

Schedule L from the 2010 tax return.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Is that in --

WITNESS ST. CYR:  Okay.  And, Schedule L

being the balance sheet.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  It's in Exhibit 4 as

well.  Both of the pages are in Exhibit 4.  One is a part

of Staff 1-1, the Page 88, and one is a part of Sta ff 1-2,

which is the Page 6.  Do you have those?

WITNESS ST. CYR:  I believe I have that,

yes.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Okay.  

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. And, if we could look at Line 18, please, of the 2009

amended return, which is the Page 88.  And, you wil l

see there that the ending balance there is
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"$4,400.52" [$4,452 ?].  Do you see that?

A. (St. Cyr) No.

Q. In the column, in the last column, there's a

handwritten notation.  It says "$4,452"?

A. (St. Cyr) The Page 88 that I'm looking for, I do not

believe is the same page you're looking at.  If you

wouldn't mind just approaching and --

Q. Sure.

A. (St. Cyr) -- let me see what you're looking at.

Q. Sure.  And, to be clear, I didn't understand, I t hink

that the copies of these that went out may have bee n

Bates stamped.  And, so, there are several -- there  are

a couple of different page numbers.  And, the 88 pa ge

number that I'm referring is handwritten.  Okay?

MR. RICHARDSON:  And, I apologize.  I

realized at about 9:00 last night that all of the

responses, which were Bates stamped electronically,  for

some reason, in the middle, the page numbers are cu t off.

Once it gets up to about Page 100, you can see half  of

them there.  I have no idea what happened.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  That's okay.  We'll

figure it out.

WITNESS ST. CYR:  I'm on Schedule 11

[Schedule L,] the balance sheet for 2009, according to the
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amended tax return.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. Thank you.  And, on Line 18, do you see the numbe r on

the far right column that is "$4,452"?

A. (St. Cyr) I do see that number, yes.

Q. And, if you could look at the Page 6 of 2-1, Staf f 2-1

in Exhibit 4.  And, look at that line.  So, that's the

ending balance for 2009 you just talked about, the

4,452.  And, if you could look at the beginning bal ance

in Line 18 on the 2010 tax return.  Do you see that  it

says "80,910"?

A. (St. Cyr) I do see that, yes.

Q. Why would that be different?

A. (St. Cyr) Offhand, I don't know.  That's somethin g that

we could certainly provide.  I'm looking at the tot al

for the balance sheet is the same.  So, offhand, I

don't know why that particular beginning balance wo uld

be different than the ending balance.  We could

certainly provide that, if that's necessary.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Okay.  I guess at this

point there are a few other discrepancies that I wo uld

like to identify with the witness, and then perhaps  the

Company could take a record request to respond, if

Mr. Roberge is not able to do that today.
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CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  And,

your final point about Mr. Roberge, he is here, and  so

perhaps he can explain that at another point.

MR. ROBERGE:  Yes.  

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Not yet.  Thank you.  

MR. ROBERGE:  Okay.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Thank you so much.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  But, if you do have

some others along those lines, make sure that,

Mr. Roberge, you're keeping track of what the issue s are.

And, then, when it's appropriate, we'll get you to go

through them as --

MS. HOLLENBERG:  That will be great.

Thank you.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. So, we talked about Line 18.  I'd like to talk ab out

Line 19 next, "Loans from shareholders".  In the

amended 2009 return, this is zero.  And, in the 201 0,

this is Line 19, 2010, it's -- the beginning balanc e is

"$190,855".  Do you see that?

A. (St. Cyr) I do.

Q. And, again, no understanding at this point in tim e why

there would be a discrepancy?

A. (St. Cyr) Not specifically, no.
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Q. Thank you.  And, Line 23 please, "additional paid -in

capital".  In the amended, in Schedule L of the ame nded

2009 tax return, that amount is reflected as

"$1,063,556", correct?

A. (St. Cyr) Correct.

Q. And, in the beginning balance of 2010, that is

reflected as "$942,080", correct?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.  In fact, as I look at all

three of those amounts, it looks like the amended

amounts on the 2009 tax returns weren't carried for ward

to the beginning balances of the 2010.  It looks li ke

the reclassification.

Q. Okay.  And, if you could also, I guess I won't do  it, I

won't specifically go through the last three, but I

would ask you to also look at Line 25, and, in Sche dule

M, Lines 8 and Lines 1.

A. (St. Cyr) Okay.  We can do that.  Although, I gue ss I

would point out, the fact that the beginning balanc es

may be different wouldn't change, you know, what th e

tax would be on this return or the utilization of a ny

NOLs or Section 179 deductions.

Q. Okay.  If the Company could, though, at some poin t

provide an explanation of why they're not different  and

what impact they would have on the differences betw een
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the two, and the fact that they're not -- that the 2009

information has not been incorporated into the 2010 , if

we could have an explanation of what impact that ha s on

the future tax years.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  We won't reserve a

record request.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Okay.  

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Let's see if

Mr. Roberge can address that later.  And, if not, w e'll

see if we need anything further.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Thank you.

MR. RICHARDSON:  I thought the witness

answered the question of what the impact would be.  Did I

misunderstand or --

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  He did speak to

that.  I think Mr. Roberge also, I assume you were going

to follow up with him, as the one who prepares it, on

whether there's any impact of the difference.  But,  you're

correct, Mr. St. Cyr said it wouldn't make any diff erence.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  I think what he said

was, and the record will speak for itself, but was

something to the effect that "it wouldn't impact th e net

operating loss carry-forward or the Section 179", h ow

those were handled.  But I was asking if there were  other
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-- I was wondering if there were other impacts.  An d, I

can address that with Mr. Roberge, if he does expla in

that.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. Mr. St. Cyr and Mr. Mason --

MS. HOLLENBERG:  One moment please.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. I guess I'll ask you this, but I'll ask Mr. Rober ge.

Is it your sense, even though, I mean, you have yet  to

look into this really thoroughly, but would there b e

amendments to 2009 -- '10 and 2011 tax returns if - - as

a result of these discrepancies?

A. (St. Cyr) Assuming that the ending balances are

correct, I would say "no".  There would be no mater ial

impact on the return, and it wouldn't require -- an d it

wouldn't require us to file an amendment, no.

Q. Assuming the end balances are the same?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. Thank you.  Mr. St. Cyr or Mr. Mason, is it an ac curate

statement to say that the Company used earnings in 2011

and 2012 to pay for capital investments?

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. And, is it a fair characterization of the Company  that
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-- the Company's position that it was because of th is

use of earnings for capital investment that the Com pany

didn't have money to pay its taxes, its estimated

taxes?  

A. (Mason) The taxes were never in rates.  So, I don 't

think that -- we chose to take and reinvest the mon ey

that we earned into our plant, which is what all sm all

utilities do, as far as I know.

Q. You chose to make investment in capital -- you ch ose to

make investment in capital, as opposed to paying th e

estimated taxes, is that correct?

A. (Mason) Well, we have to, you know, we have to be

compliant with the DES.  So, we have to reinvest mo ney

that -- and where that comes a lot of times is from  the

earnings of the Company.  Whether we pay taxes or n ot,

there was no taxes in the rates to ever pay the tax es.

Q. You had --

A. (St. Cyr) Just to add to that, I would just say, at

that time, you know, we were still arguing for an

increase in rates to include taxes.  So, you know, we

knew that there was no provision in rates for taxes ,

and we were still arguing for that to be included.

And, had we been successful, we then might have bee n

able to use that additional money to pay the 2000 - -
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whatever the tax was.

Q. I'm not judging how you used your money.  I'm jus t

looking for confirmation from you that you used you r

earnings to make capital investment during 2011 and

2012, right?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. And, you didn't make tax payments in 2012, correc t?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. Okay.  You make -- there's a question, Mr. Mason,  in

your testimony, if you turn to Page 9 please.

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. At Line 21, the question states "Why didn't the C ompany

use earnings from its allowed rate of return to mak e

estimated tax payments?"  And, your response is "Th e

Company has consistently earned well below a suffic ient

return", is that correct?

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. In your testimony, on Page 10, Lines 3 to 9, do y ou

provide some information about the Company's rate o f

return for 2007 through 2010, is that correct?

A. (Mason) Right.  Yes.

Q. And, you would agree that the Company earned more  than

its authorized rate of return -- return on equity i n

2011, correct?
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A. (Mason) Yes.  Hang on just a second.  In 2011, it  would

be "yes".

Q. Okay.  And, your return -- your authorized return  on

equity is what?

A. (Mason) It's 8.425.

Q. Is that the return on equity or the rate of retur n?

A. (Mason) Oh, I'm sorry, 9.75 is the return on equi ty.

Q. Okay.  Thank you.  And, if I could just approach,  or

ask you to look at Exhibit Staff -- or, Lakes Regio n

Exhibit 4.  And, if you could look at the Company's

response to Staff 1-3 please.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Is that Page 161, I

think?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  I don't actually have

a --

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  It would be Tab 3 in

the packet?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Thank you.  

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. And, this question, Staff 1-3, asks for the Compa ny to

provide its actual rate of return for 2012.  And,

Attachment 1-3 provides that calculation.  And, if you
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look at the fourth and third line from the bottom, the

actual rate of return is listed as "8.717", and you r

authorized rate of return is "8.425", correct?

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. So, and I apologize, I was talking about return o n

equity before.  But you would agree that, in both 2 011

and 2012, the Company earned more than its authoriz ed

rate of return?

A. (Mason) In raw data.  And, what happened was --

Q. Excuse me, just "yes" or "no", and then I'm happy  for

you to explain.  

A. (Mason) Okay.  Yes, we did.

Q. Thank you.

A. (Mason) And, the reasoning is that we had rate

recoupment that increased the money that came in in

2012 by about $45,000.  That impacted the amount of

money in the rate of return, because this is just r aw

data.  So, the actuality is, we did not.  You know,  if

you have all that data, it's not quite the same.  A nd,

you know, yes, that's my answer.

Q. Can you tell me, during this period of time when you

had earnings above your authorized rate of return, and

you were using those earnings to make capital

investments, why did the Company not seek outside
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financing, either debt or equity?  Or, did the Comp any,

I guess is the better question?

A. (Mason) No, we didn't.

Q. Okay.  And, why is that?

A. (Mason) We -- Well, equity, definitely we didn't.   As

far as the banks, we have talked to them about

refinancing some of the notes.  But, again, they're

pretty hard to -- they don't consider us a great ri sk.

So, even the bank that holds the notes today wasn't

really interested in rewriting them.

Q. When did you speak with the banks and which banks  did

you speak with?

A. (Mason) I talked with CoBank, I've talked with th e bank

that has the notes now, which is TD BankNorth -- Ba nk,

TD Bank.  And, those are the two that I've contacte d.

Q. Okay.  And, when about was that?

A. (Mason) TD Bank, I mean, I talk to all the time.  We've

been talking about this for, you know, for a year.

CoBank I recently contacted, and we now have a pack et.

We haven't actually gotten anything from them yet.  We

started the process of talking to them.

Q. Did you have any investments, capital investments  that

were required by DES that you weren't able to

accomplish because you didn't have access to financ ing?
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A. (Mason) No.

Q. And, what is the Company's status with DES at thi s

point in time?

A. (Mason) Jake would probably know better than I wo uld.

Q. Okay.  Let's -- yes, thank you.

A. (Dawson) At this point in time, it's very good.  The

only outstanding LOD that we have, which is

semi-corrected, is the Mount Roberts, which I think

everybody in this room is aware of.  Other than tha t,

there hasn't been any issues.  And, the Company's

performance with the DES has improved significantly

over the past couple years.

Q. Speaking of Mount Roberts, thank you for that ans wer,

you talk, Mr. Mason, on Page 3 of your testimony, a bout

receiving permission from DES in July of 2012 for a

small production well on the Mount Roberts property .

A. (Mason) Correct.

Q. And, you talk about the possibility or you refere nce

the possibility of needing a large production well,

depending on what Suissevale decides, in terms of i ts

continued agreement, service agreement with the

Company, is that correct?

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. And, could you tell me what the status of those
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discussions are please?

A. (Mason) The status, Doug Patch --

MR. RICHARDSON:  Hold on.  By agreement,

discussions with Suissevale that the Company's had since

the last rate case are confidential.  I have no obj ection

to him answering the question, but I think Suisseva le is

here and ought to be allowed to weigh in on that as  well.

I think, if the Company is going to answer anything  about

what the discussions are, that they, in order to li ve up

-- I mean, they have obligated themselves to do tha t and

their water supply agreement requires that discussi ons be

confidential.  So, I'm a little nervous about volun teering

the information.  

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  And, I appreciate

your stopping it before we get down that road.  I h ad a

question even before confidentiality, as to the rel evance

of this inquiry?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Yes.  I can strike

that.  I was, because the Company had mentioned it,  and

because it has a possibility of impacting the Compa ny's

financial position, you know, I was interested in

inquiring about the status of where we're at with t hat.

But I imagine it's something that we'll cover in th e rate

case.  So, I can let it go now.
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CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  That would be my

guess.  You might ask if the Mount Roberts situatio n is an

element of what the Company is claiming to be causi ng

emergency conditions.  And, if the answer is "no", then I

think it's -- we move on.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Okay.  I think I'll

just withdraw the question.  Because, if I'm correc t, if

the Mount Roberts property situation does not have

anything --

WITNESS MASON:  No.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  It won't impact your

emergency rate request?

WITNESS MASON:  No.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Okay.  Thank you.

Thanks.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. Mr. Mason, could you please turn to Page 12 of yo ur

testimony.

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. Lines 10 to 12, you reference "Recovery of the ab ove",

meaning the 2012 unbilled permanent rate recoupment  and

rate case expenses, --

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. -- "is expected to reduce the Company's outstandi ng
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payables from $642,350.49 as of December 11, 2012 t o

$449,646.52, which is reduction of $57,169.13."  We  get

a different difference.  Can you tell us how you de rive

your $57,000 difference, between those two numbers?

A. (Mason) Hmm. I'm not really sure.

Q. Okay.  Perhaps that's something that they can --

A. (Mason) Yes, we can also figure that out.  

Q. -- get back to us.

A. (Mason) I'm sorry.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Yes.  I guess I'd

want to know, is it just a typing goof, a math goof , and

that the important part is not what the reduction i s, but

what the base numbers are.  If those, the two numbe rs in

Line 11, if those are accurate, we can all do the m ath and

figure out what the number in Line 12 should be.  B ut, if

we don't know if the two figures in Line 11 are acc urate,

then that makes a big difference.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  And, Ms. Brown has been

very helpful to me in pointing out that, in your

Attachment 4, Mr. Mason, at Page 27, it appears tha t the

real difference between the two numbers is stated t here,

it's approximately -- it's "$192,703.97".  And, tho se two

numbers, the beginning number and the end number,

Commissioner Ignatius, are also reflected there on Page
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27, in that first -- fifth column.  The Company can

confirm that, if that would be okay.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Thank you so much.  I'm

almost done.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Okay.  I think

they're still taking a look at that.  

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Okay.  

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  So, before we move

on.  Mr. Roberge, the court reporter isn't getting this,

I'm afraid.

WITNESS MASON:  Can we put that on our

questions list --

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Sure.

WITNESS MASON:  -- to answer?

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  But are we in

agreement that the figures in Line 11 are accurate,  and

it's just a math goof or a typing goof in Line 12?  I'm

getting a nod, a "yes" from Mr. Roberge.  

WITNESS MASON:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  So, let's take a

look, just to confirm that.  If need be, if there's

anything different, unless we hear otherwise, we'll  assume

that the numbers in Line 11 are accurate.  And, we' re less
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concerned about the 57,000 number, that just looks like a

mistake.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Yes.  Thank you.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. Mr. Mason, if I could have you look at Exhibit 2A

please, of your testimony, at Bates Page 18.

A. (Mason) Okay.

Q. The middle column, at the top, is titled "Restate d

12/31/2006".  Can you tell me what the words -- wha t's

meant by the word "restated"?

A. (Mason) Sounds like a "Steve" question.

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  I think that probably refers to t he

amended amounts that we adjusted.

Q. Okay.  Thank you.  And, also, again on Exhibit 2A  --

A. (St. Cyr) I'm sorry.  

Q. Sure.

A. (St. Cyr) This is 2006, would have been before th e

amendments.  My recollection is that the Company fi led

its annual report, and there, upon review by Staff,

there may have been some questions raised, and the

Company responded.  And, as a result of that proces s,

the Company then made some adjustments and restated  its

annual report for that year.  It's exactly what wou ld

have taken place.
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Q. Okay.  So, it's a restatement for the PUC?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. Okay.  Thank you.  Also, in that same exhibit, Pa ges 18

to 19, the amount on Page 18, under 12/31 -- under the

column "12/31/2007", do not agree with the amount o n

Page 19, under "12/31/2007".  Could you explain why

these don't agree and if they should agree please?

A. (St. Cyr) They should agree.  And, I don't have a n

explanation.  It looks like there are some minor

differences in accumulated depreciation.

Q. At this time, you don't have an explanation for t hat?

A. (St. Cyr) No, I don't.

Q. Okay.  Thank you.  Mr. St. Cyr, in your testimony , at

Page 3, Lines 4 to 9, please.  Do you see that it s ays

"Commencing in 2008 the Company recorded the pensio n

and health expenses for the Masons as follows:"  An d,

then, there's a table showing amounts for 2008 thro ugh

2010.  Do these amounts in this table include both

pension and health insurance or health expenses?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. I'm going to show you -- I'd like to have you loo k at

testimony -- oh, you have that now, okay -- filed b y

Staff in the rate case, DW 10-141.  And, do you hav e

that?  I'll give that to you.  And, if I could ask you
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to turn to Page 8, Lines 8 to 11.

A. (St. Cyr) Did you say "Page 8"?  

Q. Yes.

A. (St. Cyr) Lines 8 to 11?

Q. Yes.  And, do you see there, as of December 31, 2 009,

the balance of this shareholder loan was "$190,855" ?

A. (St. Cyr) I do see that, yes.

Q. Okay.  And, the shareholder loan we're talking ab out is

the loan -- what loan is that?

A. (St. Cyr) This would have been an accumulation of

amounts that the Masons had provided to the Company ,

you know, up to December 31, 2009.

Q. Okay.  And, then, it says "However, Staff has red uced

this amount by $56,829, to $134,026, for pension an d

health insurance payments paid by the Company to it s

shareholders during the test year."  Did I read tha t

correctly?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes, you did.

Q. Could you turn to Exhibit 4, Staff 1-1, Page 83.  This

is -- whoops.  Just to make sure we're on the same

page, the top of the page says "Part II Explanation  of

Changes to Items in Part I", is that correct?

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  I'm sorry.  Ours are

copied in a way where the top is blocked, it didn't  come
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through.  So, are you on Page 82 --

MS. HOLLENBERG:  It's 83 --

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  I'm sorry.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  -- of Staff 1-1.  And,

it looks like --

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  A handwritten page?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Yes.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  First, does it open

"The Company negotiated"?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Yes, sir.  Yes.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Thank you.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. And, if you look in the summary of the changes to  the

2009 federal income tax return, and I believe that

that's the middle column.  And, it's the third entr y in

that column, "Page 1-Line 23 Pension".  And, it sta tes

that the amount of the change is "$53,389".  Why is

that number different from the number that Staff

reduced the amount to?  So, Staff reduced the amoun t to

$56,829, and you changed it in the return to or the

Company change it in the return to "$53,389"?

A. (St. Cyr) Offhand, I don't know what that differe nce
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is.  I would say, in the big picture, they're

substantially the same number.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  One moment please.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. I guess the point that I'm trying to ask you abou t is

that you have one number in testimony, which is on Page

3 of your testimony, which is the $52,000 number.  And,

then, the tax returns, at Page 83 of Staff 1-1, whi ch

is in Exhibit 4, had a $53,000 number.  And, the

testimony in 10-141 from Mr. Laflamme had a $56,000

number.  So, I'm just trying to figure out why we h ave

three different numbers?

A. (St. Cyr) And, I can't really speak to the number

that's in Mr. Laflamme's testimony, although I have  no

reason to think that that isn't based on something that

he had probably provided by the Company.  And, then ,

the amounts that are different on -- I would assume  the

amount identified on the tax return, it indicates o n

that specific line item "Pension", "Line 23 Pension

53,386" [53,389 ?].  So, we were eliminating the

pension.  It's possible that there might be a minor

difference in some of the lines that wasn't taken i nto

consideration.  And, again, I would say, in the big

picture, they're all the same number.
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Q. Okay.  But you don't know why they're different?

A. (St. Cyr) I -- 

Q. "Yes" or "no" please.  Thank you.

A. (St. Cyr) No.  I don't know why they're different .

Q. Thank you.  Mr. St. Cyr, if you could turn to Pag e 3 of

your testimony again, at Lines 12 to 15.  And, once

you're there, if you'd let me know please.  Thank y ou.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  What was the page?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Page 3, Line 12 to 15

of Mr. St. Cyr's testimony.

WITNESS ST. CYR:  I'm there, yes.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Thank you.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. Do you agree that it states "While the Company re corded

the pension, health and interest expenses on the bo ok

and reported such information on its internal finan cial

statements, PUC Annual Report and tax returns, the

expenses were not reflected in the Company's then

existing rates."  Did I read that correctly?

A. (St. Cyr) You did.

Q. Could you please explain what is meant by "intern al

financial statements"?  

A. (St. Cyr) This is what the Company would generate

in-house, you know, from its accounting system.
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Q. Does the Company keep more than one set of intern al

financial statements?

A. (St. Cyr) No.  It would only vary by the date of the

financial statements.

Q. And, do the Company's internal financial statemen ts

differ from the statements that it files with

regulatory entities?

A. (St. Cyr) No.  It would be -- it would form the b asis

of what the annual report and the tax returns are b ased

on.

Q. Thank you.  Mr. St. Cyr, you responded to Staff 1 -5 in

this docket, which is found within Exhibit 4.  If y ou

would turn to Attachment 1-5a please.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  And, is that, I know

you don't have a numbered copy, but I believe that would

be Page 166?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Yes.

WITNESS ST. CYR:  That's the page I

have.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Thank you.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. And, what I would like to ask you about -- okay, one

moment please.  I actually have the wrong reference .

Sorry.  Okay.  I apologize.  Could you look at Staf f
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1-4 please, and the attachment to that.  A little m ore

than halfway down we have a section entitled "Finan cing

Activities".

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. And, the third item from the bottom is a decrease  in

additional paid-in capital in 2012 of "$123,356", d o

you see that?

A. (St. Cyr) I do.

Q. Could you explain what that money was used for pl ease.

A. (St. Cyr) This is money that pertains to the 2011  and

2012 that went to the Masons as a return on capital .

Q. And, when was that paid to the Masons?

A. (St. Cyr) It would have been paid throughout 2011  and

'12.

Q. And, does the Company have documentation related to

those payments to the Masons?

A. (St. Cyr) It would, yes.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  I would ask that that

-- that the Company be directed to provide informat ion

that it has related to that paid-in capital reducti on

please?

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Let's find out what

that -- what it is you're really asking for.  Wheth er it's

just a portion of business records, with certain li nes
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isolated as this one is, or whether it's a particul ar

document that's more explicit?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  I guess, off the top of

my head, you know, it would be helpful maybe to see  if

there are minutes of a board meeting or shareholder

approval, some sort of documentation related to the

decision that was made to make this payment to the

shareholders.  

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  So, not

just an accounting entry, but actual sort of backup

statement explaining?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Yes. 

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Mr. Richardson, any

response?

MR. RICHARDSON:  I don't know, you know,

if there is a board meeting or what minutes there a re,

I've not reviewed them.  We could certainly try to find

that information.  It may be, if I understand, you know,

the line of questioning, it may be easier for the C ompany

to just provide a breakdown of what those payments are,

you know, from its accounting system.  And, we coul d do

that fairly quickly.  We might even be able to do i t

today, but I'll turn to -- yes, we could do that to day

during a break.
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CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  That sounds like

that's partially responsive, but not entirely.  Tha t it

would be the details on the accounting entries, but  not

the -- I think you're looking for any specific

authorization or explanation for the --

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Distribution.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  -- payment at all.

I mean, I don't know if you've asked the witnesses if

they're aware of that to begin with?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Oh, I did ask a

question just that "were the records available?"  A nd, Mr.

St. Cyr said he thought that there were, and that's  the

only thing that I did ask.  But I could be more spe cific

about it.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Yes.  I mean, was

there a vote of the Board of Directors?  Is he awar e of

any of that sort of authorization?

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. And, I guess I would direct it to both Mr. Mason and

Mr. St. Cyr.  Did the Board of Directors authorize

these payments to the shareholders?

A. (Mason) I'm sure they did, yes.

Q. Okay.  Do you have minutes and any kind of record s

related to that vote?
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A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. Okay.  And, would the Company be willing to provi de

those to the parties?

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. Okay.  And, those distributions were made during -- Mr.

St. Cyr said they were made during 2011 and 2012.  Were

there different decisions made by the Board to make

different distributions or was it a single decision

that was made to make distributions over a course o f a

period of time?  Does that make sense?  

A. (Mason) Yes.  Yes, I don't know the answer to tha t.

Q. Okay.  You don't know if there were one or more v otes

for the distributions?  

A. (No verbal response).

Q. Did the Company decide at one point in time to

distribute a certain amount of money over a period of

time or did the Company make different decisions ov er

the period of time to distribute money?

A. (Mason) No, I'm sure it was just one decision.

Q. Okay.  And, do you know what the basis of the dec ision

was?

A. (Mason) A certain amount of the equity coming bac k to

my mother, because of, you know, without the pensio n,

without anything, with my dad passing away, that sh e
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needs to still survive.

Q. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Should we reserve an

exhibit, it sounds like, if you're done with those

questions?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  I have one other

question, but, yes.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Related to this?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Go

ahead.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. Do you know if the payments are expected to conti nue or

have the payments been made?

A. (Mason) I believe they stopped back in Septemberi sh of

2012.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Thank you.  Yes, if we

could reserve an exhibit number for the documents r elated

to the shareholders' vote and approval of these, th is

distribution, whether or not it's one or more decis ions

please.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  So, that

would -- let's reserve Exhibit Number 8 for that.

(Exhibit 8 reserved) 
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MS. HOLLENBERG:  I just have a couple

more.  One moment please.  Excuse me for one moment

please.

(Short pause.) 

MS. HOLLENBERG:  I just had one last

question, I believe.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. And, that is, since Mr. Mason, Senior's death, ha ve

there been changes to the ownership of the Company?

A. (Mason) No.  Just I'm sure it's all going to my m other,

in the legal aspect, yes.

Q. And, is it true that at this point the -- was the

ownership transferred to a trust?

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. So, now, your mother isn't a direct owner, she's a

beneficiary of a trust that owns the interest in th e

Company, is that correct?

A. (Mason) Well, the Trust, I'm not 100 percent sure  of

this, but I believe the Trust has been around since

around the mid '90s.

Q. Okay.  And, so, it's been in trust then for a num ber of

years, and that didn't change?  It's continued to b e in

a trust, but now she's the sole beneficiary, becaus e

your dad --
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A. (Mason) Correct.

Q. Okay.  Thank you.  Are there any other beneficiar ies of

that Trust?

A. (Mason) No.

Q. And, who is the trustee?

A. (Mason) I don't know that information.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Okay.  Just one more

minute.  Oh, I did have one other question.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. The Company referenced in its Petition, you know,

needing to stop continuing operating losses.  And, if I

could ask you to look at Exhibit 4, which is the

responses to the data requests, and specifically if  you

could look at Staff -- okay, if you could look at S taff

1-3.  And, if you could, this is your 2012 prelimin ary

actual rate of return calculation.  Could you show me

where there are operating losses -- 

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Excuse me, could you

give us the page you're talking about in Exhibit 4?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Sure.  It's Page 161.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. Could you -- the Company has made assertions that  it

needs to "stop operating losses", "stop the bleedin g",

"go forward", "make payments on its tax returns".  Can
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you show us where there are operating losses, that the

Company is experiencing operating losses according to

its actual rate of return calculation?

A. (St. Cyr) If you don't mind just pointing me to t he

reference?

Q. Sure.  I was asking --

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. It's Page 161 of Exhibit 4, which is --

A. (St. Cyr) No, I'm talking about the reference to the

"operating losses".

Q. Oh, sure.  If you could look at, on the Company's

Petition, at Page 4, in Paragraph 4 [10?].  And, if you

don't have a copy of that, I can provide it to you.

MR. RICHARDSON:  I'm sorry, what exhibit

are we looking at now?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  It's not an exhibit.

It's the Company's Petition.  But, if you want, -- 

MR. RICHARDSON:  Okay.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  -- we can make it an

exhibit.  I didn't think that I --

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  It's in the file.

We don't need to make it an exhibit.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Okay.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  And, I think the
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page number is actually 162, which is the back, the

response to the Question 1-3.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Just one moment please.

BY MS. HOLLENBERG: 

Q. It's actually -- so, the Petition, Page 4, Paragr aph

10.  And, if you could read the last sentence pleas e.

A. (St. Cyr) "This requires that the Commission appr ove

emergency rates sufficient to pay the Company's

going-forward tax relief, plus interest on its

outstanding 2012 tax liability, in order to stop th e

continuing operating losses of the Company."

Q. And, then, I had asked you to look or Mr. Mason t o look

at Page 162 of Exhibit 4, and to direct us to where

those operating losses are reflected.

A. (St. Cyr) I think the reference in the Petition i s more

a reference to the tax returns and the net operatin g

losses that existed.  And, when he talks about

"stopping the continuing operating losses of the

Company", that's -- it's in reference to a period o f

time in which the Company had net operating losses.

Q. So, the Company -- it's not the Company's asserti on

today that the Company has net operating losses or

continuing net operating losses?

A. (St. Cyr) The Company is no longer, in 2000 -- th e
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Company no longer has net operating losses.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Okay.  I have no other

questions.  Thank you for your time this morning.  Thank

you, gentlemen.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.  We will

go to questioning by the Staff.  It's almost noon.  I

think my hope is that we go till 12:30 or so, and t hen

take a lunch break.  Ms. Thunberg -- Ms. Brown.

MS. BROWN:  And, thanks to OCA for

asking a lot of the questions that Staff was otherw ise

going to ask.  So, it will be fairly quick.

BY MS. BROWN: 

Q. Let's see.  Mr. St. Cyr, I'm going to pick on you , if

you don't mind.  And, --

A. (St. Cyr) I do mind.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  I don't think you're

allowed to mind.

BY MS. BROWN: 

Q. Could I please have you turn to, it's Staff -- it 's

Exhibit 4.  And, it's the Company's response to Sta ff

1-3 that you had provided.  And, I believe -- I don 't

have a page numbered copy, but I believe it's been

referred to as Page 161.

A. (St. Cyr) 162 -- well, the response is 161 and th e
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calculation is 162.

Q. Thank you.  Thank you.  So, going back to the que stion

about the actual rate of return, the 8.717, I think

we've already established -- or, would you agree th e

Company has overearned for 2012?

A. (St. Cyr) I guess I think of it in terms of the C ompany

realizing its authorized rate of return.

Q. Well, with this exhibit, Attachment 1-3, have you  not

calculated that the Company earned an actual rate o f

return higher than it's authorized?

A. (St. Cyr) I did calculate that, yes.

Q. Okay.  Now, on the $211,000 figure for net operat ing

income that's above the actual rate of return, is i t

correct that that net operating income provides for

paying taxes on a proforma basis?  Or, I'm sorry, i f I

could strike that question and rephrase it.  This

$211,000 figure, that's after, that's net operating

income after providing for paying taxes on a profor ma

basis, correct?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. So, would you agree that this response to Staff 1 -3

demonstrates that the rates are producing revenues

sufficient to cover the expected income taxes?

A. (St. Cyr) I guess if you wouldn't mind re-answeri ng
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that -- asking that question again please.  

MS. BROWN:  Can I just have the

stenographer reread the question.  Is that convenie nt?

(Whereupon the court reporter read back 

the last question asked.) 

BY THE WITNESS: 

A. (St. Cyr) I know that the rate that's in place do esn't

have the -- doesn't have a provision for the federa l

and state taxes.  So, I would say "no".  The rate d oes

not -- isn't sufficient in order to cover the feder al

and state taxes.

BY MS. BROWN: 

Q. I believe, Mr. St. Cyr, the Petition requests eme rgency

rates to allow recovery of $100,219 in estimated

federal and state income taxes incurred in 2012.  I 'm

reading from the Petition, Paragraph 1.  Do you hav e

the Petition in front of you?

A. (St. Cyr) I do not have it in front of me.

Q. Well, I guess you -- I think you also have that f igure

in your testimony.  So, let me go to that page.

MS. BROWN:  I've just been provided a

copy of the Petition.  If I could just show it to t he

witness?

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Of course.
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MS. BROWN:  Thank you.

(Atty. Brown handing document to Witness 

St. Cyr.) 

BY MS. BROWN: 

Q. So, Mr. St. Cyr, I'm just drawing your attention to

whether it accurately stated that the request in th is

proceeding is for emergency rates to cover what's k nown

or estimated to be $100,219 in federal and state in come

taxes incurred in 2012?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. So, I'm going back to Discovery Response 1-3, and  we

just discussed that the net operating income is

$211,781, correct?  That's the right number?

A. (St. Cyr) That's the right number.

Q. And, so, my question is, if you have net operatin g

income showing in excess of $200,000, why can't the

Company pay 100,000 in 2012 income taxes?

A. (St. Cyr) Well, as I stated earlier, first of all , the

current rates don't include an estimate for federal  and

state taxes.  This 211,718 [$211,781 ?] is what the

Company needs in order to pay principal and interes t on

its loan, what it needs to pay return on capital, y ou

know, what it needs to pay investment in plant.  Th at's

what this particular amount is used for.
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Q. Well, let me approach it differently.  Didn't the

Company pay health and pension expenses before its last

rate case without a line item in rates for those

specific expenses?

A. (St. Cyr) I guess, if you don't mind repeating th e

question for me please.  I'm sorry.  

Q. If I ask it a different way, approaching this, wh en you

have revenues and what the Company pays out -- or p ays

with those revenues, isn't this similar to a situat ion

where, if the Company had to pay health and pension

expenses before its last rate case, it paid those

expenses without having a specific line item for th ose

expense, correct?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes, if I can answer it this way.  The

Company does have health insurance for its employee s

reflected in rates.

Q. Are you finished before I move on?

A. (St. Cyr) I guess.

Q. Okay.  I guess what I'm hearing you say then is, you

couldn't pay property -- or, income taxes out of th is

$211,781 figure, because you didn't have a line ite m

for income taxes in the rate case, is that correct?

When I say "you", I mean the Company.

A. (St. Cyr) I'm saying that the rate doesn't includ e
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federal or state taxes.  And, that the money that t he

net operating income that's referred to in this exh ibit

is designed to pay is essentially a return of -- a

return on the investments that the Company has made ,

and that would include, you know, principal and

interest on the debt, and a return on capital to th e

shareholders.  That's what this amount is designed to

do in the rates that exist today.

Q. I understand the ratemaking philosophy and how yo u

determine what an appropriate income -- revenue

requirement should be.  But I'm looking at this net

operating income on this schedule, knowing that tha t

money can go to certain expenses, whether they are a

separate line item in a rate case or not.  Would yo u

agree that the $200,000 could go to things that are

either line itemed in a rate case revenue requireme nt

or other things that aren't, such as like the felon y

payment?

A. (St. Cyr) It could go to any of those and more.  It can

go to, you know, investment in capital, which it di d.

It can go to the principal and interest on the loan .

This money is essentially what's available after th e

Company has paid its expenses, and it's what's

available, you know, to work with.

     {DW 13-041} [RE: Emergency Rates] {03-06-13/Da y 1}

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24



   105
             [WITNESS PANEL:  Mason|Dawson|St. Cyr]

Q. So, going back to a question --

MR. RICHARDSON:  Could I move to strike

the last comment about the "felony payment"?  I jus t feel

that that is, you know, kind of throwing in things that

are not material to what's happening here.  And, if  there

were -- obviously, the Company was assessed a penal ty.  I

think it was back in 2007 or '08, or whenever that was,

but it's really got only marginal bearing on this c ase, to

the extent that it was finally paid off in 2012.  A nd, I

just don't think that that's, you know, kind of

appropriate to insert it into the record in that wa y.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Ms. Brown.

MS. BROWN:  I don't mean to -- or, Staff

doesn't mean to raise it to be inflammatory.  It is  a

below -- the felony fine payment was a below-the-li ne

expense that the Company did meet.  Similarly, the pension

expense was not something that was included in the revenue

requirement, and the Company agreed to that.  But p ension

or, as in this case, paid-in capital is somehow bei ng

paid.  So, I'm not trying to raise the felony fine as

inflammatory.  It's an example of something that ha s been

paid that hasn't been in rates.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  I think the

explanation makes sense.  I'm going to allow the qu estion
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or not strike the reference.  But I think we do wan t to be

sure that that is the reason why any of that should  be

raised, and that we're not talking about operation issues

today, we're not talking about any sort of behavior  in the

past that may have given rise to that.  That's long  ago

addressed and now resolved.  So, I won't strike it,  but

let's move on.

MS. BROWN:  Thank you.

BY MS. BROWN: 

Q. Mr. St. Cyr, if the Company has a tax liability i n

2012, does the IRS require it to make estimated

payments in 2013?

A. (St. Cyr) No.  You asked, "if it had a tax liabil ity

for 2012, is it required to make estimated payments  in

2013 for the 2012 tax liability?"

MS. BROWN:  I would like to defer to an

analyst to clarify that question.

(Atty. Brown conferring with Mr. Naylor 

and/or Mr. Laflamme.) 

MS. BROWN:  Okay.  My analyst thinks you

may have misunderstood the question.  So, let me re phrase

the question.

BY MS. BROWN: 

Q. When, this is about this company or it could be
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companies in general, when you have a corporate tax

liability in any given year, IRS requires that comp any

to make estimated payments for the next year follow ing

that.  Would you agree?  I can ask it a different w ay?

A. (St. Cyr) Actually, if you don't mind asking it a

different way.

Q. Because Lakes Region Water Company is expected to  have

a 2012 tax liability, will the IRS require it to ma ke

estimated payments toward its 2013 tax liability?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  In fact, I would say the Company should

have been making estimated payments, once it realiz ed

it had a tax liability in 2012, it should have been

making estimated payments during 2012 for that year .

Q. I'm not sure if we reserved a record request or i f

we're going to get this after the break, a dollar

amount associated with penalties and interest for

making late payment of taxes.  Mr. St. Cyr, do you

recall when the Company was going to produce that

information to us?

A. (St. Cyr) I believe I was asked if I knew what th ey

were, and I do not know what the penalties and inte rest

were.  There was no request for that or a record

request set aside as I recall.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  I don't recall asking
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for that, but I don't oppose the Staff asking for t hat.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Well, I'd like to

know what exactly Staff is asking for, so we have c larity

on whether it's appropriate and that it's clear wha t needs

to be produced?

MS. BROWN:  Madam Chairman, the

questions pertain to "what is the crisis?"  "What i s the

dollar amount of the crisis?"  And, we have the $10 0,000

estimated taxes, plus the tax on the revenue.  So, it

brings it up to 173,634.  But, if there's additiona l

interest and penalties that the Company also needs to pay,

that it believes should be in its emergency rate re quest,

I think we should have that clarified.  Whether it' s

through a record request or if they want to supplem ent the

Petition, I think it's important to get that inform ation

somehow on the record.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Mr. Richardson.

MR. RICHARDSON:  If I may, this goes

back to the issue at the beginning of the hearing, which I

think I managed to confuse everyone.  So, I'm apolo gizing

for going back into it.  But the way we've structur ed our

request is to essentially provide for the expected ongoing

tax liability that the Company is incurring today, based
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on what we believe the numbers for 2012 show.

We're then proposing to reconcile 2012,

once we have the actual return filed.  I mean, at t his

point we could calculate what the interest would be  on the

taxes, if and when we file the return, assuming the  return

is exactly as it is now.  We haven't reached the de adline

for filing the return, which I expect is going to h appen

at the end of this month.

What I would suggest that we do, and

this goes to, I think, how I see the structure of t his

case, is we're really asking for recovery of what t he

Company's tax liability is going forward on an emer gency

basis.  And, then, either at the end of this case, or at

the end of the permanent -- as part of the permanen t rate

case, resolving the 2012 issue.  I don't think it m akes a

lot of sense to put recovery of interest of a 2012 past

liability into an emergency request, when we're bas ically

going to have to figure out how much it is, how are  we

going to recover it over time.  I don't think that that's

something that we've asked for here.  What is in Mr . St.

Cyr's schedules is just the going-forward tax liabi lity to

prevent that liability from making the Company's fi nancial

situation worse.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  In the rate case
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that Mr. St. Cyr said he expected to be filed perha ps in

May, or maybe Mr. Mason said, what's the test year going

to be?

MR. RICHARDSON:  2012.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  In light of that,

Ms. Brown, is there a reason for developing informa tion

about potential penalties and interest on the 2012 tax

obligation for today's proceeding?

MS. BROWN:  I would say "yes".  Only

because I still am not clear of this change from th e

Petition, because Staff sees in the Petition that t here is

a 2012 tax liability out there.  And, in Paragraph 1, the

Company is looking for emergency rates to cover tha t, and

they propose a certain percent increase for rates,

customer rates to cover that.  And, I understand fr om

Attorney Richardson that they also want the emergen cy

rates to cover the future 2013 expenses.

I think Staff still wants to have the

information on 2012 in the record, because, if thos e

payments are going to be coming due in 2013, and th e rates

are to cover that, what's the sequencing of that pa yment,

assuming that the payment is part of this "crisis"

argument, and is the right relief sought?  Is there  a

clear nexus that the rate relief is going to be the re for
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the payments, the tax payments when they come due?

So, I have a few questions on 2012, not

very many.  But, if I could continue with those que stions,

and then move onto 2013?  

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Well, do we need to

first answer your request for a record request for

penalties and interest?  I assume you're asking for  what

the Company anticipates will be the penalties and i nterest

for 2012 tax obligations that won't be paid on time  in

2013?

MS. BROWN:  Correct.  Correct.  Because

I'm still -- Staff is still trying to see if the re lief

requested is going to produce the revenues in time for the

payments of the taxes.  Staff understands that the income

tax liability is the crisis that it's in for emerge ncy

rates for.  And, we're just trying to get a handle of

what's the exact amount of this tax liability?  Whe n is it

coming due?  Are the payments from receipts from cu stomer

rates going to cover it?  Just trying to get a bigg er

picture.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Why

don't we go through those questions first.  And, th en, if

need be, we'll come back to a record request.

Mr. Richardson.

     {DW 13-041} [RE: Emergency Rates] {03-06-13/Da y 1}

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24



   112
             [WITNESS PANEL:  Mason|Dawson|St. Cyr]

MR. RICHARDSON:  If I may.  We don't

have an objection to the record request in itself.  What I

was concerned about is is that I don't want there t o be a

misunderstanding about what we're requesting coming  out of

this hearing today.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Let's

let the witnesses go ahead and answer the questions .  I'm

concerned that we're not making as much progress as  we

should.  So, let's go ahead and let's focus on what  they

know, what they don't know.  And, if there are thin gs that

they're not able to answer that are relevant, we'll

reserve a record request.  But let's try to avoid t hat as

much as possible and seek what we can from the witn esses.

MS. BROWN:  Okay.  

BY MS. BROWN: 

Q. Mr. St. Cyr, I assume you will be involved in fil ing

for the rate case?

A. (St. Cyr) I assume so, too.

Q. Do you know at this point will the Company be

requesting recovery in rates for any of the penalti es

and interest on the 2012 income taxes?

A. (St. Cyr) I don't know that.

Q. So, it's possible it may not request in rates rec overy

of interest and penalties on the 2012 tax liability ?  
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A. (St. Cyr) We just haven't had that discussion as it

pertains to what the Company intends to file or not

file.

Q. Okay.  Mr. St. Cyr, and we've covered data respon se --

Data Request 1-3 and the Company's response with th e

actual rate of return of 8.717.  Do you recall that ?

A. (St. Cyr) I do.

Q. You just testified that the Company will use a 20 12

test year.  So, my question to you is, if the Compa ny

is earning above its authorized rate of return in 2 012,

is 2012 a good test year?

A. (St. Cyr) I think partly what's driving the rate

increase is the addition of Mount Roberts.  That's

probably the primary driver.  We would adjust reven ue

and expenses as, you know, as we are aware of what

those will be in 2013.

Q. Are Mount Roberts anticipated capital expenditure s or

is this capital -- are these capital improvements t hat

have already been made?

A. (St. Cyr) This would be the Company's acquisition  of

Mount Roberts, and the reflection of such acquisiti on

in -- onto the Company's books in plant and in rate

base.

Q. Has the acquisition happened or is it prospective ?
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A. (St. Cyr) It would be prospective.

Q. With respect to 2013 income taxes, Mr. St. Cyr, d o you

know when those payments -- estimated payments will  be

due?

A. (St. Cyr) Estimated payments for 2013 would be du e

April 15th, June 15th, September 15th, and

December 15th.

Q. Were you involved in developing -- oh, yes, you w ere

involved in developing the proposed rates.  Sorry.  I

was going to ask if you were, but forgot that was i n

your testimony.  When recommending the proposed

emergency rates, did you factor in payments being d ue

on these particular months for the 2013 taxes?

A. (St. Cyr) The Company calculated an annual -- an

additional annual revenue requirement.  So, dependi ng

on when such a proposal would be approved, there is  the

potential for money to be available during those da tes.

Q. Okay.  Understood.  The Company looked at it on a n

annual basis.  Staff has a question about, does the

Company think it's going to have enough funds to pa y

these tax payments in April, June, September, and

December?

A. (St. Cyr) As we sit today, the answer would be "n o".

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  I'm sorry.  I feel
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like there was a question with one set of assumptio ns and

an answer with a different set of assumptions.  So,  before

we go on, and I probably -- maybe I just misunderst ood,

was the question, "when you developed the proposed

increase for this Petition today, were you includin g in

those rates sufficient money to cover 2013 tax

obligations?"  That's what I thought the question w as.

MS. BROWN:  And, I can't remember if I

asked it that way, and then simpler, of whether the re

would be cash variable to make these payments regar dless

-- I guess I'll just leave it at that.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  If the Petition were

approved, is there -- would there be adequate funds

available to make 2013 tax obligations to meet thos e?

And, I thought your answer was "no, there wouldn't be."

So, something's not right here.

WITNESS ST. CYR:  I think, as I tried to

explain earlier, I guess what I envision happening is,

once the Company files its tax return, it will have  a tax

obligation to which it will be not able to pay.  If  the

Commission were to approve rates as the Company pro posed,

that creates a stream of revenue that the Company w ill

have available to pay taxes.  Now, at that point in  time,

throughout the year, we will have the 2012 obligati on that
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we have to take care of and the ongoing 2013.  Assu ming

the 2013 were the same level of expenses as 2012, t hen

there would not be enough revenue.  You know, we're

creating an annual amount of revenue to pay for an annual

amount of tax expense.  And, we can't possibly pay for two

years out of that one year's worth of revenue strea m.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.

BY MS. BROWN: 

Q. Mr. St. Cyr, when I asked you about deadlines for

paying taxes, does that apply to just the federal o r

does it also include the state?

A. (St. Cyr) The estimated tax deadlines would be th e same

for state as they are for federal.

Q. Thank you.  Earlier Staff, or OCA had covered thi s,

too, in a Staff data request, Staff had asked why o r if

the Company had contacted the IRS to discuss paymen t of

the 2012 taxes, and I believe you testified that th e

answer today was "no".  Do you recall that?

A. (St. Cyr) I do recall that, yes.

Q. Could you please explain why?

A. (St. Cyr) I would say that's not really the norm.   You

know, it's the Company's responsibility to file its  tax

returns.  You know, it does consult outside tax cou nsel

to do that.  The onus is on the Company to make the
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filing and to take a position.  It would not be nor mal

for us to approach the IRS or the Department of Rev enue

to ask a question.  We would take a position, which  we

did, and take an action.  And, then, to the extent that

the federal or state authorities believe that our

position is inconsistent with their own regulations ,

then, you know, they would pursue that with the

company.

I can tell you, from my own experience,

that trying to deal with the Internal Revenue Servi ce

on any tax matter is really difficult.  And, I can also

tell you finding the right people within the right

regulatory agency is really difficult, too.  This

company cannot walk into, say, the Manchester Distr ict

Office with a tax question related to its corporate

books.  It's possible that an individual could walk

into a local office and get a response.  But, where  you

would get a response for a corporate tax matter wou ld

certainly come from out-of-state, probably

out-of-region.  And, even in those circumstances, t he

Company would have to take the position and make it s

case for whatever that position is.  So, it would n ot

be normal for the Company or any company to contact  the

IRS in a matter similar to what we're facing here.
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Q. Thank you for that explanation.  With respect to the

2013 taxes, and your statement that it will be

difficult or you won't be able to pay timely, is th ere

any way to contact, like, Department of Revenue and

work out a payment arrangement to delay any payment s or

I guess accommodate a revenue stream or a cash stre am

and ability to pay?

A. (St. Cyr) I mentioned earlier that the IRS has a form,

I can't recall the form offhand, but it's an

installment plan, an installment payment plan.  And ,

the Company would either file that with the filing or

shortly after.  But it would definitely enter into some

kind of an arrangement with the Internal Revenue

Service to pay the 2012 tax.

Q. Could the Company have sought a installment payme nt

plan in lieu of filing for emergency rates?

A. (St. Cyr) I guess I wouldn't think that would be the

norm either.  You know, the Company, you know, at t his

point hasn't filed its tax returns.  So, it wouldn' t

make sense to file an installment plan ahead of tim e,

although I think I may be straying a little bit.  I

would say "no" to the question about whether an

installment plan would be an alternative to emergen cy

rates.
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Q. I realize I'm closing in on 12:30.  Mr. Mason, I just

want to identify a typo that I believe is in your

testimony.  And, I'd just like to have your concurr ence

that this should be -- this word should be changed.

It's on Page 8.  This came up in OCA's discussion w ith

you.  If you could turn to Page 8, Line 20.  In the

middle of that sentence, it says "persuasive".  Did  you

mean to put "pension" there?

A. (Mason) Yes.  

Q. Thank you. 

A. (Mason) Yes.  Exactly.

Q. Mr. Mason, let's see, Page 13.  On Line 7 on your

testimony, Page 13, you state "the Company is

effectively unable to seek debt or equity financing ".

Do you see that?

A. (Mason) Yup.  Yes.

Q. Can you please state why the Company is unable to  get

equity?

A. (Mason) To get equity?  Because there's none avai lable

right now from anybody.

Q. Thank you.  With respect to debt financing, have any of

the lenders you've spoken to in the past year cited  the

fact that the Company did not have a tax expense in  its

revenue requirement as the reason why it would deny
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financing?

A. (Mason) Just a general balance sheet is what gene rates

what we hear.  I'm sure, you know, TD BankNorth is well

aware of the tax problem, because of, you know, the

ongoing conversations I have with them.  They're ju st

reluctant to loan in general.

Q. Okay.  So, if you could just turn to Page 5, Line s 4

through 6, I just want to make sure Staff isn't rea ding

something into this that it otherwise wouldn't.  Th e

sentence says "The omission of revenues to pay its

$100,000 tax liability adversely impacts the Compan y's

ability to provide service, obtain financing to

implement its capital plans."  That's the sentence I'm

looking at.  Do you have that?

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. So, are you not -- are you saying or not saying t hat,

because you don't have a tax expense in your revenu e

requirement, that that is the reason why you can't get

financing?

A. (Mason) It will be part of the reason.

Q. Only part.  Okay.  Thank you.  Has any lender cit ed the

Company's inability to pay taxes as a reason for

denying financing?

A. (Mason) We've never gotten that far.
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Q. Okay.  Thank you.  Mr. Mason, on Page 10 of your

testimony, you make reference to capital improvemen ts

made in 2011 and '12.

A. (Mason) Uh-huh.

Q. And, those amounts are 113,000 and change and the n

115,000.  Do you see those --

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. -- rounded figures?

A. (Mason) Yeah.

Q. Did those funds to pay for the capital improvemen ts

come out of cash coming from customers paying their

bills?

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. Was that the only way the Company could pay for t hese

capital improvements?

A. (Mason) Well, it's the way we did pay for them.  I

don't know if it's the only way.

Q. But you did not have that --

A. (Mason) Yeah.  It's the only way.  I'll restate t hat.

Q. Well, I don't want --

A. (Mason) The money has to come from -- we plow eve ry

dime back into the Company, or most of it.  The vas t

majority of it goes back into the water company, fo r

capital improvements.
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Q. Okay.  I also don't want to leave you with feelin g, in

answering my questions, that you're boxed in.

A. (Mason) No.

Q. And, so, my question, follow-up question would be , you

did not pay for the capital improvements through de bt

financing because you were unable to -- the Company  was

unable to get financing?  Would that be accurate?

A. (Mason) I don't -- debt financing, to me, at the

present time, is not realistic, unless we can get t he

depreciation equal with the length of the notes.  I t

just doesn't work, for me.

Q. Thank you.

A. (Mason) When somebody asks you to put up your hou se as

collateral, and the one guarantee you get is you wo n't

have enough money to pay the note, it becomes undoa ble.

MS. BROWN:  Chairman Ignatius, I'm

cognizant that it's 12:30.  I can still keep going with

issues, or I can break at this point and try to str eamline

my questions?

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  About how much more

do you think you will have?

MS. BROWN:  An hour.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Then,

let's take a break.  It's 12:30 now.  Let's resume at 1:30
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please.

(Lunch recess taken at 12:30 p.m. and 

the hearing resumed at 1:38 p.m.) 

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  So, we're back from

a lunch break.  Thank you, everyone.  And, our witn esses

are getting settled.  Ms. Brown, you were in the mi dst of

questioning.  Is there anything before we start up again

that we need to put on the record or update?  

(No verbal response) 

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Good.  All right,

please continue.

MS. BROWN:  Thank you for the break.

Staff was able to clarify or streamline some of its

questions, so it should be less than an hour.

BY MS. BROWN: 

Q. Mr. Mason, just a general question to you.  The

financial information that's contained in your

testimony, what were the sources -- or, actually, w hat

people did you rely on for that financial informati on?

A. (Mason) Steve St. Cyr and Norm Roberge.

Q. Did you do any financial calculations yourself or  did

they provide the calculations?

A. (Mason) They provided them.

Q. Okay.  Thank you.  Mr. Mason, on Pages 11 and 12 of
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your testimony, you talk about how the Company's

financial condition has changed since its last rate

case, and you discussed payables.

A. (Mason) Okay.

Q. And, if you see that, if you could just turn, I g uess,

to Page 12 at this point.

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. For these payables, will any of the emergency rat e --

funds from the emergency rates be used to pay down

these payables?

A. (Mason) No.

Q. Aside from income taxes?

A. (Mason) Yes.  Well, income taxes, yeah.  That's w hat

we're here for.

Q. Does the Company have a plan to pay down the non- tax

payables?

A. (Mason) We've had a plan.  We meet on every Frida y, we

go through things.  We've reduced it considerably.

Other than we've spent a fortune on lawyers,

accountants, and people like that.

Q. Okay.  

A. (Mason) As far as general vendors, we've made hug e

gains on, you know, our vendors, our supply vendors ,

things like that.

     {DW 13-041} [RE: Emergency Rates] {03-06-13/Da y 1}

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24



   125
             [WITNESS PANEL:  Mason|Dawson|St. Cyr]

Q. When you talk about the vendors, and in your test imony

I believe you state that you've accepted vendors to

accept less payment for their services.  Do you

remember that?

A. (Mason) We haven't.  We haven't done anything wit h

that.  Everything that's shown is what their bill i s.

It's hard to negotiate with a vendor very much, if you

don't have any way of paying them.

Q. I'm sorry, I was thinking of Mr. St. Cyr's testim ony.

My apologies.  Mr. St. Cyr, on Page 7 of your

testimony, you state that "The Company is not" -- o r,

"is already not paying its vendors on a timely basi s

and is requiring certain vendors to take lesser amo unts

for services provided."  That's on Lines 3 through 5,

Page 7.  Do you recall that?

A. (St. Cyr) I see the statement, yes.

Q. Is that still accurate, given Mr. Mason's testimo ny

just a moment ago?

A. (St. Cyr) Well, certainly, the "paying of its ven dors

on a timely basis" is accurate.  I think there has been

some discussion in-house about requiring less amoun ts

from certain vendors.  But, apparently, that hasn't

taken place at this point.

Q. Mr. Mason, would you like to add, clarify this
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sentence, the second part of the sentence?

A. (Mason) The second part of --

Q. Which is "requiring certain vendors to take lesse r

amounts for services provided."  Is that -- where i s

that discussion?  Is it still in-house or have you

approached vendors?  

A. (Mason) We have not approached vendors.  The only

vendors that are out there in any distance that are

approachable are accountants, lawyers, and Mr. St. Cyr,

I guess I don't know where he fits in.  But those a re

the main big vendors.  Everybody else is pretty wel l in

decent shape.

Q. Should we strike this second part of the sentence  then,

everything after "and"?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  You may strike it.

Q. And, so go a line of questioning.  Thank you.

MR. RICHARDSON:  I'm sorry to interrupt,

but could I just get the page number, so I can note  in my

copy what we just struck?

MS. BROWN:  Yes.  Exhibit 3, Page 7,

Line 4 through 5, everything from "and" through

"provided".  So, what is being stricken is "and is

requiring certain vendors to take a lesser amount f or

services provided."
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MR. RICHARDSON:  Thank you.

BY MS. BROWN: 

Q. Mr. St. Cyr, I do want to ask you a question abou t the

paid-in capital.  I'm sorry, I got confused on wher e I

was looking.  On Exhibit 4, response to 1-4, statem ents

of cash flow, we've had prior testimony concerning the

"$123,356" decrease in additional paid-in capital.  So,

I draw your attention, Mr. St. Cyr and Mr. Mason, t o

that.  I just want to continue on with some of the

questions OCA had asked.  I know, Mr. Mason, you st ated

earlier what this went to.  But did this also -- co uld

this have been considered a "dividend"?  Either

Mr. Mason or Mr. St. Cyr?

A. (St. Cyr) It was a return on capital.  I should s ay a

"return of capital".

Q. Was that in the form of cash?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. Over 2011 and 2012, correct?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  2011, 2012.

Q. So, it was --

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Excuse me.  I was

fussing with papers, I apologize.  What's the figur e

you're talking about right now?  I've got the page,  but

what are you referring to?
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MS. BROWN:  I will draw your attention

to the "2012" column, two-thirds of the way down, u nder

"Financing Activities", there's "Additional paid-in

capital in Cap- ital", and the dollar amount is "$1 23,

$356 [$123,356 ?].

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  123,000?

MS. BROWN:  Yes.  Thank you.  So, that

is the figure.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.

BY MS. BROWN: 

Q. So, this was not a dividend, that's what you -- y ou had

said it was "not a dividend"?

A. (St. Cyr) The Masons have put in over a million d ollars

over a number of years.  And, this is a return of s ome

of that money that they have put in.

Q. So, if it's -- can you please explain the differe nce

between "return of capital" and a "dividend"?

A. (St. Cyr) Sure.  A "return of capital" would be a

return of the money that was provided to the Compan y by

the Masons.  A "dividend" would be, you know, some

stated amount, akin to interest on a loan.  This wo uld

be, essentially, a payment of dividend for the fund s

invested.  That would be considered a return on the

investment that they made.  The Masons have never
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received a return on the investment.  They have jus t

now started receiving a return of that investment.

Q. Now, there are IRS -- or, there are legal regulat ions

governing dividend distributions, is that correct,

Mr. St. Cyr?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. Are there legal authorities governing "return of

capital"?

A. (St. Cyr) If there are, I'm not aware of what the y

might be.

Q. Have you -- do you conduct a number -- or, partic ipate

in a number of rate cases before this Commission?

A. (St. Cyr) I do.

Q. Have you seen in those other rate cases something

called "return of capital"?

A. (St. Cyr) I can't recall seeing that, no.

Q. Could this return -- could this 123,356 gone to p ay

taxes?  And, I guess this could be either you, Mr. St.

Cyr, or Mr. Mason.

A. (St. Cyr) I suppose.  It's money that, you know, is

used to pay obligations of the Company.

Q. If the Company had not released this additional p aid-in

capital, would its financial condition have been be tter

as of today?
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A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. I know you said that you're not aware of any lega l

authorities governing return of capital.  Prior to

making these distributions under additional paid-in

capital, did the Company consult legal advice?

A. (St. Cyr) I don't know the answer to that questio n.

A. (Mason) I don't believe so.

Q. I don't know that it was clear earlier in the tes timony

on whose decision it was to provide Mrs. Mason with

this paid-in capital.  And, I ask that question rig ht

now.  Whose decision was it to make disbursements

through paid-in capital to Mrs. Mason?

A. (Mason) The Board.

Q. Mr. Mason, in your testimony, do you remember, on  Page

7, making a statement that, as of December 12, 2011 ,

the Company was aware that it would incur about 68, 000

in tax liability?

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. Do you have an opinion as to whether it was prude nt, in

light of knowing there was a $68,000 tax liability in

December 2011, to continue making paid-in capital

payments in 2012?

A. (Mason) Can you say that again?

Q. Do you -- I'll rephrase it.  Knowing there was a
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potential $68,000 tax liability, and you knew that,

according to your testimony, as of the end of 2011,  do

you think it was prudent to make payments to Mrs. M ason

in 2012?

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. And, can you please explain why?

A. (Mason) Because she invested the money, it was he r

money.  She invested it over years.  And, at this p oint

in her life, when she's 83 years old, she still nee ds

to, you know, survive.  And, you know, in hindsight ,

she probably shouldn't have invested it.

A. (St. Cyr) Maybe if I could just add to that.  And  that

the rates also provided for a return on capital, a

return on and a return of capital were built into

rates.  There was no provision built into rates for

federal or state taxes.

Q. There was no provision for a pension, correct, bu ilt

into rates?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.  There's no provision f or

pension built into rates.

Q. How does -- how do these distributions differ fro m a

pension?

A. (St. Cyr) Well, in terms of the return of the cap ital,

again, this is money that the Masons invested.  And ,
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it's essentially the Company returning that money b ack

to them.  With respect to a pension, I guess there' s a

number of ways in which pensions could be funded.  You

know, it could be an obligation of the Company, it

could be an obligation, you know, that the Company

provided sources, provided funds for that's not an

obligation of the Company going forward.  I guess t here

are those kind of differences anyway.

Q. Mr. St. Cyr, how are dividends back to shareholde rs

normally paid out of?

A. (St. Cyr) Dividends are usually a reduction to re tained

earnings.

Q. So, why wouldn't it be appropriate to make paymen ts to

Mrs. Mason under dividends from retained earnings, than

from making payments from additional paid-in capita l?

A. (St. Cyr) I don't -- to some extent, you know, th at's a

management decision.  It seems to me a return of th e

capital is a more reasonable decision than trying t o

provide for a return on that investment than return ing

the capital.

Q. Mrs. Mason is not currently an employee of the Co mpany,

is that correct?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. And, she was not an employee in 2012 and '11 duri ng
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these payments, is that accurate?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. And, Mr. St. Cyr, in your tax area of expertise, are

pensions usually something that's funded during the

working career of an employee?

A. (St. Cyr) Usually it's funded, yes.

Q. And, this question to Mr. Mason or Mr. St. Cyr.  Would

you consider paying Mrs. Mason through paid-in capi tal

is essentially giving priority to equity shareholde rs

over vendors on the payables list?

A. (St. Cyr) I think, you know, this is a company th at's

struggling to pay its bills in general.  So, it

struggles every day to -- when it decides whether t o

pay one expenditure or another.  You know, it decid es

between operating expenses, capital investments, re turn

on capital, vendors, it makes those decisions prett y

regularly.  And, it's always a balancing act betwee n

the cash that's available and the requirements for that

cash.

Q. Mr. St. Cyr, sorry to still pick on you, but ther e was

a discussion about amended tax returns.  OCA had wa lked

you through some potential inconsistencies from 200 9

and 2010.  Do you recall that?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes, I do.
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Q. Did you have a chance to look at the amended retu rns

over the break?

A. (St. Cyr) I did not.

Q. Okay.  If Staff were to tell you that there was

approximately 45,000 in carry-forward in 2012, do y ou

have an opinion on that?

A. (St. Cyr) I would say that that's not true.

MS. BROWN:  At this point, Staff has

found this error.  And, I think it would be most ef ficient

if Mr. Laflamme walked Mr. St. Cyr through the amen ded tax

returns that were filed in response to Staff's data

requests, just so we can get that --

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  I'm not sure I'd

characterize it as an "error".  But it's fine for

Mr. Laflamme to walk some questions through, and we  can

make sense of it after we've heard the answers.

MS. BROWN:  Okay.  And, this bears on

whether they think the Company has exhausted its

carry-forward or not.  So, Mr. Laflamme.  

BY MR. LAFLAMME: 

Q. Yes.  I guess I'd first like to draw your attenti on to

the 2008 return as originally filed.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Excuse me, could you

give us page numbers?
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MR. LAFLAMME:  Exhibit 4.  And, as soon

as I get to it, I'll give you a page number.  I hav e

Page 33 of Exhibit 4.  Staff -- the response to Sta ff 1-1.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  And, this is on the

backside of a piece of paper that says "2008" on it ?  So,

it's on the other side of that?

MS. BROWN:  Yes.

BY MR. LAFLAMME: 

Q. And, according to the 2008 return as originally f iled,

the 2008 tax year generated a net operating loss of

"$228,981".  Would you agree with that?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. And, then, turning to Page 52 of the response to Staff

1-1, that net operating loss carry-forward was redu ced

by $56,098, to an amount of "$172,883".  Would you

agree with that?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. All right.  

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Excuse me.  Could you

give that number again, because ours are kind of ch opped

off here a little bit?

MR. LAFLAMME:  $172,883.

WITNESS ST. CYR:  And, what was the

amount that it was reduced by?  Fifty-six?
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MR. LAFLAMME:  $56,098.  Yes, Line --

Line 28.

BY MR. LAFLAMME: 

Q. And, then, going forward to 2009, the return, as

originally filed, indicated that there was no incom e or

loss for 2009.  This is on Page 65 of Staff 1-1.

Again, Line 28.

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. And, then, moving forward again, to Page 84 of St aff

1-1, that amount was -- Line 28 was amended to now

reflect taxable income of "$11,554"?

A. (St. Cyr) I see that amount, yes.

Q. Resulting in the use of $11,554 of the net operat ing

loss carry-forward from the prior year?

A. (St. Cyr) I see that amount, yes.

Q. So, according to my calculations, after amending the

2007, 2008, and 2009 returns, my calculations show that

the Company had a carry-forward of $161,329.  Would  you

agree with that?

A. (St. Cyr) I guess, if you can provide me with the

calculation, I can certainly take a look at it.  I

don't see that offhand, no.

Q. Okay.  So, according to my calculations, the Comp any

had a net operating loss carry-forward at the end o f

     {DW 13-041} [RE: Emergency Rates] {03-06-13/Da y 1}

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24



   137
             [WITNESS PANEL:  Mason|Dawson|St. Cyr]

2009 of $161,329, and Staff can provide the

calculations for that.

If we move ahead to the -- to the

response to --

MR. RICHARDSON:  Just could the witness

be allowed to agree or disagree with that?

MS. BROWN:  Yes.  And, I realize this is

part testimony.  I mean, Staff has -- I realize we just

have this one copy.  We could approach Mr. St. Cyr and see

if we agrees with Mr. Laflamme's calculations that he's

read into the record.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Well, let me ask

this.  You've read some conclusions into the record  of

your calculations.  Can you just step us through?  You've

showed us a couple different numbers.  But if, on P age 52,

the net operating loss carry-forward was down to

"172,882", is that correct?

MR. LAFLAMME:  172.883.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  883.  And, then,

from that, did you subtract the 11,000 --

MS. BROWN:  -- 554 dollars.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  And, is

that what gets you to the "161,321"?

MR. LAFLAMME:  "161,329", yes.
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CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  329, thank you.  All

right.  So, whether Mr. St. Cyr can follow those

calculations and would agree with whether those are

appropriate, I think you can ask him about that.  A nd, if

he disagrees, then you can testify when you're on t he

stand about the work you did on those numbers.

BY MR. LAFLAMME: 

Q. Would you agree that, after the 2009 amended retu rn,

the net operating loss carry-forward was "161,329"?

A. (St. Cyr) I guess I would agree with the math.  B ut it

would certainly be better for us if you simply prov ided

that, provided the calculations that led to the

conclusions, so that we can go ahead and take a loo k at

it, than agree or disagree, rather than me trying t o do

that as you present the numbers.

BY MS. BROWN: 

Q. I guess my question is, at this point, is it accu rate

to say that you are -- the Company is not in a posi tion

to dispute whether this or to comment on whether St aff

has identified a typo or calculation error or that this

is -- that the Company disputes these changes ought  to

be made?

A. (St. Cyr) I think that's fair, yes.

MS. BROWN:  Okay.  So, I think maybe
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it's better to offer Mr. Laflamme as a witness late r to

explain that.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Well, I'm concerned

about where we're going here.  What I just got from  this

was Mr. Laflamme made a mathematical -- just a

subtraction, that even I can do, and taking the Com pany's

numbers, and subtracting another one of the Company 's

numbers, and reaching a result that is, if I'm foll owing

correctly, is completely at odds with the Company's

representations about its status of its net operati ng loss

carry-forward.  

If that's the case, what are we doing

here?  I mean, I don't know what, if you're questio ning

the math, get out a calculator right now and do it.   If

you're questioning the voracity of the numbers, whi ch are

in your own filing, then we ought to take a break a nd you

ought to talk to your counsel and decide why we're

spending time doing this, because all we have to re ly on

here are the numbers you have presented.  And, I'm really

troubled that there's now a suggestion that you're not

sure that your own numbers are accurate on a critic al

piece of evidence.

So, why don't we take a break for a

minute.
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MR. RICHARDSON:  May I interject?

Because I actually would like to hear where this li ne of

questioning is going.  Because, I mean, the Company  has

said all along that, you know, we're looking for wa ys to

avoid this tax liability, because we have, you know , we're

not doing this out of love to send money to the IRS .  I'm

only at the point where I've heard this line of

questioning up to 2009, if I believe, and we're not  yet at

the 2012 tax liability.  So, I'd like to hear, unle ss I

misunderstood, I'd like to see how we get there, be fore

we, you know, before we, you know, call this thing off, I

guess is what I'm --

MS. BROWN:  And, Staff is happy to

caucus with the Company and intervenors offline to resolve

this issue, too, and report back to the Commissione rs

after the break.

MR. RICHARDSON:  And, we've, I mean,

from the get-go, I mean, I've tried to say that we are

going to reconcile this to actual tax liability, pr ecisely

so, you know, these types of discussions can take p lace.

I mean, and what I've just heard is, you know, the first

time I've heard it, as the Commission has as well, so.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Sure.  Let's take a

break.  Fifteen minutes.  Thank you.
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(Whereupon a recess was taken at 2:17 

p.m. and the hearing resumed at 2:43 

p.m.) 

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  We've

come back from a break to let people work through a  couple

of the questions that were coming up in the testimo ny.

And, who do we turn to first?

MS. BROWN:  I thought the Company was

going to offer a position, but --

MR. RICHARDSON:  I certainly can, if

that would help us move more quickly.  I mean, esse ntially

what, from talking to the witness, and I don't want  to

speak for the witness, but, you know, there is -- I

believe we're at the point where we realize there m ay be

an adjustment to the Company's actual tax liability  for

2012.  But I don't believe we've eliminated it.  An d, so,

we're still hoping to proceed.  And, obviously, we came

into this knowing that things might change, and tha t's why

we asked for it to be reconciled.  

So, with that, I'd just as soon get

through these witnesses, so we can get redirect, ge t

things done, and then decide how to proceed, once t he

witnesses are done.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Well, okay.  I think
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we -- we need some certainty in understanding what the

numbers are going to be looking like.  And, maybe t hat's

what continuing with Staff questioning would develo p?

MS. BROWN:  Staff will be happy to ask a

few questions.  I'd like to offer as an exhibit the

calculations we were talking about prior to the bre ak.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  And, is

that something that all the parties have seen?

MS. BROWN:  Yes.  We discussed it during

the break.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.

MR. RICHARDSON:  We have no objection.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Thank

you.  Then, let's mark that identification as "Exhi bit 9"?

MS. DENO:  Yes.

(The document, as described, was 

herewith marked as Exhibit 9 for 

identification.) 

BY MS. BROWN: 

Q. I'd like to hand you a document, Mr. St. Cyr, and  have

you describe it for the record.

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  The document is labeled "Analysis  of

Federal and State Tax Carryforwards".  It was prepa red

by Mr. Laflamme, on behalf of Staff.
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Q. Did you have a chance to review this document ove r the

break?

A. (St. Cyr) I did.

Q. And, do you have any opinion to offer on behalf o f the

Company in response to this document?

A. (St. Cyr) I think there, having reviewed this wit h

Mr. Roberge and Mr. Laflamme, I would say that it d oes

appear to be accurate.  And, the Company would just

like to be able to, you know, look at some of its

worksheets back in the office to confirm it.  But, on

the surface, we believe that this is accurate.  And ,

there is the potential for an additional amount of

carry-forward that could be used against the 2012

taxable income.  

And, I guess the only other thing I

would point out is that this is a reduction, the

"44,899" is a potential reduction in taxable income  and

not in the tax obligation.  We did a rough calculat ion,

at 39 percent, there's a potential reduction in the

federal tax liability of $17,500.  And, unfortunate ly,

we didn't really have a chance to go through the Ne w

Hampshire components, and, again, subject to check with

our own worksheets, at this point I have no reason to

believe that this isn't accurate.
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MS. BROWN:  I forgot what exhibit number

we attributed this to.  Was it 9?

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Yes.

BY MS. BROWN: 

Q. Mr. St. Cyr, as a result of Exhibit 9, does the

Company, and, actually, maybe perhaps this question

should be more appropriately directed to Mr. Mason,  is

the Company going to change the relief sought in it s

Petition?

A. (Mason) Change the number?  Is that what you were

asking?

Q. Are there any changes to the Petition and the rel ief

requested in the Petition as a result of Exhibit 9?

A. (St. Cyr) I'll answer that.  At this point, I wou ld say

"no".  That, to the extent that the Company does

subsequently agree with these amounts, then these

amounts would be subject to the same reconciliation

that the Company has been saying it would do all al ong.

Q. Okay.  I'd like to change the subject.  Mr. St. C yr,

would you agree that Staff never told Lakes Region to

reclassify the pension and other expenses as income ?

A. (St. Cyr) I don't think there was a direct order from

Staff or some communication with Staff requiring us  to

do that.
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Q. And, would you also agree that Staff never recomm ended

Lakes Region reclassify its shareholder loan as equ ity?

A. (St. Cyr) I don't know as Staff recommended that.   But,

in my recollection of the capital structure that wa s

proposed by Mr. Laflamme, and approved by the

Commission, specifically provided for the conversio n of

that shareholder loan to additional paid-in capital .

So, while there wasn't a direct order, per se, ther e

was a reflection of that transaction in the capital

structure proposed by Mr. Laflamme and approved by the

Commission.

Q. Mr. St. Cyr, would Mr -- I'll move on.  Mr. St. C yr, on

Page 11 of your testimony, Lines 21 and 22, you sta te

"the Company plans to seek recovery of costs to pre pare

and present this emergency rate filing."  Do you

remember that testimony?

A. (St. Cyr) I do.

Q. Do you know under what authority the Company is s eeking

what essentially is rate case expenses?

A. (St. Cyr) I'm not familiar with the specific auth ority.

The Company is treating this the same way it would

treat any expenditure incurred in pursuing a rate

increase.

Q. Mr. St. Cyr, with respect to the 2012 taxes, are those
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due on next Friday, March 15th?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  I would actually say they were du e

earlier.  But, with the filing of the tax return, t hey

would certainly be due at that point, yes.

Q. Where would the money come from to pay that?

A. (St. Cyr) At this point, the Company doesn't have  the

money to pay that.

Q. With respect to the crisis that's described, the

financial crisis that's described in the testimonie s as

a reason why the Company is seeking emergency rates , is

this crisis, in your opinion, permanent?  Temporary ?

A. (St. Cyr) You know, it's been ongoing for a long time.

At this point, it's not over.  And, I would like to

think that it's "temporary".  But I just know that the

-- particularly the capital requirements of the Com pany

going forward, you know, really don't go away.  So,  I

would be reluctant to say that "it's over."

Q. I'd like to have you comment, Mr. St. Cyr, on how  this

rate -- emergency rate request for -- on account of

taxes is different from the Company having asked fo r

taxes in the last rate case?

A. (St. Cyr) I guess maybe the big difference is tha t

there is now a tax obligation associated with the t ax

expense.  Where previously those tax expenses could
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potentially have been offset by other deductions.

Q. Mr. St. Cyr, you discussed needing "to amend the

returns because of an invalid expense".  Do you

remember that testimony?

A. (St. Cyr) I do.

Q. An invalid expense, for ratemaking purposes here at the

Commission, does not necessarily mean that it's an

expense that requires an amendment to the return.

Would you agree with that?

A. (St. Cyr) I'm not sure I would agree with that.  You

know, if an expense isn't recognized by the Commiss ion

and isn't recognize on the books of the company, I know

of -- I don't know of a specific basis that would t hen

allow me to recognize that as an expense on the tax

return.

Q. Okay.  Let me ask it a different way.  Have you b een

involved with prior utilities that have had expense s

that weren't allowed in rates?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. And, did those expenses necessitate a amendment o f

income tax returns?

A. (St. Cyr) I guess I'm trying to think of a specif ic

example.

Q. I can give you one.  
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A. (St. Cyr) Okay.

Q. And, I hate to go back to fines and penalties.  I f

fines and penalties were not allowed as expenses as

part of ratemaking, would those, for instance,

necessitate amending tax returns?

A. (St. Cyr) The penalties would not have been recog nized

on the tax returns either.  They're not an allowabl e

deduction.  

Q. Okay.

A. (St. Cyr) I would say, with respect to interest, it

would depend on the magnitude of the expense, I thi nk,

the amount of the expense.

Q. I used a bad example, but I'll move on.

MS. BROWN:  Staff has completed its

cross-examination.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.

Questions from Commissioners?  Commissioner Harring ton.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  I'll try to make this

as expeditious as possible.  So, whoever is the mos t

appropriate person should just answer any of these

questions please.

BY CMSR. HARRINGTON: 

Q. On your Exhibit 6, which is an expense list, it l ists,

among other things, "Total State of New Hampshire
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Property and Other Taxes" owed "31,153".  Are these  --

is this amount included in the amount of taxes that

you're trying to pay with the emergency rates?  Bec ause

these are identified as "property taxes", and you t alk

about "federal and state income taxes".

A. (St. Cyr) These are state and local property taxe s, and

are not the taxes that we're requesting.

Q. Okay.  So, there would be, even if you get the

emergency rate increase, you still have a liability , as

of the end of February, of "31,153.75" to the State  of

New Hampshire for "Property and Other Taxes", is th at

correct?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. Okay.  And, on the same Exhibit 6, going up a lit tle

bit further, it talks about "Total Property Taxes",

which is the property taxes you owe to municipaliti es.

This is "43,109.74".  Is that included in the amoun t

that you're seeking to pay with the emergency rates ?

A. (St. Cyr) No.

Q. Okay.  And, so, that's another 43,109.74 that you 're

going to have to -- that you have liability for.  H ow

are you planning on paying those two bills?

A. (Mason) We work on them on a regular basis, almos t a

weekly basis, to pay them, to catch up on all our
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property taxes.  We've caught up on a lot of our

payables, and some of the property taxes are still

outstanding.  But we'll get, you know, we'll defini tely

have them paid up, you know, sometime during late

spring.

Q. And, does that include the almost $20,000 that's over

13 months in arrears?

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. But the fact that you had the $20,000 that you ha ven't

been able to pay off for over a year, that does not

constitute a need for emergency rates, then, I assu me,

correct?  Since you didn't request them?

A. (Mason) No.

Q. On the taxes for, going back to the income taxes,

there's been some discussions a couple of times on this

and I'm trying to get it straight.  I'm assuming, a nd

tell me if I'm right or wrong, that during the cour se

of 2012 that the Company was supposed to or should have

paid estimated quarterly income taxes to the federa l

government, is that correct?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. And, those payments were not made, is that correc t?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. So, what happens as a result of not making those
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payments?  Are there penalties, interest or both?

A. (St. Cyr) There's both.

Q. Okay.  And, getting back to the Petition, the amo unt

talks about "recovery of $100,219 in estimated fede ral

and state income taxes".  And, then, there was talk  of

that money would then become -- the emergency rates

would become taxable income, so that would be taxab le,

it would add to it, so it would, in fact, go up.  B ut

there is nothing in that amount that you're request ing

in emergency rates to cover either the penalties or  the

interest associated with the quarterly taxes not ma de

in 2012, is that correct?

A. (St. Cyr) We did not specifically ask for that, n o.

Q. Okay.  So, it's not in there.  Okay.

A. (St. Cyr) It's not in there.

Q. Now, you said you've made no arrangements or had no

conversations with the IRS over the money that's ow ed

to them, is that correct?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes, that's correct.

Q. And, going to Exhibit 7, it appears that this isn 't the

first time that there's been delays in filing taxes .

As you stated earlier, taxes are due on March 15th of

the following year.  In 2007, you filed your taxes on

September 15th of the following year.  On 2008, you
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filed them on December 21st of the following year.

2009, you filed them on 11/4 of the following year.

2010, you filed them May 23rd, of not the following

year, but the year after that.  So, you have a hist ory

of paying your income taxes quite late, is that

correct?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  I think, during most of those yea rs, if

not all of them, that there was no tax payment actu ally

made.  And, there is an automatic extension of six

months the Company can utilize in order to file the  tax

return.  These dates are basically the dates they w ere

filed.

Q. Okay.  So, there was no liability, so there was n o

penalty associated with it?

A. (Witness Mason nodding in the affirmative).

Q. Okay.  Good.  And, I realize, to some extent, thi s

circumstance has changed at least somewhat due to t he

advent of the Exhibit 9.  But I'm trying to figure out

what the philosophy or what the strategy was that t he

Company had.  You came in and you said the emergenc y

rates were going to be based on only collecting wha t

you estimated to be the 2012 tax liability, and the n

they'd be reconciled on the 2012 actual taxes.  But

that you were going to use that money, not only to pay
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the estimated or the taxes, whatever they were for

2012, but you -- somehow you would have to address the

interest that we just spoke about that you've alrea dy

incurred, the penalties you've already incurred, th e

fact that now the total payment is not being made b y

March 15, so, I'm assuming there will be additional

penalties and additional interest, and you were goi ng

to make the 2013 quarterly payments.  How is this

possible and what exactly is your plan, because I

haven't heard one yet?

A. (St. Cyr) I think, again, going back to, you know , sort

of the Fall of 2012, the Company was still pursuing

recognition of the tax expense in the prior rate ca se.

Q. Excuse me, if I could.  You're going backwards in  time.

I'm not trying to look for a justification of how w e

got to the situation.  We get to a situation where we

have interest owed on -- and penalties associated w ith

non-payment of 2012 quarterly -- estimated quarterl y

taxes.  I don't know -- I really don't want to disc uss

why that happened, you just said that it did happen . 

We know there is going to be additional penalties a nd

interest associated with not making the complete

payments of your taxes that are due on the 15th of

March.  Again, we don't need the whys, if that's go ing

     {DW 13-041} [RE: Emergency Rates] {03-06-13/Da y 1}

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24



   154
             [WITNESS PANEL:  Mason|Dawson|St. Cyr]

to happen.  As you go forward, you're going to be

making payments to pay off those -- all those thing s we

just mentioned.  You also just said that you were g oing

to be making payments of the 2013 quarterly estimat ed

taxes, so as to not incur additional fees or penalt ies

and fines on that, penalties and interest on that.  

So, what I'm trying to do is, it seems

like you're asking for a half a pie and you want it  to

pay off a whole pie.  So, maybe I don't understand

accounting that well, but can you explain how this is

going to work, because I don't get it?

A. (St. Cyr) I think the strategy behind the initial

filing was to stabilize the situation.  And, the

Company determined, in its attempt to stabilize it,  it

would ask for an annual increase in revenue based o n

its 2012 obligation.  You're right in that that rea lly

is a half a pie.  That's only going to solve part o f

the problem.  But, to solve the whole problem, the

Company would have to ask, essentially, for two yea rs

worth of tax.  And, it just didn't seem like that w as

the right strategy going into the emergency rate

proceeding.  That the Company wanted to sort of

stabilize its tax situation in the first place, per haps

reconcile it to the extent that there were differen ces,
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and then to work out whatever else needed to be don e in

a rate case, rather than in an emergency proceeding , is

probably the overall strategy that attempts to get us

at least something that's stabilized and something that

the Company can work with.

Q. So, okay, if I'm hearing this then, and this is t he

part I guess that troubles me, that you haven't had  any

agreement with this proposed solution with the IRS.

Because it would seem, if the emergency rate was

granted, you're going to have to go to the IRS and say

"we can pay you some of what we owe you from intere st

and penalties from 2012 not making our payments, we  can

pay you some of our income tax that we owe due on t he

15th of March of this year, and we can make some of  our

2013 quarterly estimated taxes, but we can't come c lose

to paying all of that.  And, it's going to be done over

the next year."  So -- but that has to agree with t he

IRS somehow saying or has to go along with the IRS

agreeing to make that type of a settlement, because  it

will allow you to make those payments, right?

A. (St. Cyr) Well, it's difficult going to the IRS b efore

we've actually filed a tax return and indicate what  our

tax liability is.  The IRS is, as I understand it,

flexible with respect to the period over which paym ents
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may be paid.  So, while we're sort of looking at an

annual amount, depending on, you know, whatever

circumstances at the time and you know the cash

available, we could arguably ask for a longer perio d to

pay some of the tax.

Q. And, as far as what the next step is, then you --  am I

correct in assuming you'll come in with a permanent

rate increase that will use 2012 as the test year, so

that it will include revenues to pay for 2013 taxes ?

Or, otherwise, we're going to be a year from now an d

you're still going to owe a lot of taxes, right?  W here

is the rest of that money coming from?

A. (St. Cyr) Yeah.  I think the short answer is "yes ".

Probably within the permanent rate increase request ,

the Company would look to adjust, you know, the act ual

amount, and then reconciliation of that amount, and

whatever else may be required.

Q. Okay.  So, I'm not trying to put words in your mo uth,

but I'm just trying to figure out, what you're

requesting is emergency rate increase that will get  you

enough revenues so you think you can cut some type of a

deal with the IRS to hold them at bay until you can  get

permanent rate increases to address the tax liabili ty

issues?
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A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. Okay.  All right.  And, again, the 19,000 in prop erty

tax that's at least 13 months, and possibly longer,  you

don't see that as a crisis?

A. (Mason) No.  We make deals with the -- we've been  to

all the towns, and we have an agreement with them t o,

you know, get them caught up over the next six mont hs,

probably less than that.

Q. And, there are no tax liens on your property for any of

the towns?

A. (Mason) No.

A. (Witness Dawson shaking head in the negative).

Q. Okay.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Can I, for the record,

just state that what Commissioner Harrington just

explained was what I was trying to say at the begin ning of

this hearing.  And, I'm glad to have heard him expl ain

what I wanted to say at the beginning, because that  really

is the Company's position and what we've had in our  minds

in conceiving this case.

BY CMSR. HARRINGTON: 

Q. And, just again going back to Exhibit 6, which is  the

Accounts Payable, there is an amount of slightly ov er

$71,000 that's over three years old.  That doesn't
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constitute an emergency that needs to be addressed

prior to the money that you, as you said, you don't

even know how much you owe the IRS yet?  I'm lookin g at

the second page of that.  It says "Total All Payabl es",

extreme right-hand corner "Over 3 Years", "$71,014. 97".

A. (Mason) They seem to be a makeup of Lewis Enginee ring

and Ransmeier & Spellman, which was a law firm that  we

used to use.  As far as Lewis Engineering goes, we --

they recently went bankrupt.  So, I'm not really su re

what's going to happen with that.

Q. I see why, if they don't get paid.

A. (Mason) Well, they knew that that was a deal that  we

had structured with Bruce Lewis over a period of ti me.

That was originally part of the ARRA funding, and i t

got all put off for a period of time.  And, then, h is

-- it's a long story, but there's some bankruptcy

problems.

Q. If we jump ahead to bills that are 13 to 24 month s

overdue, it's 200 -- a little over 210,000.  Again,

those don't impose any threat to the Company where

emergency rates are necessary, I guess?

A. (Mason) The majority of them are all in the room;

Steve, Norman, and other accountants.

Q. Okay.
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MR. RICHARDSON:  Madam Chair, with leave

of the Commission, I hate to interrupt, but there's  a very

significant legal issue that's buried in the questi on that

Commissioner Harrington just asked.  And, that is, because

the Company uses an accrual method of accounting, a ny

forgiveness of amounts that are owed causes the Com pany to

recognize gain when that forgiveness occurs.  And, so, the

Company has been, and I've been willing to negotiat e, as

other vendors are.  But, because of the Company's t ax

liability issues, any agreement that we would reach  to

forgive a debt, where the statute of limitations ha s

already expired and recognize that on its books, wo uld

cause the Company to, ironically, accrue a tax liab ility

in the year in which that was -- took place.  And, so,

part of this exhibit was structured with that in mi nd.  

Because I recall, in the last rate case,

Commissioner Harrington asking those very types of

questions.  How many of these payables are real?  A nd,

there are payables there that I think the Company, and in

the Lewis case, for example, could recognize that t he

statute of limitations has expired on them, they mi ght be

settled for pennies on the dollar.  But that would cause

the Company to incur an immediate tax liability and  worsen

the circumstances in which it has -- which had brou ght it
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before the Commission to today.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Didn't we just make a

change a little bit while ago to someone's testimon y

saying that the Company was not negotiating with it s

vendors to try to reduce payments?  Now, you're tel ling me

that they are.  I mean, we just struck out some tes timony

somewhere, I don't know exactly where it was, I can 't

remember.  Was it Mr. St. Cyr's testimony?

MR. RICHARDSON:  And, I think that's

part of the reason, at least from a -- from a tax

liability standpoint -- 

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Page 7.

MR. RICHARDSON:  -- I advised the

Company that they really can't be -- that there are  tax

liabilities associated with restructuring a lot of these

payables, even if the vendors themselves, and I'm o n this

list as well.  I mean, there are things shown as ow ed

Upton & Hatfield that we've, even in meetings with Staff,

have indicated a willingness to forgo.  But the pro blem we

face right now is that causes the Company to incur a tax

liability.  And, I apologize for derailing your que stions,

but I wanted that issue to be brought into the disc ussion.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  So, the good news is,

some of the vendors may forgive the debt, but, as s oon as
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they do, then it becomes taxable income, and the IR S won't

forgive that taxable income.  That's the bad news?

MR. RICHARDSON:  That's correct.

BY CMSR. HARRINGTON: 

Q. Okay.  All right.  And, there was some question

earlier, and why not a temporary rate increase on t his,

instead of emergency filings, when you've already s aid

that the emergency rate increase is not going to

address the -- not even -- forget about all these

questions we just talked about with owing property

taxes and vendors and so forth, but, even the taxes  you

owe the State of New Hampshire, other than property

taxes, and I guess the Business Enterprise Tax,

probably mostly, and the federal income tax, it's n ot

going to address those, only by a small amount.  So ,

you're going to have to come back with some other

method of doing that.  Why not use temporary rate

increases, instead of emergency rate increases?

A. (St. Cyr) I would defer to counsel.

Q. Okay.  All right.

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. We'll wait on that one.  Okay.  There was a quest ion by

the OCA to Mr. St. Cyr, and it was on response to t he

original filing, referencing a particular Supreme C ourt
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case, on Page 3.  But, basically, it came to the ex tent

that whether the Company was -- had net operating

losses.  And, I believe you answered, Mr. St. Cyr, that

the Company no longer had net operating losses?

A. (St. Cyr) I believe that was a statement in Mr. M ason's

testimony.  And, yes, I said that there were no lon ger

net operating losses available.

Q. Okay.  And, when you say that, does that include -- how

does the taxes that you owe from 2012 and estimated

quarterly tax payments for 2013 fit into that?

A. (St. Cyr) Well, the net operating losses, you kno w, if

they existed, they could be used to offset any taxa ble

income.  And, we're saying that there -- they don't

exist anymore, so there's nothing to offset the tax able

income, which creates the tax.

Q. Okay.  I guess maybe I'm just a little confused o n this

terminology.  

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Excuse me, Commissioner

Harrington?  

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Yes.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  If I could just, the

question that I had asked was based on the Petition  that

the Company filed.  It was Page 4 of the Petition.  I

believe that's what you're asking about.
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CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Yes.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  And, it was a statement

that the Company was experiencing "continuing opera ting

losses", just to point you to where we were talking  about

that.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Yes.  

BY CMSR. HARRINGTON: 

Q. This is -- this, I think, is from the Supreme Cou rt,

where it says "the minimum of emergency relief to w hich

the Company is entitled is a sum --

(Court reporter interruption.) 

BY CMSR. HARRINGTON: 

Q. "The minimum of emergency relief to which the com pany

is entitled is a sum which will put a stop to the

continuing operating losses of the company", and go es

on from there.  And, then, the Petition says "This

requires that the Commission approve emergency rate s

sufficient to pay the Company's going-forward tax

relief, plus interest on its outstanding 2012 tax

liability, in order to stop the continuing operatin g

losses of the company."  And, now, you're saying th at

"there is no continuing operating losses of the

Company."  So, I'm a little confused.  Does that me an,

not including the tax liability, there's no operati ng
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loss, but, if you put the tax liability in, there i s an

operating loss?  Because that seems to be the heart  of

your case, as to why you need the emergency relief.

A. (St. Cyr) The statement to "stop the continuing

operating losses for the Company", that's cited on Page

4 of the Petition, is a reference to the net operat ing

losses that existed and were accumulated from 2007 to

2009, and then utilized in 2010 and '11.  So, the

reference to "stop the continuing operating losses"  is

what that references to.

Q. So, there's no longer any operating losses to sto p as

of today, as we sit here right now?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. And, I guess my question would be, when you make that

statement, where does the tax liability that you ha ve

fit in?

A. (St. Cyr) In 2012, the Company has the liability,  it's

recorded on its books, and has set up a liability.

It's recognized the tax expense and set up a liabil ity

as of 12/31/2012.

Q. So, maybe we can talk in non-technical accounting  terms

here.  You don't have an operating loss for 2012, b ut

you have this liability for taxes.  If you put them

together, do you have a negative balance?  I'm tryi ng
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to see, is the amount you owe in taxes more than th e

amount you -- well, what's -- your operating gain, I

guess, the opposite of an operating loss?

A. (St. Cyr) I guess I'm -- I'm just searching for s ort of

an exhibit that I could point to.  I guess I would

point, hopefully, this will help, I'm looking at th e

Company's data response to 1-5.  The response is 16 5.

And, I'm specifically looking at the "Statement of

Operation and Retained Earnings", this is on Page 1 67.

The very first column, "Preliminary Actual 2012", t his

includes the recognition of expense.  You've got th e

two line items, "Provision for income tax - current ",

"Provision for income tax - deferred".  And, with t he

inclusion of those tax expense, the Company would

realize a net income of $142,617.  And, the net inc ome

would indicate that there -- the Company doesn't ex pect

a net operating loss, but that those -- the money

that's generated from that income is what's used to ,

you know, pay for capital improvements, return on

capital, you know, the reduction of the liabilities .

There's a lot of cash requirements in order to, you

know, utilize that income.

Q. But you have already included the $97,949 of tax

liability from 2012 in the calculation that got you  a
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net income of 142,617, correct?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. Okay.  Again, I'm not an accountant, please don't  be

offended by my question.  How do you get to the fac t

then that you need emergency rates to pay your 2012

taxes, if, after you account for paying for them, y ou

have them listed here, you take them into account, you

end up with 142,000?  Am I just missing something i n

the way this chart reads?

A. (St. Cyr) Actually, maybe a better chart to look at

would be the statement of cash flow, and this is on

Page 164.  And, this starts with the net income we just

talked about.  And, this is the net income that's

available for all of the Company's cash requirement s.

And, you know, there are some changes to operating

accounts that, if you look at the line item that sa ys

"Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities", the

Company essentially has $480,000 to work with,

including that net income of 142,000.  Well, how do es

it utilize those funds?  It utilizes those fends by

purchasing plant, by paying principal and interest on

the loan, by returning capital to the shareholder.

And, the net result is the "cash at the end of the

year", the very last number is the "11,303".  
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Q. And, does the -- are the 2012 taxes addressed som eplace

in this column that we just went over on Page 160 - -

A. (St. Cyr) It would be netted in the "Net Income"

number, the "142,617".

Q. One hundred -- I'm sorry.  Oh, up the top, "Net

Income".  So, if it's already in there, then why do  you

need emergency rates to account for it, if, after y ou

account for it, and you make all these other paymen ts,

you're left with $11,000 at the end of the year,

$11,303?

A. (St. Cyr) And, we haven't paid that, even though we've

recognized the expense.  We have the liability and we

have $11,303 to pay that particular expense.

Q. But it's already accounted for when you come up w ith

the $142,617, isn't it?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  The expense is accounted for, but  the

expense hasn't been paid for.

Q. Well, I could spend -- I'm just showing my naivet é on

accounting.  I'll have to have someone explain that  to

me, because I clearly don't understand what you're

talking about.  It seems like you're counting it tw ice,

but I'm sure I'm probably wrong on that.  There was  a

couple other questions.  Oh, while we were on that page

there, that Page 164, there was the additional paid -in
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capital of 123,356 for 2012.  Is there any intent o f

making another payment similar to that in 2013?

A. (Mason) No.

Q. So, then, we can take that as absolute, there wil l not

be a payment of that amount in 2013?

A. (Mason) Correct.  

Q. Won't be two dollars less or 50 cents more or --

A. (Mason) No.  No.

Q. No additional paid-in capital payments period?

A. (Mason) Right.

Q. Okay.  And, last, I'm getting to the end here, --

BY CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: 

Q. While you're searching, let me just be sure we're

clear, because this "paid-in capital" and a "decrea se

in paid-in capital" are two different things?

A. (Mason) I meant a decrease in it.

Q. Okay.  And, I think Commissioner Harrington's

question -- 

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Sorry.

BY CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: 

Q. -- would there be any more paid-in, which would p resume

from your mother to the Company; we're talking abou t

the opposite.  Any expectation of any "return of

capital", as Mr. St. Cyr called it, from the Compan y to
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Mrs. Mason?

A. (Mason) Right.  And, that's no.  That's still "no ".

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Thank you, Chairman.

That helps.  I didn't realize I had that backwards.

Wouldn't be the first time I screwed up accounting terms,

I'm sure.

BY CMSR. HARRINGTON: 

Q. The last question I want to address is the whole

concept of "why this is an emergency?"  Because we

really haven't seen -- we see an awful lot of thing s

here, I see $600,000 plus that you owe vendors, and

that's not an emergency.  And, see 70,000, some of it

is owed for over three years, and that's not an

emergency.  I see $43,000 in property taxes, some o f

which is over 13 months old, $20,000 of it, and tha t's

not an emergency.  I see 31,000 of "other taxes", n on

-- not "income taxes", as you refer in the Petition ,

that's owed to the State of New Hampshire, and that 's

not an emergency.  So, I'm trying to figure out wha t

makes this particular amount an emergency.  

And, if you -- going through your

testimony, I'm just going to kind of flip through, this

is Mr. Mason's testimony.  And, on Page 4, for exam ple,

you say your rates "are insufficient to prevent
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financial condition from deteriorating"..."without

revenues to pay its existing and accrued tax liabil ity

in its rates, the Company's already difficult finan cial

condition will deteriorate."  And, these are the ty pe

of words that are used throughout the testimony.  A nd,

on Page 12, "will cause its financial condition to

deteriorate and render its efforts to reduce payabl es

ineffective."  

And, I could go on, but I'm not going

to, other than in the "Conclusion" section of your

testimony, on Page 14, where you say "The absence o f

any allowance for Federal and State income taxes in

2012 has caused the Company's financial condition t o

deteriorate, despite significant progresses having been

made to improve operations and regulatory complianc e."

And, never once do I see the words from

the statute, which talks about "an emergency exists ",

and, you know, there's some type of a crisis here.  Can

you explain exactly what the crisis is that is so b ad

that you couldn't wait, for example, to file tempor ary

rates associated with a permanent rate case, which you

said "there's a 99.9 percent chance you're going to

filing in the spring"?

WITNESS MASON:  Justin, do you want to,
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or do you want me?

MR. RICHARDSON:  You were asked the

question, so --

WITNESS MASON:  Okay.

BY THE WITNESS: 

A. I believe it all -- it's unfunded taxes is what t he

issue is.  And, what we can't afford to do is, we'r e

trying to pay down our payables.  We're working ver y

hard to.  You know, we have a huge payable list.  A nd,

a lot of it revolves around the last rate case and the

period of time we're going to collect that.  Plus o ther

things that are out there that they have to pay, I

mean, sooner or later.  And, what's happened is, it 's

going to add another $100,000 on the top of that fe e,

you know, on top of the money that we're talking ab out

that we're going to owe the government that's going  to

be unfunded by the customer.  That is the major

emergency.

BY CMSR. HARRINGTON: 

Q. Okay.  But you didn't feel it was necessary to go  to

the IRS and say "Look, here's our situation.  We're

going to file temporary rates.  We're going to ask for

a permanent rate case.  We should be getting additi onal

revenues to cover this.  Here's why we don't have t he
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money.  And, when we get that, the ultimate solutio n is

the permanent rate case.  And, therefore, can you m ake

some kind of a payment structure so we can meet our

obligations over time, without getting into any

trouble."  You didn't think that was necessary or

worthwhile trying?

A. (Mason) I didn't think it was -- it would work.  You

know, this has been a really busy year.  I mean, we 've

had the rate case.  We got done with the rate case.   We

got, you know, the results from it in the end of Ju ly,

the first of August.  Then, we had a rehearing, and , in

September or maybe early October, we found out that

wasn't going to fly.  And, it all revolves around t hese

taxes.  And, then, at that point, we were dealing w ith

rate recoupment, and filing all the stuff we needed  to

for rate recoupment.  And, looking for a financial

manager and all these different things that were ou t

there.  And, you run out of time to, you know, to - - I

never even thought about calling the IRS and saying ,

you know, "you guys mind if I don't pay you?"  It j ust

never even dawned on me.  We didn't even know that --

you know, we knew we were going to have a tax probl em,

you know, at the end of the rate case, basically,

because it was -- we just knew that.  It's just gro wn
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and grown since then.

Q. But, if I'm correct, based on the previous discus sions,

that, if you were to get the amount that you're

requesting in emergency rates, it would still manda te

that you go to the IRS and work out a payment 

schedule?

A. (Mason) Correct.  Correct.

Q. Because, even with the rates granted in full, the re's

no way you could pay your taxes on time?

A. (Mason) Correct.  And, both, you know, the people  that

I rely on, Norman and Steve, both said that, you kn ow,

that wasn't anything we should deal with until afte r we

actually file the tax return.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Thank you.  That's

all the questions I have at this time.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.

Commissioner Scott.

CMSR. SCOTT:  Good afternoon.  Again,

same rules, whoever feels best to answer these ques tions,

please do so.

BY CMSR. SCOTT: 

Q. I want to go back to the "return of capital" disc ussion

a little bit.  And, if I understood right, the

statement was made that there was an "obligation" t o do
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this, that's why the payment was done.  And, if I

understood right also, and I'll let you say "yes" a t

the end of this, so the court reporter can get it,

rather than nodding your head.  If I understood rig ht,

you mentioned there was -- somebody mentioned there  was

an obligation of a million dollars to be paid back,  is

that correct?

A. (Mason) No, no, no.  There's been a ton of money that

my parents have put in.  And, in the last five year s,

they've put in over a million dollars.  There's no

obligation to pay that all back.  When my dad was s ick

and, you know, pretty much, in the rest home and

everything else, my mother needed money.  And, so, we

made arrangements to get her some money with return  of

capital for a period of time, until she got, you kn ow, 

that he passed away and things got better.  And, at

this point, she doesn't need that.

Q. So, that would imply, if there was a payment made  for

return of capital, again, a term I'm not familiar w ith,

there is some documentation of this obligation that

it's being paid against?

A. (Mason) Excuse me?

Q. How do -- where is it carried, this obligation th at you

were paying this return of capital back to?
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A. (St. Cyr) Well, it's reflected on the balance she et on

a line item called "additional paid-in capital".  A nd,

when the Company makes the payment to Barbara, then  the

amount of additional paid-in capital gets reduced b y

whatever the amount is that was paid to her.

Q. So, somewhere there's a documented obligation tha t

needs to be paid against that's somewhere in the

documentation?

A. (St. Cyr) It's reflected on the Company's balance

sheet, and represents the accumulation of funds

contributed by the Masons over a period of time.

Q. So, what's the remaining obligation then?

A. (St. Cyr) If you go to Schedule -- I'm sorry, thi s is

the Company's response to Staff Data Request 1-5.  On

the very -- this is Page 166.  The amount, as of th e

end of 12/31/2012, is "$955,248".  This is second h alf

of the page, first category "Stockholders' Equity",  the

line item "Additional Paid-in Capital", and the 

balance at December 31, 2012 is the "$955 --

$55,248" [$955,248].

Q. Okay.  So, I understood it right, "900,055, not 9 55?

A. (St. Cyr) $955,248.

Q. Right.  Thank you.  I thought I heard --

A. (Mason) He did it.  He said that.
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Q. I thought I heard "$955" you said.

A. (St. Cyr) I'm sorry.

Q. So, is that -- that's an obligation that remains to be

paid then?

A. (St. Cyr) It's equity that the -- this is equity that

the sole shareholder has invested in the Company ov er

time.  There isn't a set obligation, per se.

Q. Yes, I'm just trying to -- what I'm trying to get  at is

the legal mechanism by which you make a payment for

return of investment, how does that work?  I unders tood

the Board of Directors voted to do that.  I also

understand the mechanism by which that happens.  So ,

were these effectively loans to the utility, with

conditions by which it would be paid back?  Is that  

the --

A. (St. Cyr) This was money invested, you know, by t he

Masons, you know, that the Company utilized.  There

isn't a specific -- it's not like a loan, where the re's

a specific term or a specific amount that's paid.  It's

money they have invested that, you know, arguably c ould

be paid at any time, provided there was cash availa ble

to do that.

Q. I'll move on then, I think.  But, thank you.  Bac k to

the determination whether this is an emergency or n ot.
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What would happen if we were not to approve this, t his

filing?

A. (St. Cyr) The Company would not have the cash to pay

the tax and would have another expense or expenditu re

that, you know, it juggles from period to period to

make a determination as to, you know, when and if i t

could get paid.

Q. And, I think, and I apologize, I don't know who

mentioned this, there was some talk about a potenti al

or in the past you have made use of a six-month

extension for the IRS, is that correct?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  This is an automatic extension th at any

company can take advantage of.  It doesn't extend t he

time in which the obligation should be paid.  If th at

obligation exists, then it exists whether you file a

return in March or in September.  But companies do have

the option of filing six months on an automatic bas is.

Q. So, again, you've articulated, the hope is by May , if I

remember correctly, you'd have a rate case in befor e

us?

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. I understand that doesn't happen overnight, but w hat

would be the harm of including all this in the norm al

sequence of events?
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A. (St. Cyr) I think the harm or the concern that th e

Company would have is that it would -- at that poin t it

would be too late to address the 2012 tax obligatio n

that, you know, we would be preparing a rate case b ased

on 2012 test year, but it would be going forward.  And,

I think the Company felt like they needed something ,

you know, ahead of that in order to attempt to, you

know, address really the obligation that exists tod ay.

Q. Okay.  And, this is probably for Mr. St. Cyr, but ,

again, whoever wants to answer it.  Well, no, it is  for

Mr. St. Cyr, I think.  Is it -- now, I want to disc uss

a little bit more the line of questioning regarding  the

amended tax returns and the reason for that.  And, if I

-- I just want to make sure I understand you correc tly.

Are you saying, or at least in this case, that the

general accounting principles for ratemaking, compa red

to for what you would file for IRS, are basically o ne

in the same, and that's why you felt an obligation to

amend the tax return?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  The tax code does provide for cer tain

exceptions, where you can treat something different ly

for tax purposes.  Depreciation is probably the mos t

common item, where the cost basis would be the same ,

but the amount that you can recognize for tax purpo ses

     {DW 13-041} [RE: Emergency Rates] {03-06-13/Da y 1}

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24



   179
             [WITNESS PANEL:  Mason|Dawson|St. Cyr]

is on a much more accelerated basis.  It could be

either the whole amount or it can be an accelerated

amount, much quicker than you could recognize for b ook

purposes.  There are no specific exceptions related  to

the transaction that the Company did that would all ow

us to treat that, you know, those transactions

differently for tax purposes.  And, so, in part,

because of that, the Company felt the obligation to

amend the returns.

Q. Okay.  And, my last question for now is, if we we re to

grant this, your request, would that fix what you'r e

calling an "emergency"?  Would that fix the crisis?

A. (Mason) It would fix the tax.  Yes, it would.  I mean,

we're still, you know, we're still going to be taki ng a

while to pay off all of our payables.  I mean, we'r e

definitely working on them and getting them paid of f.

That's going to take another probably a year to do.

CMSR. SCOTT:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Mr. Dawson, you've

been sitting so quietly.  I think it's time to give  you a

few questions, --

WITNESS DAWSON:  Excellent.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  -- so you know it

was worth coming today.  
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BY CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: 

Q. In your prefiled testimony, you described some

improvements to the Company and changes that have b een

beneficial for the operations, which are great to r ead.

I do want to ask you, though, to pinpoint any

investments made, not over the last few years, whic h

your testimony does, but specifically since the las t

rate case, conclusion of the rate case.  So, since

September I think is when the order on rehearing wa s

done.  So, really, the very last quarter of 2012, w ere

there investments made --

A. (Dawson) In 2000 -- yes, there was.  In the last

quarter of 2012, we worked in the Deer Cove pump

station, replumbed the entire pump station, upgrade d

some pumps, upgraded some controls that were older than

me.  And, we've also done some water conservation

compliance for Hidden Valley, as far as meter

calibration.  And, also been working on a new and

improved Capital Management Program during that tim e.

Because that quarter of the year is typically our

quieter time, other than freezing houses, but there 's a

lot of office time that time of year.

Q. Do you have a monetary value for the investments that

were made?  Is that something that you -- you track  and
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can identify the last quarter?

A. (Dawson) I wouldn't feel comfortable giving you a

specific number.  I don't know exactly.

Q. Were the Deer Cove pump station improvements thin gs

that were mandated by DES?

A. (Dawson) No.

Q. How about the water -- you said a "water complian ce"

and "meter calibration", and I didn't get the rest of

the details, were those things that were mandated b y

DES?

A. (Dawson) It was.  Yes, it was.

Q. So, tell me a little bit more about what those we re and

what DES was requiring of you?

A. (Dawson) Basically, part of our water conservatio n plan

in Hidden Valley, which was started in 2008, becaus e

of, basically, it gets adopted when a new well goes  on

line.  And, part of that plan is to look at a water

audit in your water systems and to figure out where  up

might be able to improve your water audit.  Part of

that water audit is, obviously, meter calibration, it's

a big number in the pie.  So, working with Derek

Bennett at the DES, we decided that the meters were  of

the age that they needed some level of calibration done

to them.  So, I basically, after a couple meetings,  we
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sat down and decided to take 10 meters, which is

roughly 10 percent of the meters in that system, an d

calibrate them, and which we have done.  And, then,  the

next step after that, which I have not yet complete d,

because Derek's on vacation, will be to determine h ow

we're going to move forward from there.

Q. All right.  And, the "Capital Management Program"  I

think you referred to, is that something that was

mandated by DES?

A. (Dawson) It is not.  It's highly encouraged.  I'v e been

working with Adam Torrey, who was in here, for a wh ile,

I would say it's been close to a year I've been wor king

with Adam.  But we just finally found a better proc ess,

I think, to handle that, now that I have some offic e

time.

Q. All right.  Thank you.

A. (Dawson) No problem.

Q. Mr. Mason, in your testimony, you had said that,

because of the tax problem, "the Company has been

unable to earn a sufficient return, reduce its

payables, and maintain its financial condition."

That's at the bottom on Page 5.

A. (Mason) Yes.

Q. If you haven't paid your taxes, then how is it th at the
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lack of revenue for taxes has caused you to be unab le

to earn a return or reduce payables?

A. (Mason) Well, that's probably not really the righ t

wording of that.  Whereabouts are you looking at?  

Q. Your testimony, Page 5, the bottom three lines, 2 1

through 23.

A. (Mason) I think it just means going forward.  Wha t we

talked about was that, if we had to pay those, we'r e

going to have to slow down in paying our payables.

And, at the minute, we don't have a tax liability, or,

actually, we do now, by the end of the year.  But I

think what I was trying to get at was that, we're g oing

to have to pay the government somehow.  And, we're also

really trying to pay off these payables that have b een

out there so long.  You know, it was going to impac t

being able to do that.

Q. And, in fact, your calculations for 2012 show tha t you

have earned -- met your authorized rate of return a nd

slightly exceeded, yes?

A. (Mason) Well, it's a little -- it's a little dece iving.

There's $43,000, I believe, that was rate recoupmen t,

when we started our rate case in 2010, that came in  in

2012.  So that, we really need to back that $43,000  out

of that data.  It's not backed out.  So, it's actua lly
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money that should have come in in 2010, that came i n in

2012, which will lower the rate of return a little bit.

You know, and the raw calculations, I think we

overearned by $7,000, or something like that.  It's  not

a huge overearnings.  But there is $43,000 that's i n

there that isn't really part of that.

Q. All right.  Thank you.  Mr. St. Cyr, can you help  me

understand, in the rate of return calculation, and I'm

looking at Page 162, I think it is, of Exhibit 4.  It's

in Tab 3.  Do you have that?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. If you look in the middle of the page, in the far  left

column, there's "Prepaid Taxes" and "Accrued Taxes" .

What do each of those categories include?

A. (St. Cyr) The "Accrued Taxes" would include the t axes

for federal and state income taxes that are the sub ject

of this proceeding.  The "Prepaid Taxes", that's li kely

to be local property taxes.  These would be propert y

tax bills that came in in the fall that pertain to the

period October 1 through March 31st.  To the extent

that the Company paid them in 2012, then they would

recognize a prepayment for the portion that relates  to

2013.

Q. So, a payment that crosses over two years, a port ion
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would be allocated -- well, it's not allocated, it

would all be recognized in as an expense in 2012, e ven

though some of it goes to 2013?  Or, are these 2011

payments going to 2012?

A. (St. Cyr) It's the property tax that pertains to 2012

gets recognized in 2012.  To the extent that the

Company paid a bill that pertains to 2013, January,

February, March of 2013, those amounts is what woul d be

included in "prepaid taxes".

Q. And, when you have accrued taxes in brackets, tha t

"98,500" figure, what does that mean in working thr ough

the calculations here?

A. (St. Cyr) That's a reduction to rate base.  In ot her

words, the top portion of the calculation is a

calculation to determine what rate base is.  And,

accrued liabilities or accrued taxes is a reduction  to

rate base.  It's recognition that the Company hasn' t

paid those taxes, so it shouldn't earn a return on

something that it hasn't paid for yet.

Q. You had said before, I think in looking at this e xhibit

actually, this Page 162, that the net operating inc ome

that's shown really is identifying cash available t hat

can be used for multiple purposes.  And, as you put  it,

money used to pay the obligations of the Company, i s
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that right?

A. (St. Cyr) The specific reference to "cash" may no t be

exactly appropriate, but, yes.  Basically, this is

after the Company has paid its operating expenses o r

recognizes its operating expenses, this is funds th at

are available supposedly to pay principal and inter est

on loans and return on and of capital.

Q. And, when you're making that calculation of what' s

available after paying recognized obligations, that 's

not the phrase you just used, but something like th at,

does that include the tax obligations?

A. (St. Cyr) This amount does, yes.

Q. All right.  So, although the payment hasn't been made,

reaching that $211,000 figure is assuming tax

obligations have been met for the year, correct?

A. (St. Cyr) It's assuming that the tax expense has been

recognized.  And, I guess I would -- it's clearer, or

at least for me, on Page 167.  Again, if you look a t

the first column, the amount that we're talking abo ut,

"net operating income", is "$211,777".  A couple li nes

up above that is the recognition of the expense tha t is

the subject of this proceeding.  And, what it doesn 't

include, the 211, as you drop further down the line ,

you can see the interest expense comes out of that
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money, that's interest mostly on the debt.  But, th en,

in addition to that, you know, if you drop to the " Net

Income" line, then that "net income" line, at least  in

theory, is what's available to pay principal on the

loans, to return capital, to make investments in pl ant.

It's all of those things that this net income is

supposed to provide for.

Q. Well, what troubles me is we work through this, w here

you have an identification at the top of the page o f a

provision for income taxes, that sort of presumes t hat

money's kind of spoken for, that it's understood th at

those are obligations that have to be met, and the

money is identified to be able to do that.  And, th en,

when you get to the net income, after all of those

obligations have been met, we then hear from you "w ell,

we need to use this net income to pay the income ta xes,

as well as all of the other expenses of the Company ."

And, I tell you, it baffles me.  Why is it that, by

identifying it up at the top, providing for income

taxes, and then having a net figure after those inc ome

tax obligations have been anticipated, that we're l eft

with insufficient income to pay the income taxes?

A. (St. Cyr) Well, it's more "insufficient cash" tha n it's

"insufficient income".  You know, what we're doing on
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this statement is recognizing the expense, but this

statement doesn't represent, you know, what the cas h is

available in order to pay, not only that expense, b ut

the other expenditures.  And, that's -- sometimes I 've

been kind of flipping back between this and the cas h

flow statement.  The cash flow statement is perhaps  a

better indication of the Company's cash position, a nd,

you know, the cash that it has available and what i t's

doing with that cash.

Q. The payment that was made to Mrs. Mason, what you

called "return of capital", was that made in cash?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. And, you had said, Mr. St. Cyr, that the rates co ming

out of the rate case provided for what you called

"return of capital".  Where is that found?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Ms. Chairman, I'm sorry

to interrupt, and I've heard this happen several ti mes.

And, I don't want my silence to be construed as agr eement.

I thought, working with Mr. Roberge and I thought w orking

with Mr. St. Cyr, that I was told that the return o f

capital was not made in cash.  It was a mixture of cash

and services that were purchased by Barbara Mason.  And, I

--

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Well, your witness
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testified otherwise.  So, if you need to -- I don't  know

what you want to do.  But -- 

MR. RICHARDSON:  I think after this

witness testifies, I may have to confer with Mr. Ro berge

and try to correct the record.  And, I'm just worri ed that

we're digging ourselves deeper and deeper into that  -- in

that point.  And, I just wanted to alert the Commis sion

that that's an area where at least I'm uncertain.  And, I

am not sure that the answer that the Commission has  heard

is correct at this point.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.

WITNESS ST. CYR:  If I may just comment?

The additional paid-in capital is a net number.  It

represents cash payments made to Barbara during 201 1 and

2012.  There were also services that Barbara purcha sed

from the Company for work that was done for her

personally.  There was money that came in from her to pay

for those services.  And, then, there was the money  that

went from the Company to her for the return of capi tal.

And, it's really a net of three or four different

transactions.  The substance of the amount is payme nts to

her over the 2011 to 2012 period.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  I would

like to ask then that we reserve a record request f or an
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accounting of the various components of that $123,0 00

figure, which sounds like you can do.  And, it may even be

in the record somewhere already, if somebody wants to

point me to it.  Otherwise, we can reserve Exhibit 10 for

that.

MS. BROWN:  Madam Chairman, I thank you

for the clarification, because that's one point we were

talking during OCA's questioning about potentially

reserving a record request.  And, I couldn't rememb er if

the Clerk had recorded that we were or if we weren' t,

because the discussion was around what comprised th ose

payments and was there a Board authorization.  So, at this

point, Staff, if there is going to be a record requ est, if

it hasn't already been made, we would also like to ask for

more than just what payments were and when they wer e made.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Well, I think we

reserved number 8, as I recall, for the minutes of any

Board meeting, any authorizations.

MS. BROWN:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  So, let's use 10 for

a delineation of the different components of that, what

shows as reduction in paid-in capital of 123,000 an d some

amount.

(Exhibit 10 reserved) 
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BY CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: 

Q. And, Mr. St. Cyr, when you said that some of it i s for

services performed, I hope I didn't get this wrong,

performed by the Company for Mrs. Mason, is that

correct?

A. (St. Cyr) I believe I said "purchased", Mrs. Maso n

purchased the services from the Company.

Q. So, purchased but -- and paid for or purchased, b ut

didn't pay, because it was a form of a return of mo nies

she put into the Company over the years?

A. (St. Cyr) This is purchased and paid for.

Q. Then, why would that reduce -- why wouldn't that be

income to the Company, rather than reducing paid-in

capital-capital?

A. (St. Cyr) Offhand, I don't know.  I think -- I wa nt to

say it was sort of all netted through this particul ar

account.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right, so, a

delineation of that in Exhibit 10 will be helpful.  Thank

you.

BY CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: 

Q. You had also said, Mr. St. Cyr, that "the rates c oming

out of the rate case concluded this summer provided  for

return of capital."  And, I didn't know what you we re
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referring to.  Can you help explain that?

A. (St. Cyr) The rates that the Company received ref lect a

rate of return.  And, the rate of return is applied  to

rate base.  And, the rate of return, in theory anyw ay,

is what the Company has available to pay its debt a nd

pay its shareholders.  So, when I said that, you kn ow,

"there was money provided", I'm talking about the r ate

of return that's applied to rate base that is gener ally

used to pay principal/interest on debt and

shareholders.

Q. You're not saying that coming out of the rate cas e

there was a delineation of a 123,000 payment to

Mrs. Mason, are you?

A. (St. Cyr) No, I'm -- no.

Q. Mr. Mason, when the rate case order came out and the

denial of the motion for rehearing, which focused

heavily, if not exclusively, on the question of the

taxes, did you appeal that to the State Supreme Cou rt?

A. (Mason) No.

Q. So, when you knew that there was no more opportun ity

for changing the order on provision for rate case

expenses, did you start setting aside money to meet

your tax obligations?

A. (Mason) No.
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Q. Why not?

A. (Mason) Well, it was a discussion Justin and I ha d

about, you know, where we go after that, you know, when

we didn't get the rehearing.  And, what we started to

talk about at that point, which wasn't until, you k now,

when was that, sometime in September, I believe, or

maybe even early October, of, you know, what our

choices were.  And, the choice that we thought made

sense was the one we're doing right now.  With advi ce

from, you know, from -- it was a decision that we m ade

together that this was the direction we were going to

go.  We thought it was the right choice.  Maybe it

wasn't.  I don't know.

Q. I'm sure you recognize a certain frustration on m y

part, and I apologize for getting impatient at vari ous

points.  But, as I see it, what you've described as  an

"emergency", is not an "emergency" under the statut e,

and is -- appears to be of your own making.  And, I

know the Company is in terrible straits financially .

But there is no surprise that the tax bill comes du e.

There couldn't be anything clearer than "taxes are

coming".  You may not know the exact amount, but yo u've

got all sorts of estimates in the financial records  of

what you anticipated.  
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A. (Mason) Well, that's the same argument we used wi th the

rate case.

Q. Right.  And, if you know from -- if you read the orders

why it was that we denied that, and, so, having not

prevailed on that question, I'm just surprised the

Company spent money on other things.  They may be

important things, but, for a company that's got all

sorts of accounts payable, to not set money aside f or

taxes, and then come in and tell us it's "an

emergency", is -- I'm baffled by it.  So, I guess, I'll

wait and let you respond.

A. (Mason) Well, I guess, I mean, I guess what I'm

concerned about is what do we do with the payables?   I

mean, part of the order was to "try to pay down you r

payables".  And, that's what we've really tried to do

is pay down our payables.  And, basically, in kind of

one fell swoop you're adding $100,000 worth of tax

liability to us that we're going to have to pay to

Uncle Sam.  And, I don't know, you know, I mean, ma ybe

the right choice was to go to the Supreme Court.  I

don't know.  But that's a bill that, you know, we h ave

to pay, and it's unfunded by anything.

Is there another way?  I guess I should

ask this.  Is there another way that, if we went fo r a
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regular rate case, would that include -- would we b e

leaving that $100,000 out there?  In other words, b eing

that it was a bill from 2012, with a 2012 test year ,

and would that be included?  Could we collect that?

Or, would that just be "That's before, and sorry ab out

luck.  We'll go forward from today"?  I guess I'm

confused about that.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  I have

no other questions.  Are there any -- I'm sorry,

Commissioner Harrington.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Just one quick

follow-up question, for Mr. Dawson.  We haven't for got

about you, you see.

BY CMSR. HARRINGTON: 

Q. On Page 9 of your testimony, on the top of the pa ge,

you say "Simply put:  If the Company had used $100, 219

in customer revenues to make estimated tax payments  in

2012, the Company would have been unable to operate  its

systems."  So, we're talking about, if they had use d

the money to make the estimated tax payments last y ear,

is what we're talking about here, correct?

A. (Dawson) Correct.

Q. Okay.  Now, let's move ahead to this year.  With the

knowledge, and you may not be able to answer this, so
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please feel free not to, because I know it's kind o f a

difficult question.  But we now seem to have come t o

the conclusion that the tax liability is $17,500 le ss

than that.  And, we've heard here that, regardless of

what it is, it's going to be paid off over the cour se

of a year with some arrangement yet to be described

with the IRS, because it's not going to be a lump-s um

payment.  So, if those payments were made, say, $40 ,000

was deferred to the -- in 2013 to payment of taxes in

lieu of going to other places, would that -- would you

still make that same statement, you would be unable  to

operate the system or --

A. (Dawson) It would definitely negatively affect th e

quality of service, without a doubt.  I mean, there 's

capital improvements that have to be made.  You kno w,

whether we want to make them or not, they have to b e

made.  Whether they're mandated or not, we have to move

forward.  And, if any amount of money that's taken away

from the operations of Lakes Region Water Company's

water systems is going to negatively affect service .

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  All right.  Thank

you.  That's helpful.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Commissioner Scott.  

CMSR. SCOTT:  One, one more follow-up.

     {DW 13-041} [RE: Emergency Rates] {03-06-13/Da y 1}

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24



   197
             [WITNESS PANEL:  Mason|Dawson|St. Cyr]

Thank you.  

BY CMSR. SCOTT: 

Q. Obviously, today's the 6th of March.  No matter h ow we

rule on your request, if I understood right, the 15 th

you're going to be doing a tax filing, is that corr ect?

A. (Mason) I believe so.

Q. Will there be any payment made with that?

A. (Mason) I doubt it.

Q. And, you've also talked about reconciliation afte r you

do file your taxes.  You're ten days -- nine days a way

from that day you're saying you're going to file.  Is

there new information you're waiting for or you jus t

haven't put the taxes together yet or --

A. (Mason) Just the final detail.  Just going over t hem,

making sure we're right.  I mean, obviously, we spe nt a

lot of time, we thought we spent a lot of time on w hat

we did.  You know, the final details will be done, and

then we'll be able to file.

Q. But it just occurs to me again, assuming you get what

you're asking for, that to come back again to recon cile

something that you're that close to finishing, woul dn't

be necessarily a good use of all your time and our

time, does that make sense?

A. (Mason) Yes.
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CMSR. SCOTT:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Mr. Richardson, any

redirect?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Yes.  Thank you.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. RICHARDSON: 

Q. Mr. St. Cyr, I want to walk you through some item s in

the cash flow statement.  So, if you have Staff -- the

responses to Staff 1 -- actually, let's start with 1-3.

And, you see in that document, there's net operatin g

income of "$211,781".

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Let's be clear,

that's not the cash flow statement, correct?  

MR. RICHARDSON:  I'm sorry, yes.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  The rate of return

calculation?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Yes, rate of return

calculation.  

BY MR. RICHARDSON: 

Q. This is on Page 100 -- Tab 3, 162.  You see that?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. Okay.  And, you see it says the actual rate of re turn

is 8,000 -- or, sorry, "8.717 percent".  And, that

results in an exceedance of $7,000.83 [$7,083 ?]?
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A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. And, I believe you said this before, but let me a sk

you.  I mean, is this -- do you put a lot of weight

into this calculation or is the cash flow statement

more important?

A. (St. Cyr) This particular Company's perspective, the

cash flow statement is more important.  It manages its

day-to-day operations really with the cash that's

available.

Q. And, so, why is that more important?  Could you s tate

why it's more important to the Company?

A. (St. Cyr) It's the cash, it's the amount of cash that

the Company has to work with every day.

Q. Okay.  All right.  So, then, the 8 percent, 8.7 p ercent

doesn't mean that the Company had all that money

available to spend?

A. (St. Cyr) No, it does not.

Q. All right.  Now, I'd like you to turn to Staff 1- 5,

Exhibit 1, Page 2.

A. (St. Cyr) I'm there.

Q. Thank you.  And, you'll see, let me find it.  Oh,  okay.

I was on Page 1.  So, Page 2.  You'll see that numb er,

net operating income, "211,781", this one actually says

it's "777", but that's supposed to be about the sam e
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number, is that right?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. Okay.  Now, just to highlight, the first -- one o f the

first things you've taken out of this to determine,  I

guess, how much cash is available is the $73,000 in

interest expense, is that right?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. In interest on the Company's debt?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. And, that you arrive at a number of "142,617"?

A. (St. Cyr) Which represents the Company's prelimin ary

net income for 2012.

Q. Okay.  But is that a statement of the amount of c ash

that the Company has on hand or are there other

obligations it has to meet?

A. (St. Cyr) It's not a statement of cash, and there  are

other obligations that the Company has to meet.

Q. Okay.  So, now, let's jump to the cash flow, Staf f 1-4,

the Company's response.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Is this Page 164

you're moving to?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Correct.

BY MR. RICHARDSON: 

Q. And, we see that number repeated again, the "142, 617"
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that was derived from the schedule we just looked a t,

right.

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. Okay.  And, you know, there's various adjustments  that

are made, for example, "depreciation" is one factor ?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. Okay.  And, then, there's "Principal Payments on Debt".

What is that?

A. (St. Cyr) "$143,588".

Q. And, what does that reflect?

A. (St. Cyr) That would be the principal payment on the TD

Bank loans.

Q. Okay.  So, am I -- I mean, that's greater than wh at

your statement of net income, I believe, from

operations is?

A. (St. Cyr) It is greater, yes.

Q. Okay.  And, then, we drop down and we see "Purcha se of

Plant", and that's 130 -- excuse me, I have "Purcha se

of Plant and Equipment", "132,621", is that right?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. Okay.  And, so, that's another obligation that th e

Company has to pay with the cash that it gets from its

operations, right?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.
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Q. Are there other sources of funds that you think t he

Company has reasonable access to?

A. (St. Cyr) My understanding is it does not have ac cess

to other funds.

Q. You've heard Mr. Mason say that, in response to s ome

questions, that, you know, "the banks don't appear

willing to loan."  I mean, is that your experience,

that a bank isn't going to be loaning to a company in

this Company's financial position?

A. (St. Cyr) It's become much more difficult for ban ks to

loan to companies.

Q. All right.  So, I mean, based on these numbers in  this

schedule, you know, is it -- what is your conclusio n

with respect to the Company's ability to actually p ay

the taxes?

A. (St. Cyr) It doesn't have the ability to pay the taxes

today.

Q. Now, a lot of discussion has occurred regarding t he

paid-in capital amount, "123,356" that's shown on t his

page, right?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. Can you give me a sense of, I think we've heard T om say

-- or, "Mr. Mason" say I should, say in all proper

decorum, that the Company has put in, you know,
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millions of dollars -- or, a million dollars in the

last five years.  I mean, do you agree with that or

what is your sense of that?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. Okay.  And, what has the Company received as a re sult

of its investment -- or, what have the Masons, excu se

me, received as a result of their investment in Lak es

Region Water Company during that period?

A. (St. Cyr) Beginning in 2011, they began to receiv e a

return of that capital.  But they have never receiv ed a

return on that capital.  And, up till that point in

time, I don't believe they have ever taken any mone y

out of the Company.

Q. Well, I don't know if you can identify for me the  time

period.  But how far back would we have to go, in y our

opinion, before we found a time at which the Masons

received something in addition to this $123,000 tha t

you've identified on this schedule?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.  I don't believe the Company -- I don't

believe the Masons have ever taken money out of the

Company until 2011.

Q. But what -- I mean, what about earnings that have  been

paid to the shareholders?  I mean, how far back do we

have to go before we find that, okay, we have some
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money here, 123,356, and that's value provided to t he

shareholders, right?

A. (St. Cyr) Well, as I said before, it's essentiall y

giving the Masons the money back that they have put  in.

Q. Right.  What other forms of consideration have th ey

received over this last five-year period or whateve r

period you want to look at?

A. (St. Cyr) They have not received any compensation  for

the capital that they have invested.

Q. So, do you know, I mean, if we were to look at th is

number, and compare that to what the Company's kind  of

net investment is, I mean, what sort of a -- is thi s an

excessive payment or what is this?

A. (St. Cyr) This is, you know, if they invested a m illion

dollars, and I know that it was more than that, you

know, this is approximately 10 percent of that amou nt.

And, again, this represents two years.  So, they wo uld

have got back 5 percent of what they invested over the

years for 2011 and 2012.

Q. Uh-huh.  And, then, during the years before that,  what

did they receive?

A. (St. Cyr) They did not receive anything.

Q. Do you think that that's an unreasonable thing fo r the

Mason's to receive?
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A. (St. Cyr) No, I don't.

Q. Okay.  I want to clarify something that was asked  of

Mr. Dawson.  And, you were asked about the fourth

quarter and investments that you had made and wheth er

those were necessary.  And, if you look at this cas h

flow statement, there's about $132,000 that the Com pany

spent on plant and equipment.  Do you agree with th at,

Mr. Dawson?

A. (Dawson) I do.

Q. What would happen if the Company failed to make t hose

types of investments or if it failed to make that

specific investment?

A. (Dawson) A couple things would happen.  First thi ng is,

we would most likely be out of compliance, almost

absolutely be out of compliance.  And, the second t hing

is, again, I've touched on this, but the quality of

service to our customers would definitely go downhi ll.

We would probably not be able to make some capital

improvements that were necessary that the customers

deserve.  And, it would negatively affect the

operations of the Company.

Q. So, would you agree with the statement then that the

Company had no choice but to spend money that was p art

of its return in order to maintain its operations?
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A. (Dawson) As the Operations Manager of Lakes Regio n,

yes, I agree with that.

Q. And, is that going to end in 2012 or are you goin g to

have to -- is this a trend that's going to continue ?

A. (Dawson) Excuse me.  I don't foresee that ending at any

point.  Every day the water system gets older, ever y

day it needs money.  And, you know, when you replac e,

you know, certain components of a water system, fro m

day one, they start getting older.  So, I don't eve r

see the need for capital improvements at Lakes Regi on

Water Company to stop.

Q. And, how would you characterize the Company's eff orts

to find outside sources of financing?  Do you talk

about this often?  What do you do?

A. (Dawson) I talk to Tom frequently about it.  I of ten

see his frustration.  I know that he's tried to fin d

other sources of financing, and has always hit a

roadblock.

Q. So, would you agree that essentially the customer

revenues represent the only source of financing

improvements right now?

A. (Dawson) Absolutely.

Q. Mr. St. Cyr, I had asked you, based on the correc tions,

or that OCA had discussed looking at your tax retur ns,
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you know, whether there were -- whether any of thos e

would cause you to change your opinion as to the

Company's tax liability.  And, I say this as

transition, because we've now, since I wrote that

question, we've heard from Staff.  But could you

clarify for me, with the Staff's document in front of

you, a reduction -- does a reduction of $17,000 tha t I

believe you suggested is what this calculation woul d be

the effect of on the Company's tax liability in 201 2,

does that change your opinion of whether an emergen cy

exists?

A. (St. Cyr) No, it does not.

Q. So, let me get to the next question then.  Which is,

you know, why couldn't the Company have filed a rat e

case, say, based on a 2011 test year or filed for a

rate case -- a temporary rate increase as soon as t he

rehearing was denied?  Did you have the information  you

needed at that point?

A. (St. Cyr) At that time, I believe we're into late  2012.

You know, the only information that would have been

available would have been 2011.  And, it just did n ot

seem prudent or practical to prepare a filing based  on

2011 data, when we were closing 2012 or in the proc ess

of closing 2012.
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Q. And, in fact, if you were to do a, you know, a pr oforma

tax liability based on 2011 as your baseline, what

would that show?

A. (St. Cyr) It would presumably show a similar tax

expense and tax obligation.

Q. Well, I'm sorry, what was the Company's tax oblig ation

in 2011?

A. (St. Cyr) It did not have a tax obligation in 201 1.

Q. So, in other words, even if you filed a rate case  based

on 2011, you'd still have to adjust it based on 201 2

numbers, is that right?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. Does that make any sense?

A. (St. Cyr) No, it does not.

Q. All right.  Are there other reasons why a 2012 te st

year would be preferable to 2011?

A. (St. Cyr) It's simply the most recent and presuma bly

the best data available to set future rates on.

Q. Do you recall what Staff's objection was concerni ng why

we couldn't have a tax expense in the last rate cas e?

A. (St. Cyr) The objection was based on the availabi lity

of net operating losses and Section 179 deductions.

Q. But I -- let me suggest to you that the Company m ade

those arguments, but do you recall Staff's objectio n

     {DW 13-041} [RE: Emergency Rates] {03-06-13/Da y 1}

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24



   209
             [WITNESS PANEL:  Mason|Dawson|St. Cyr]

being that it was too far past the test year to mak e

adjustments?

A. (St. Cyr) I believe that was part of their argume nt,

yes.

Q. And, in fact, this Commission directed this Compa ny to

file based on a more recent test year, when it deni ed

rehearing, didn't it?

A. (St. Cyr) That was part of their order, yes.

Q. Uh-huh.  So, how long, I mean, you heard Tom say that

we should redo this, we could redo this in May, bas ed

on a 2012 test year, once the returns are filed.  H ow

much effort is required to assemble a rate case?

A. (St. Cyr) It's a pretty significant effort.  You know,

I think his timing is based on the Company filing a  PUC

annual report in, you know, the end of March, and

taking, you know, some time in April to prepare the

case, and then presumably file it in March [May?] is

probably the timeline he's thinking of.

Q. And, in your experience, how quickly could you th en get

a hearing and an approval based on temporary rates,

based on what you would see as a likely filing date ?

A. (St. Cyr) Well, the Commission generally would ta ke 30

days to issue an order of notice.  And, in that ord er

of notice, it would include a notice for publicatio n
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and a notice of a hearing date.  You know, that can  be

30 to 45 days later.  And, then, there would be a

hearing, a procedural schedule would be prepared in

conjunction with the parties.  You know, assuming

temporary rates are part of that filing, you know,

you're another three or four months out before an o rder

would be issued on temporary rates.

Q. So, give me a number of months, if you can?  I me an,

what's typically been your experience?  I'm not try ing

to force you into --

A. (St. Cyr) I would say, if a filing was made May 1 st,

you know, give or take maybe 30 days, you're probab ly

looking at an order on temporary rates maybe six mo nths

later.

Q. Okay.  So, and during that period then, I assume,

unless the Company were to find a way to pay its ta x

liability, it would accrue interest and penalties o n

the 2012 amount, as adjusted by this schedule, if

that's correct, right?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. As well as 2013?

A. (St. Cyr) That is also correct.

Q. And, what would that -- what effect would waiting  have

on the Company's payables?
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A. (St. Cyr) it just increases the payables.

Q. And, in fact, you haven't been paid yet for the l ast

rate case, have you?

A. (St. Cyr) I received my first payment recently.

Q. Uh-huh.  And, you know, what's your -- you know, kind

of what's your willingness or ability to go all out  in

light of that to try to put all these schedules

together ASAP?

A. (St. Cyr) There just has to be a better understan ding

of what the particular arrangement is, rather than

having it as open as it is.

Q. But, I guess what I'm trying to get at is, you kn ow,

was -- do you think that a factor in considering

whether or not to seek emergency rates is effective ly

the interest and penalties that the Company is

continuing to incur during the time it takes to get  a

rate case assembled?

A. (St. Cyr) Sure, it's a factor.

Q. How significant is that?

A. (St. Cyr) It's a factor.  I don't -- it's not the

primary factor.  And, where it fits in, it's one of  a

number of things that the Company would consider.

Q. You were asked questions about whether or not the

Company was required to amend its return.  And, I'm
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trying to figure out the best way to approach this.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Let's do this.  Let me

start with October 31st, 2011.

(Atty. Richardson distributing 

documents.) 

MR. RICHARDSON:  And, I'd like to mark

this.  This is a response from the last rate case.  I'd

like to mark this as -- are we at "LRW" or "Exhibit  11" at

this point?

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  We are.  I'm always

troubled when I see prepared exhibits that are brou ght out

on redirect, suggesting that you knew full well you  wanted

to go there, but didn't in the course of the procee ding.

But tell me why it's appropriate for this to be

introduced, even for identification?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Sure.  There were

questions, a lot of questions about the timing, of,  you

know, when the Company made payments to Barbara Mas on,

when the Company knew it had its tax liability.  An d, this

is intended for get to those.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  If I might just

interject here?  I believe that one of the data req uests,

actually, I think it's Staff 1-1, asks for authorit y for

making the changes that the Company made to their a mended

     {DW 13-041} [RE: Emergency Rates] {03-06-13/Da y 1}

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24



   213
             [WITNESS PANEL:  Mason|Dawson|St. Cyr]

tax returns.  And, there were also questions on cro ss

earlier about authority or direction or what caused  them

to believe that they were obligated.  And, if this their

support for why they were obligated, you know, this  is

something that they're providing, at least I was no t a

participant in this case in October of 2011.  So, I 'm

seeing this now, it's my own fault, but for the fir st

time.  So, just to your comment before that it's be ing

brought up now on redirect.  I do think there have been

opportunities where questions that have been asked of the

Company could have included this within the scope o f the

response.

MR. RICHARDSON:  But, yes, the real

question is, in the questions in data responses, we re

"what was the authority to amend or the requirement  to

amend the Company's return?"  That's really the wro ng

question.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  With all due respect, I

asked questions why they believed they were obligat ed to

amend their returns earlier today.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Go

ahead, Mr. Richardson.

MR. RICHARDSON:  And, the other piece to

this puzzle is, of course, the timing of the paymen ts to
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the Masons relative to the date on which they had k nown

that there would be no tax expense recovery in this  case.

And, I think that's an important question that's be en

raised by all the parties.  And, I think that, you know,

really, you know, just the October 31st date, and t hen,

you know, what the -- you know, what the treatment should

be for the adjustment that the Company accepted.  I  don't

think this is -- we could spend more time arguing a bout

this case than I think, this exhibit, than I intend  to ask

about it.  

MS. HOLLENBERG:  May I ask a clarifying

question?  Did you just refer to "payments to the M asons"?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Yes.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  The "timing of the

payments to the Masons", what payments are you talk ing

about?

MR. RICHARDSON:  The 123,000.  I

probably should have said "Barbara Mason" then.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  And, those occurred

prior, I think Mr. Mason testified earlier, that th ey

ended in September of 2011?

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  No.  

MR. RICHARDSON:  '12.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  '12.
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WITNESS MASON:  '12.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Oh, okay.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  I'm a little lost in

what the relevance of any of this is, but I think t hat's

just because I'm getting weary.  You want to introd uce

this data request from the prior rate case, because  it's

relevant to the Company's -- Mr. St. Cyr's answer w as he

didn't know of any.  He felt it was appropriate to amend

the tax return, but didn't cite to any particular s tatute,

rule, requirement to do so.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Right.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  And, so, where

you're taking next is to say that this is something  that

the Staff of the Commission had encouraged to be do ne?

MR. RICHARDSON:  Well, and more

fundamentally, what I would like to show is is that

whether or not the Company amended its returns, it' s

required by its acceptance of this treatment to rec ognize

on its books all of these expenses as income.  And,  then,

in turn, the Company can't use deductions that are no

longer supported on its books.  So, when it adjuste d and

removed its net operating losses on its books, whet her it

amended its returns in the past or not is actually

secondary to whether or not it could claim those ne t
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operating losses in 2012.  And, this is the startin g point

of when that all -- when that process started to ta ke

place.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Well,

the reason I'm being a stickler about it is because  I just

don't want to open up -- there was a lot of debate in the

prior rate case about reclassification and amending

returns, and a dispute on whether that was appropri ate or

not.  So, I don't want us to get into everybody fil ing

everything about that issue.  

MR. RICHARDSON:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  But I'll allow this

to be introduced -- or, marked for identification, and let

you go ahead and ask about it.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Thank you.

(The document, as described, was 

herewith marked as Exhibit 11 for 

identification.) 

BY MR. RICHARDSON: 

Q. Mr. St. Cyr, you see in the first sentence, where  it

says "Staff believes that the classification of suc h

payments to an expense account of any kind is

imprudent"?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.
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Q. All right.  And, that's effectively what started a

process to change the Company's books to reflect th at

conclusion, right?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. Okay.  Now, I want to show you -- well, let me ju st ask

you this.  Do you feel that it would be accurate or

prudent or even legal, if you know, having accepted

that, to claim net operating losses that were based

upon the treatment of pensions and the loan interes t as

an expense?

A. (St. Cyr) I don't believe that there's a basis to  do

that for tax purposes.

Q. And, in fact, what would happen if you did take t hat

approach?

A. (St. Cyr) I think we would be subject to potentia l

fraudulent tax returns.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Okay.  I want to show

you an IRS publication I located yesterday.  And, S taff

has this.  Why don't we mark this as --

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Excuse me.  It's 4:30.

And, we haven't -- we've just gotten these document s

today, I guess.  I guess I could just check in and see

where we're going at this point in time?  Only beca use I

have personal obligations to meet in a short time p eriod.
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CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  That's a fair

question.  Obviously, we're not going to finish thi s

afternoon.  Let's go off the record for a moment.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Sure.

(Brief off-the-record discussion 

ensued.) 

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Let's go back on the

record.  We're going to have to continue on with an other

day, not a full day, but a few hours, I think, to c omplete

testimony and any oral closings that people wish to  make.

We will do that tomorrow morning, starting at 9:00.   And,

I appreciate people's willingness to make that work .

We still have a couple of matters to

finish up with the panel here right now.  And, so, our

hope is that, in the next ten minutes or so, we can

conclude that, so that, if they're not needed tomor row,

they don't have to make the trip back.  It's quarte r of

5:00, and I do know people have other obligations i n their

lives.  And, so, if anybody needs to leave, I under stand

that.  And, I appreciate your willingness to stay o n,

including our clerk, are you able to stay on?  All right.

So, Mr. Richardson.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Thank you.  I'd like to

just then mark the two documents that -- into the r ecord.
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And, I'll bypass questions to the witnesses, as we

discussed while we were off the record.  The partie s

already have copies.  It's the two IRS publications .  I

believe it's 538 and 542, but I don't have them rig ht in

front of me.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  So, the Publication

538 from the Internal Revenue Service, we'll mark a s

"Exhibit 12" for identification.  It's entitled

"Accounting Periods and Methods".  And, Publication  542

from the IRS, we'll mark, which is entitled

"Corporations", we'll mark as "Exhibit 13" for

identification.

(The documents, as described, were 

herewith marked as Exhibit 12 and 

Exhibit 13, respectively, for 

identification.) 

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  And, Mr. Richardson,

if there are particular pages that zero in on your point,

we're always welcome to be directed?

MR. RICHARDSON:  In both, in both books,

both publications, and, in the "Corporations" publi cation,

under the "Accounting System", right in the first o r

second paragraph on that section, it talks about ho w the

Company's accounting system has to reflect the cost s and
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expenses on its books.  And, then, in the "Accounti ng

System", the latter publication, it talks again abo ut how

the Company has to reflect the same treatment on it s books

for income and expenses in each year.  And, effecti vely,

the two of those, I believe, lead me to the conclus ion

that, once the Company's recognized that an expense  has

been disallowed, and, in this case, the nature of t he

expense required that it be treated as income.

And, with that, I'll just simply wrap up

my redirect.  I only really have two very brief sub ject

areas I can do in a couple questions.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Could you just give

us the page and the section, so we're sure we get t he

right thing, because this is an issue I don't want to have

to revisit.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Absolutely.  So, the

Publication 542, --

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Exhibit 13.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Exhibit 13, thank you,

"Accounting Methods", on Page 8.  And, it says righ t in

the first paragraph, under "Accounting Methods", wa s what

I would read to the witness and have them explain.  And,

then, in the next, and this is 538, "Accounting Per iods
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and Methods" -- I have this highlighted in the copy  I gave

to Staff, meaning for my own benefit.  So, I'm agai n on

Page 8, apparently, at the bottom of the left --

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Okay.  We're still in

Exhibit 13?

MR. RICHARDSON:  No, we're not.  We've

jumped to 12, which is Exhibit -- Publication 538.  And,

again, under "Accounting Methods", at the bottom of

Page 8, in the first column, it says "You must use the

same accounting method from year to year.  An accou nting

method clearly reflects income only if all items of  gross

income and expenses are treated the same from year to

year."  And, then, it contains a rather cautionary

paragraph, that "If you do not use an accounting me thod

that clearly reflects your income, your income will  be

refigured under the method that, in the opinion of the

IRS, does not [does ?] clearly reflect income."  And, those

are obligations that would apply to the 2012 return .

CMSR. HARRINGTON:  Okay.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you.  All

right.  Any objection to these being marked for

identification?

MS. HOLLENBERG:  No.

MS. BROWN:  No.

     {DW 13-041} [RE: Emergency Rates] {03-06-13/Da y 1}

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24



   222
             [WITNESS PANEL:  Mason|Dawson|St. Cyr]

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  I see none.

Appreciate that, Mr. Richardson.  Please proceed.

BY MR. RICHARDSON: 

Q. Mr. St. Cyr or Mr. Mason, or both, you, very quic kly,

you were asked questions about the timing of paymen t of

the 123,000 as the reduction in paid-in capital.  D o

you know when those payments ceased?

A. (Mason) I believe it was September of 2012.

Q. And, did that coincide with the Commission's deni al of

rehearing?

A. (Mason) Close to it.  It was -- it definitely had  some

influence on it.

Q. Uh-huh.  And, Mr. St. Cyr, does that -- do you ag ree

with Mr. Mason's response?

A. (St. Cyr) Yes.

Q. Okay.  You were asked some questions by Commissio ner

Scott as to what this reduction of paid-in capital

means.  And, I guess my question is is how is the

$123,000 reflected on the Company's books?

A. (St. Cyr) It's reflected in the "Additional Paid- in

Capital" line on the Company's balance sheet.

Q. So, am I correct in saying that it's a reduction in the

Company's equity?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.
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Q. And, that means that, when the Company goes to ha ve its

rates calculated or its rate of return, it's not

entitled to earn on that amount, right?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

Q. So, when the Company recognized that payment to B arbara

Mason, essentially she was forgoing the right to ea rn

on any of that money?  It's gone at that point?

A. (St. Cyr) That's correct.

MR. RICHARDSON:  Okay.  Thank you.

That's it.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  All right.  Thank

you.  The witnesses are excused.  Thank you very mu ch for

your patience for a long, long day.  We will resume  at

9:00 tomorrow morning, with the Staff witnesses, co rrect?

MS. BROWN:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  Thank you, everyone.

MS. HOLLENBERG:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:  We're adjourned for

the evening.

(Whereupon the hearing adjourned at 4:53 

p.m., and the hearing to reconvened on 

March 7, 2013, commencing at 9:00 a.m.) 
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